

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 9, 2022 - Page 1 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda (Estimated Time)  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m.  


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. 


 


Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action. 


2.2. 
Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action. 


2.5. Liability Claims (Govt. Code Section 
54956.95) 


Claimant: A. Bosch 
Agency claimed against: Santa Cruz City Schools 
 


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome 
 
 


3.2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 


3.3. Agenda Changes, Additions or Deletions & 


Announcements 


  
 
 
 
 


1/268







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 9, 2022 - Page 2 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time.  


 
   


5. Superintendent's Report  


5.1. Superintendent’s Reports  
 


5.2. Students’ Reports 
 


   


6. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.1. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.2. Board President's Report  
 


   


7. Approval of Minutes   


7.1. Meeting January 12, 2022  


7.2. Meeting January 19, 2022  
   


8. General Public Business   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items and 
Items to be Received: These matters may 
be passed by one roll call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Educational Services None. 


   


2/268







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 9, 2022 - Page 3 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.2. Business Services  


8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes  


8.1.2.2. Warrant Register  


8.1.2.3. Bond Projects Notice of Completion  


8.1.3. Human Resources  


8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions--Certificated  


8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions--Classified  


8.1.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.1.4.1. Board of Education Meeting Calendar 2022-
2023 


 


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Educational Services  


8.2.1.1. Nonpublic Agency: ACES  


8.2.2. Business Services  


8.2.2.1. Contract Renewal: LaserFiche  


8.2.2.2. American Fidelity Online Benefit Program  


8.2.2.3. School Works Inc.: Developer Fees 
Justification Study  


8.2.3. Human Resources None. 


8.2.4. Governance/Superintendent None. 


   


3/268







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 9, 2022 - Page 4 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 
Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids 
& Change Orders 


 


8.3.1 CDW-G: Quote: Westlake Elementary 
School Interactive Touch Panels 


 


8.3.2. K & D Landscaping, Inc.: Proposal: 
Branciforte Small Schools Irrigation 


 


8.3.3.  Mobile Modular: Quote: Temporary 
Transportation Housing 


 


8.3.4. Procore: Proposal: Project Management 
Software 


 


8.3.5. PSR Electric: Proposal: Temporary 
Transportation Housing Power 


 


8.3.6. Tesla Inc.: Quote: Harbor High School 
Switchgear Solar Tie-In 


 


   
8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.5.1. Educational Services  


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: A-G Improvement Grant Still will share the A-G Improvement Grant Proposal for first 
reading. 


8.5.1.2. New Business: CDW-G Quote: Chromebook 
Purchase 


Recommendation: Approve the quote from CDG-W to 
purchase Chromebooks. 


8.5.1.3. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability 
Plan Update: Multi-Tiered Systems of 
Support School Climate & Culture 


Staff will provide an update on the Local Control 
Accountability Plan Update: Multi-Tiered Systems of 
Support School Climate & Culture 


4/268







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 9, 2022 - Page 5 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.2. Business Services   


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Wellness Committee Report Staff will provide an annual update for the Wellness 
Committee. 


8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Bond Budget Update Staff will present an update the Measures A & B Bond 
Budgets. 


8.5.2.3. New Business: AB1200 for Tentative 
Agreement with Meet & Confer Groups 


Recommendation: Approve the AB1200 for Tentative 
Agreement with Meet & Confer Groups. 


8.5.3. Human Resources  


8.5.3.1. New Business: SCCCE 2021-22 Sunshine 
Articles 


Recommendation: Approve the SCCCE Sunshine Articles 
for 2021-22. 


8.5.3.2. New Business: Resolution 24-21-22: Staffing 
Flexibility Measures 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 24-21-22: Staffing 
Flexibility Measures 


8.5.3.3. New Business: Resolution 25-21-22: 
Certificated Reduction of Particular Kinds of 
Service 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 25-21-22: 
Certificated Reduction of Particular Kinds of Service 


8.5.3.4. New Business: Resolution 27-21-22: 
NonReelect of Probationary Certificated 
Employees 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 27-21-22: 
NonReelect of Probationary Certificated Employees 


   
8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent   


8.5.4.1. Board Policies: First and/or Final Reading 
for CSBA Revisions and Updates 


Recommendation: Approve the revised policies for first 
and/or final reading. 


8.5.4.2. New Business: Resolution 28-21-22: AB 
361 


Determine whether or not to continue with virtual Board 
meetings in for the next 30 days. 


8.5.5.2. Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas  


   


9. Adjournment  


  
 


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


5/268







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 9, 2022 - Page 6 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


   
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 48220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x48220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


3. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


6/268







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2022    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 9, 2022 - Page 7 of 7 


6. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting on May 4, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting on June 8, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7/268







MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
JANUARY 12, 2022 


 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty  John Owen   Cindy Ranii   
Patricia Threet   Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal  
 
Student Board Representative Destiny Silva 
Student Board Representative Laura Wang 
 
Absent: Board Representative Jeremy Shonick 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education.   
 
3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 
Item 8.5.4.5. New Business: SCCS/GSCFT Tentative Agreement was pulled from the agenda and will be brought 
back at a later meeting date. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
City Council Member Renee Golder presented a mayoral proclamation, recognizing and honoring Director Amy 
Hedrick-Farr and the Santa Cruz City Schools Food Service Team for their service to students and families 
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 


 
 


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 


8/268







 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro began her report by providing an update on Santa Cruz County’s current COVID data. 
She thanked Assistant Superintendent Monreal, Director Miller, and the entire facilities team who worked 
during the second week of winter break to ensure that home antigen tests could be distributed to families. 
She also thanked the County Office of Education for sending a bus to Sacramento to make sure Santa Cruz 
County school districts had testing kits before the first day back at school. Superintendent Munro shared the 
new CDC guidance on masking as well as the CDPH’s adopted 5-day isolation protocol for students. Staff are 
prioritizing keeping schools open, safe, and healthy. Meetings and open houses have shifted temporarily to 
Zoom. Superintendent Munro shared data that showed the impact of the Omicron variant on the community. 
 
January 4 was the District-wide Professional Development day, led by school leaders, teacher leaders, and 
educational partners. This day allowed time for collaboration to continue the curriculum and assessment 
work. Staff continue to hire classified staff. Superintendent Munro thanked the unions for their work in 
negotiations and reaching a tentative agreement, which will be brought to the board at an upcoming meeting. 
Staff are looking at enrollment projections for the next school year, as this influences staffing projections. To 
date, the finance team has submitted 12 different reports related to COVID funds. County Superintendents 
met with Assemblyman Stone to talk about funding needs, enrollment, and ADA during the pandemic. District 
leaders are lobbying for funding based on enrollment rather than attendance. Finally, Superintendent Munro 
concluded her report by holding a moment of silence for Tina McGlashen, a teacher at Westlake Elementary 
who unexpectedly passed away over the winter break.  
 
Student’s Report 
Student Board Representative Laura Wang thanked the District for providing antigen tests to help facilitate a 
safe return to school. Santa Cruz High School has many events on the horizon including Back to School Night, 
Winter Rally, and an outdoor Winter Formal at Coconut Grove. Students are reconnecting with academics as 
they have all new classes this semester. Applications for Santa Cruz High’s Alumni Scholarship is due February 
1.  Construction will be wrapping up in time for the Red & White fair, which is an opportunity to welcome the 
incoming Freshman class. Ms. Wang expressed her gratitude and appreciation for all the modifications and 
improvements that have been made on campus. 
 
Student Board Representative Destiny Silva shared preparations for Winter Formal are underway, including 
ticket sales. The Mock Trial team has their first scrimmage at the end of the month and the Pirate Theatre is 
holding auditions for the Spring Musical, which will be a joint production between Harbor High and Soquel 
High. Harbor High film students were admitted to Clash of the Titans, a global film program in which students 
are challenged to produce a film in 48 hours. 
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 


Board Members’ Reports 
Trustee Vestal commended the District and Chief of Communications, Sam Rolens, for the weekly video 
updates, stating that they are always clear, with essential information. 
 
Trustee Threet did not have a report to share. 
 
Trustee Ranii thanked staff, students and families for their resilience, creativity and dedication for education 
for the last few years.  
 


9/268







Trustee Owen did not have a report to share 
 
Trustee Coonerty acknowledged Dennis McGinnley, former Costanoa staff member, who passed away last 
week. Trustee Coonerty honored and acknowledged his services to students and schools. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Tracy-Proulx thanked Cabinet, staff, and site administration for the effort to pass out testing 
kits to school communities.  
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
None. 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
8.1.1.1. Second Quarter Williams Report, 8.1.1.2. Out of State Conference Request, 8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, 
Bids, & Quotes, 8.1.2.2. Warrant Register, 8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers, 8.1.2.4. Bond Projects Notice of 
Completion, 8.1.2.5. Disposition of Surplus Property, 8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions—Certificated, 8.1.3.2. 
Personnel Actions—Classified, 8.2.1.1. Consultant Services Agreement: Monterey Bay Area Math Project, 
8.2.2.1. Development Group Inc.: Proposal: Security Cameras, 8.3.1 Anaya Construction: Change Order 1: 
Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing, 8.3.2. California Premier Restoration: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Temporary Housing Dry Rot Repair, 8.3.3.  Dilbeck & Sons, Inc.: Contract: DeLaveaga Elementary School 
Kindergarten Window Assembly, 8.3.4. Dilbeck & Sons, Inc.: Proposal: District Office Automatic Door 
Operators  
 
Trustee Coonerty motioned to approve the consent agenda. Trustee Vestal seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote:  
Coonerty – Yes Owen – Yes  Ranii – Yes 
Shonick – Absent Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 
Vice President Owen reported the following actions during closed session: 
1. Ms. Coito shared information with the Board on a Final Settlement Agreement. 
2. Mr. Monreal provided an updated to the Board about Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding 


Anticipated Litigation. 
3. Mr. Monreal shared information with the Board regarding Liability Claims. 
4. Ms. Parks shared information with the Board on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 


Retirements, Resignations & Appointments. 
5. Ms. Parks did not have information to share regarding Public Employee 


Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaints.  
6. Ms. Parks provided an update and received direction from the board regarding SCCCE negotiations. 
7. Ms. Parks provided an update and received direction from the board regarding GSCFT negotiations. 
8. The Board reviewed the Superintendent’s 2021-22 Goals. 


 
 


10/268







ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 
 
8.5.1.1. New Business: Redistricting: First and/or Final Reading for Trustee Area Maps 


Superintendent Munro introduced Demographer Doug Johnson of National Demographics 
Corporation. At the regular Board meeting on October 20, 2021, Mr. Johnson shared 2021 
Census data with the Board and its impact on the Trustee Areas. Mr. Johnson returned to share 
new proposed maps based on Census data and input received at the October meeting. Four 
proposed maps were shared with the Board. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. 
 
Trustee Ranii motioned to adopt the map Realignment 1. Trustee Threet seconded the motion. 
 
MSP(Ranii/Threet) 6-0, the Board of Education adopted the Realignment 1 as the new map for 
Trustee Areas.  
 


8.5.2.1.  Staff Report: Transitional Kindergarten Expansion Update 
Assistant Superintendent Coito presented the District’s Transitional Kindergarten Expansion 
Update. In 2010, the Kinder Readiness Act created Transitional Kindergarten (TK) in California. 
TK is intended to provide extra time and developmentally appropriate curriculum to prepare 
children for kindergarten.  The instruction aligns with the California Preschool Learning 
Foundations. Currently, SCCS serves 31 Transitional Kindergarten students. In 2021, Assembly 
Bill 130 was passed which expands TK beginning in 2022-23, achieving universal TK by 2025-26. 
This effort will include a phased implementation by increasing the birthday eligibility with two 
months added per year. Assistant Superintendent Coito discussed planning considerations 
including budget, staffing and facilities. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. This 
report was informational in nature and no action was taken by the Board at this time.  
 


8.5.3.1. New Business: District Audit 
Assistant Superintendent Monreal introduced Jeff Jenson from Crowe LLP to present the 2020-
21 external financial audit for the district through June 30, 2021. The District is required to have 
an independent financial audit performed annually in accordance with standards established 
for K-12 schools by the State Controlled. The audit report showed the District had zero findings 
for the 2020-21 fiscal year. The District is required to have an independent financial audit 
performed annually in accordance with audit standards established for K-12 schools by the 
State Controller. Jeff Jenson, a representative from Crowe Horwath, presented an analysis of 
the annual District audit. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. 


 
MSP(Ranii/Vestal) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the District Audit for the 2020-21 fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2021.  


 
8.5.3.2. New Business: Bond Measures A & B Audit 


Assistant Superintendent Monreal introduced the Bond Measures A & B Audit. Under Article 
XIIIA of the California Constitution requires school districts that have passed general obligation 
bonds under the provision of Proposition 39 to conduct an annual performance audit to ensure 
that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects approved by the voters and 
specified by the Board of Education. Jeff Jenson, a representative from Crowe Horwath, 
presented an analysis of the Bond Measures A & B audit.  
 


11/268







MSP(Owen/Ranii) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the 2020-21 Bond Measure A and 
Measure B Financial Statements and Performance Audits. 


 
8.5.3.3. New Business: Resolution 21-21-22 Authorization of Tax-Exempt Equipment Lease 


Assistant Superintendent Monreal presented Resolution 21-21-22, which will allow the District 
to finance the Climatec solar and HVAC project over a ten year period though an equipment 
lease.  An equipment lease is secured by the equipment being purchased and installed rather 
than secured by a school site as is done in a certificate of participation financing.  An equipment 
lease is a much less complex financing than a certificate of participation financing which results 
in streamlined legal documents and lower issuance costs. To select a lender for the equipment 
lease, the district’s financial advisor and placement agent conducted a request for proposal 
process.  Seven banks submitted proposals with interest rates ranging from 1.548% to 2.10%.  
Bank of America submitted the bid with the lowest interest rates and further agreed to match 
the more favorable repayment terms of the bank that submitted the next lowest interest rate.  
During years 1-5, the financing may be prepaid with a penalty of 2% of the outstanding principal 
balance.  After year five, there is no prepayment penalty.  Trustees asked questions and had 
discussion. 
 
MSP(Ranii/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved Resolution 21-21-22. 


 
8.5.4.1. PUBLIC HEARING: New Personnel Commissioner 


Education Code 45245 specifies the responsibility for appointing Personnel Commissioners. One 
commission is appointed by the bargaining unit of the classified employees, one is appointed by 
the governing board and the third is appointed jointly by the other two members. The current 
personnel commissioner’s term has ended, resulting in a need to appoint a new Personnel 
Commissioner. Public will have the opportunity to give input on the recommended Personnel 
Commissioner, prior to appointment by the Governing Board. Board President Tracy-Proulx 
opened the public hearing for public comment. 
 
Open: 8:21 p.m. 
Public Comment: None. 
Close: 8:21 p.m. 
 


8.5.4.2. New Business: New Personnel Commissioner 
Education Code 45245 specifies the responsibility for appointing Personnel Commissioners. One 
commission is appointed by the bargaining unit of the classified employees, one is appointed by 
the governing board and the third is appointed jointly by the other two members. Assistant 
Superintendent Parks thanked Pam Hernandez for her service on the Personnel Commission, 
and recommended Carol McKee as the new board appointed personnel commissioner to serve 
a two-year term. 
 
MSP(Vestal/Owen) 6-0, the Board of Education approved Carol McKee as the new Board 
Appointed Personnel Commissioner.  


 
8.5.4.3. New Business: Annual Resolution 17-21-22: Determination of K-12 District Needs 


Assistant Superintendent Parks brought forward Annual Resolution 17-21-22 which determines 
District needs to retain services of certificated employees in the 2022-2023 school year, 


12/268







regardless of seniority, who possess qualifications needed for certain programs. Ms. Parks 
recommended approval of Resolution 17-21-22. 
 
MSP(Ranii/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved Annual Resolution 17-21-22: 
Determination of K-12 District Needs. 


 
8.5.4.4. New Business: Annual Resolution 18-21-22: Tie-Breaker Criteria 


Assistant Superintendent Parks brought forward Annual Resolution 18-21-22 for Tie Breaker 
Criteria that determines District needs if it becomes necessary to establish seniority of 
employees who first rendered paid service to the District on the same date. The criteria 
identified in the resolution will be used to break ties for the employees with the same first date 
of paid service. Ms. Parks recommended approval of Resolution 18-21-22.  
 
MSP(Ranii/Owen) 6-0, the Board of Education approved Annual Resolution 18-21-22: Tie 
Breaker Criteria. 


 
8.5.5.1. New Business: Resolution 19-21-22: Proclaiming Black History Month 


Superintendent Munro brought forward Resolution 19-21-22. This resolution proclaims 
February as Black History Month. Santa Cruz City Schools recognizes the important 
contributions of local, State, and National Black Americans to the history of the United States, 
by promoting social justice, enhancing health and well-being, and building a sense of 
community for Black Americans. 
 
MSP(Threet/Vestal) 6-0, the Board of Education adopted Resolution 19-21-22: Proclaiming 
Black History Month. 


 
8.5.5.2. New Business: Resolution 20-21-22: AB 361 


Superintendent Munro presented Resolution 20-21-22 to authorize continued use of remote 
teleconferencing provisions pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code section 54953. 
Consistent with Government Code section 54953, December 15, 2021, Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education took action to continue virtual meetings, finding that meeting in person 
would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. Trustees discussed Assembly 
Bill 361 and considered if the current circumstances met the requirements for the Board to 
continue conducting meetings remotely. 


 
 Trustee Owen motioned to continue conducting Board meetings remotely, and revisit in 30 


days as required. Trustee Vestal seconded the motion. 
 
 MSP(Owen/Vestal) 5-1, the Board of Education approved Resolution 20-21-22 Assembly Bill 


361. 
 
8.5.5.3. Board Policies: Second and/or Final Reading for CSBA Revisions & Updates 


Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating processing, 
which uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts. These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code and/or 
case law. The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required customization 
for Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 


13/268







Trustee Coonerty motion to approve the CSBA Policy Revisions & Updates. Trustee Ranii 
seconded the motion. 
 
MSP(Coonerty/Ranii) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the CSBA Policy Revisions & 
Updates. 
 


8.5.4.2. Potential Items for Futures Agenda 
None. 


 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
adjourned this Regular Meeting at 8:38 p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information  
1. The Regular Meeting on January 12, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
2. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
3. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
4. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
5. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
6. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
7. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
8. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
9. The Regular Meeting on May 4, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
10. The Study Session on May 18, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
11. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
12. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
 
*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 


14/268







Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


15/268







MINUTES OF THE STUDY SESSION 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
JANUARY 19, 2022 


 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:02 p.m.  
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:09 p.m. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty  John Owen   Cindy Ranii  Jeremy Shonick  
Patricia Threet   Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal  
 
Absent:  Student Board Representative Destiny Silva 
Student Board Representative Laura Wang 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Study 
Session of the Board of Education.   
 
3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 
Superintendent Munro shared that January is School Board Recognition Month and thanked the Trustees for 
their service to the students and community of Santa Cruz City Schools. Trustees were presented with a 
cheese board and pen that were crafted by the CTE Mill Cabinetry class. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
5.1. School Accountability Report Cards; 5.2. SCCS/GSCFT Tentative Agreement 
 
Trustee Vestal motioned to approve the consent agenda. Trustee Coonerty seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 


16/268







Roll Call Vote:  
Coonerty – Yes Owen – Yes  Ranii – Yes 
Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 
Vice President Owen reported the following actions during closed session: 


1. Ms. Munro shared information with the Board on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments. 


2. Ms. Munro did not have any information to share with Trustees regarding Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaints.  


3. The Board reviewed the Superintendent’s 2021-22 Goals 
 
 


ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 
 
7.1. Board Governance Study Session 


Governance Handbook & Pace and Flow of Meetings 
The Governance team reviewed roles, responsibilities, and meeting norms and agreements. The 
Board shared ideas and discussed how to be more efficient with presentations and discussions 
during meeting. The Board also discussed logistics and plans to move to Hybrid Board meetings, 
when the COVID case rates decline. 
 
Board Policies 
Trustees discussed proposed board policies that included Civility, Hate-Motivated Behavior, 
Naming of a Facility, and Memorials. Trustees discussed the policies and directed the 
Superintendent and Agenda Committee to bring these policies back to a future meeting. 


 
Committee Assignments 
Board President Tracy-Proulx reviewed the District Committees with the Board. Each member 
chose the committees on which they want to participate.  
 
Governance Calendar 
Superintendent Munro reviewed the 2021-22 Governance Calendar and received input from 
the Board. 
 
Meeting Evaluation 
Trustees were asked to provide feedback on the study session by completing a written 
evaluation. 


 
7.2.  Potential Items for Futures Agenda 


None. 
 
8. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
adjourned this Study Session at 8:10 p.m. 
 


17/268







Board Meeting Schedule Information  
1. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
2. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
3. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
4. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
5. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
6. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
7. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
8. The Regular Meeting on May 4, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
9. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
10. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
11. The Regular Meeting on June 8, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
12. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 
 
*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


18/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes  
 
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes, bids and proposals from 02/11/2022 through 
02/24/2022. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors or ratification within 60 days as allowed by Education 
Code 17605. Also included for pre-approval are 2021-22 purchase orders which will be entered 
before the next regular Board meeting for Facility Services, Transportation, Food Services, and 
Central Purchasing for routine supplies and services. 
 
The following definitions are provided to clarify the differences between purchase orders, 
quotes and bids: 
 
Purchase Orders: 
All purchases shall be made by formal contract or purchase order or shall be accompanied by a 
receipt. The Superintendent or designee may create a "blanket" or "open" purchase order 
system for the purchase of minor items as needed from a vendor.  
 
Quotes: 
For the purchase of materials and supplies between $15,000 and $60,000 more than one quote 
is required and may be verbal or written. When purchases will be $15,000 to $99,100 for 
contracted work other than Public Works Projects and $60,000 to $99,100 for materials and 
supplies, several vendors are contacted for written quotes/proposals. This process, though not 
as rigorous as a bid, ensures that the District has involved more than one vendor and will 
secure a competitive price.  
   
Bids/RFP: 
A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, distribution of written 
specification regarding the work or materials, and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, 
must be followed for contracted work other than CUPCCAA Public Works Projects projected to 
cost $99,100 and over, or for materials and supplies in the sum of $99,100 or over unless a 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is being utilized under PCC 20118. Under CUPCCAA 
contracts may be awarded up to $60,000 without additional quotes. Informal bidding 


19/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


procedures are followed for Public Works projects from $60,000 to $200,000 and a formal bid 
process occurs for Public Works projects over $200,000 (PCC 20117(B), 20651(B). Bids are 
solicited from a wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is made 
to the lowest responsible bidder and that the District receives the best price available. 
   
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


20/268







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 02/11/2022 - 02/24/2022


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01402 1,000.00 MHMSOPEN PO for Said Library reading 


materials


01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01853 8,742.00 M&OSCH TEMP HOUSING POWER TO 


FOOD TRUCK


21 BOND, MEASURE APSR ELECTRIC


PO22-01854 12,603.75 M&OB40SS CEQA 21 BOND, MEASURE BSCHOOL SITE SOLUTIO


PO22-01855 10,611.25 M&OMHMS CEQA 21 BOND, MEASURE ASCHOOL SITE SOLUTIO


PO22-01856 10,840.00 M&OSQ CEQA 21 BOND, MEASURE ASCHOOL SITE SOLUTIO


PO22-01861 297.88 HHSCounseling Office Supplies 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01862 3,577.97 HHSSports Supplies 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01864 822.83 HHSBaseballs 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIBSN SPORTS LLC


PO22-01868 500.00 MHMSbooks/ref.material---Goal 1/Strategy16 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIJUNIOR LIBRARY GUIL


PO22-01869 100.00 PERCInvoice #1126 01 NO REPORTING REPEDX COURIER & CARG


PO22-01870 414.06 WRSHINVENTORY ORDER 01 NO REPORTING REAMERICAN SUPPLY COR


PO22-01871 8,800.00 M&OSCH INTERIM HOUSING PAVING 21 BOND, MEASURE AA & C CONSTRUCTION


PO22-01872 737.44 DLELMyPath Math License Goal 1, Strategy 5 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCCURRICULUM ASSOCIAT


PO22-01873 212.25 HHSBooks 01 DONATIONSBOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ


PO22-01874 568.10 BSSGraduation caps 01 NO REPORTING REJOSTENS INC


PO22-01875 185.90 HHSStudent Snacks 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01876 19,250.00 SPEDAPS STEPS TO SUCCESS - BOARD 


APPROVED 11.17.2021


01 Sped DisputeSTEPS TO SUCCESS


PO22-01877 1,266.16 SQHSCHEMISTRY SUPPLIES 01 DONATIONSBIORAD LABORATORIES


PO22-01878 89.38 SQHSCFP-MINIBLINDS FOR FRONT OFFICE 01 OTHER RESTRICTEADVANCED BLIND & SH


PO22-01879 329.67 SQHSUPFRONT SUBSCRIPTION - ONLINE 


ACCESS & PRINT COPY


01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCSCHOLASTIC MAGAZINE


PO22-01880 199.15 SCHSFILTER CARTRIDGE 01 NO REPORTING RECOLE-PARMER INSTRUM


PO22-01881 654.00 WRSHINVENTORY - CUSTODIAL 01 NO REPORTING REAMERICAN SUPPLY COR


PO22-01882 398.00 CURRiReady Symposium registration 01 ESEA:STDNT SUPPCURRICULUM ASSOCIAT


PO22-01883 2,000.00 SUPTLatino Role Models 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCSENDEROS


PO22-01884 5,100.00 BMSOnline Supplemental digital resource 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCTEACHERS PAY TEACHE


PO22-01885 1,954.43 SCHSlibrary shelf 01 NO REPORTING REDEMCO INC


PO22-01886 1,000.00 M&OMOT-21/22 OPEN PO ELECTRICAL 


PARTS/SUPPLIES


01 ONGOING & MAJORROYAL WHOLESALE ELE


PO22-01887 350.00 SQHSOPEN PO-PLANT STARTERS, 


GARDENING TOOLS


01 NO REPORTING RESAN LORENZO LUMBER 


PO22-01888 42.14 CURRIndex Cards for all ELEM sites 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01889 784.80 SQHSSCIENCE SUPPLIES 01 NO REPORTING REEMBI TEC


PO22-01890 2,600.00 SCHSCFP - BUS FOR BAND 01 DONATIONSDISCOVERY CHARTERS


PO22-01891 2,840.25 SCHSCFP- BUS ATHLETICS 01 Measure TDISCOVERY CHARTERS


PO22-01892 19,288.09 GAELResource books 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCBENCHMARK EDUCATION


PO22-01893 11,000.00 M&OMOT-21/22 OPEN PO MOVING 


CONTAINERS


01 ONGOING & MAJORAZZIE'S STORAGE


PO22-01894 5,192.54 M&OMOT-EMERGENCY REKEY OF GAULT 01 ONGOING & MAJORAA SAFE & LOCK COMP


PO22-01895 30,621.69 M&OSQ POOL DSA CLOSEOUT 21 BOND, MEASURE ADIVISION OF STATE A


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Feb 25 2022  9:39AM


Page 1 of 2


21/268







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 02/11/2022 - 02/24/2022


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01896 1,818.03 BSSiPads. SPSA Goal 1, activity 6. Quote 


2110549790.


01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIAPPLE COMPUTER INC


PO22-01897 599.19 BSSCFP invoice #622295. Custodial 


supplies


01 OTHER RESTRICTECOAST PAPER & SUPPL


PO22-01898 1,050.00 SUPTAD FOR TK/KINDERGARTEN 


ENROLLMENT


01 NO REPORTING RESANTA CRUZ SENTINEL


Total 168,440.95 


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Feb 25 2022  9:39AM


Page 2 of 2


22/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.2. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report. The report covers vendor warrants issued 
from 02/16/2022 through 03/01/2022.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


23/268







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 02/16/2022 through 03/01/2022


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


991759 02/17/2022 SISC 515,890.20 


991991 02/22/2022 A-Z BUS SALES INC 38.56 


991992 02/22/2022 ACSIG/EDGE DENTAL ATTN:  K DENNIS, EXEC DIR 55,891.60 


991993 02/22/2022 ALEXIS PARTY RENTALS INC 1,255.00 


991994 02/22/2022 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 10,836.29 


Unpaid Tax


10,836.23 Expensed Amount


.06-


991995 02/22/2022 BAY SCHOOL, THE 57,403.70 


991996 02/22/2022 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF JUSTICE ACCOUNTING OFFICE 1,582.00 


991997 02/22/2022 COMMUNITY PRINTERS INC 844.03 


991998 02/22/2022 DICK BLICK CO. 1,730.54 


991999 02/22/2022 DOCTORS ON DUTY MEDICAL GROUP 875.00 


992000 02/22/2022 EKON-O-PAC, LLC 2,444.60 


992001 02/22/2022 FLYERS ENERGY LLC 2,448.73 


992002 02/22/2022 FOLLETT CONTENT SOLUTIONS LLC 939.43 


992003 02/22/2022 GOPHER SPORT 1,246.38 


992004 02/22/2022 GREENWASTE RECOVERY INC 6,845.30 


992005 02/22/2022 HAWTHORNE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 105.61 


992006 02/22/2022 JERENE LACEY 4,203.00 


992007 02/22/2022 OFFICE DEPOT 83.19 


992008 02/22/2022 P&A ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 228.00 


992009 02/22/2022 PAJARO VALLEY USD FINANCE 1,740.00 


992010 02/22/2022 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 845.98 


992011 02/22/2022 PAXTON PATTERSON INC 55.53 


992012 02/22/2022 PHOENIX CERAMICS SUPPLY 1,272.93 


992013 02/22/2022 RAY MORGAN CO. 170.00 


992014 02/22/2022 ROGER'S REFRIGERATION INC 594.26 


992015 02/22/2022 SAFEWAY STORES INC ACCT 58624 33.82 


992016 02/22/2022 SANTA CRUZ FIRE EQUIPMENT 375.00 


992017 02/22/2022 SCI CONSULTING GROUP 8,000.00 


992018 02/22/2022 SOCIAL & ENVIRON. ENTREP GROUNDSWELL COASTAL 


ECO


2,000.00 


992019 02/22/2022 SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT 7,161.61 


992020 02/22/2022 SPEECHRIGHTER INC 1,150.00 


992021 02/22/2022 SPOTIFY USA INC 296.90 


992022 02/22/2022 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 124.55 


992023 02/22/2022 STEPS TO SUCCESS 2,125.00 


992024 02/22/2022 SUTTER HEALTH PLUS 420,120.59 


992025 02/22/2022 TEXTBOOK WAREHOUSE 3,236.53 


992026 02/22/2022 THE LIBRARY STORE INC 12.03 


992027 02/22/2022 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 18.00 


992028 02/22/2022 WOODCRAFT SUPPLIES LLC 2,929.16 


992029 02/22/2022 McKinney, Michelle L 150.18 


992030 02/22/2022 Robles, Nereida 363.05 


992031 02/22/2022 Geffken, Donna M 413.50 


992032 02/22/2022 Fernandez, Maia C 105.02 


992033 02/22/2022 Hernandez, Amariah A 303.36 


992034 02/22/2022 Boscacci, Peter R 935.94 


992035 02/22/2022 Sheinbaum, Grainne K 42.50 


Page 1 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Mar  1 2022  


9:46AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


24/268







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 02/16/2022 through 03/01/2022


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


992036 02/22/2022 Bettar, Brian K 188.40 


992037 02/22/2022 Falls, Stacey F 70.75 


992038 02/22/2022 Palomo Tirado, Ignacio D 35.00 


992039 02/22/2022 Wood, Bobi M 64.20 


992040 02/22/2022 Bentley, Thomas K 131.83 


992041 02/22/2022 Prohaska, Kimberly 284.02 


992042 02/22/2022 ACCO BRANDS USA LLC 202.94 


992043 02/22/2022 ACSIG/VSP VISION CARE ATTN:  K DENNIS, EXEC DIR 6,898.80 


992044 02/22/2022 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 3,177.97 


Unpaid Tax


3,179.08 Expensed Amount


1.11 


992045 02/22/2022 APPI 655.39 


992046 02/22/2022 BELLI ARCHITECTURAL GROUP INC 395.00 


992047 02/22/2022 BENCHMARK EDUCATION CO. 5,902.88 


992048 02/22/2022 BRINKS AWARDS & SIGNS 101.60 


992049 02/22/2022 CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL 222.98 


992050 02/22/2022 CDE PRESS SALES ACCTNG 276.01 


992051 02/22/2022 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 8.12 


992052 02/22/2022 CENTRAL COAST SYSTEMS INC 11,214.01 


992053 02/22/2022 CHARTWELL SCHOOL 4,105.32 


992054 02/22/2022 COAST LOCK & SAFE 894.65 


992055 02/22/2022 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 1,685.19 


992056 02/22/2022 DOCTORS ON DUTY MEDICAL GROUP 750.00 


992057 02/22/2022 EARLE LAPP 80.00 


992058 02/22/2022 FOLLETT CONTENT SOLUTIONS LLC 1,252.99 


992059 02/22/2022 GOLD STAR FOODS 5,952.61 


992060 02/22/2022 HOME DEPOT INC 19.99 


992061 02/22/2022 KONE INC 1,381.17 


992062 02/22/2022 LENZ ARTS 51.74 


992063 02/22/2022 LION ELECTRIC CO USA INC 415.21 


Unpaid Tax


419.18 Expensed Amount


3.97 


992064 02/22/2022 MINIPCR BIO 134.00 


992065 02/22/2022 NASCO 116.24 


992066 02/22/2022 OFFICE DEPOT 790.35 


992067 02/22/2022 P & R PAPER SUPPLY COMPANY INC 720.03 


992068 02/22/2022 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 173.51 


992069 02/22/2022 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 3,875.51 


992070 02/22/2022 PSAT/NMSQT 2,492.00 


992071 02/22/2022 SAFEWAY STORES INC ACCT 58624 57.91 


992072 02/22/2022 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 247.07 


992073 02/22/2022 SANTA CRUZ FIRE EQUIPMENT 614.53 


992074 02/22/2022 SPORTS DESIGN INC 428.81 


992075 02/22/2022 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 1,245.45 


992076 02/22/2022 SWEETWATER SOUND INC 1,047.71 


992077 02/22/2022 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 720.80 


992078 02/22/2022 P&A ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 1,473.41 


992079 02/22/2022 AA SAFE & LOCK COMPANY 4.41 


Page 2 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Mar  1 2022  


9:46AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


25/268







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 02/16/2022 through 03/01/2022


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


992080 02/22/2022 AIRGAS NATIONAL CARBONATION 317.70 


992081 02/22/2022 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 337.88 


992082 02/22/2022 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 458.57 


992083 02/22/2022 DIRECT LINE TELE RESPONSE 114.00 


992084 02/22/2022 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 532.15 


992085 02/22/2022 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 565.44 


992086 02/22/2022 HOME DEPOT INC 512.37 


992087 02/22/2022 INDEPENDENT ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 37.92 


992088 02/22/2022 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 185.91 


992089 02/22/2022 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 122.86 


992090 02/22/2022 LINCOLN AQUATICS 1,566.27 


992091 02/22/2022 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 1,339.06 


992092 02/22/2022 SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 56.68 


992093 02/22/2022 SANTA CRUZ RECORDS MANAGEMENT 180.00 


992094 02/22/2022 SUPERIOR ALARM CO 1,004.00 


992095 02/22/2022 WESTSIDE HARDWARE 66.76 


992096 02/22/2022 BUSINESS CARD 10,812.63 


992097 02/22/2022 CARD SERVICE CENTER 1,008.75 


992098 02/22/2022 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS REVOLVING 6,432.29 


992099 02/22/2022 ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 6,742.46 


Unpaid Tax


6,743.06 Expensed Amount


.60 


992100 02/22/2022 ACE PORTABLE SERVICES 1,232.03 


992101 02/22/2022 ACSA 2,596.00 


992102 02/22/2022 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 4,435.34 


Unpaid Tax


4,436.55 Expensed Amount


1.21 


992103 02/22/2022 APPLE COMPUTER INC 29.70 


992104 02/22/2022 BENCHMARK EDUCATION CO. 2,921.63 


992105 02/22/2022 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC 655.29 


992106 02/22/2022 CENTRAL COAST SYSTEMS INC 4,597.47 


992107 02/22/2022 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 3,446.04 


992108 02/22/2022 COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC 1,434.91 


992109 02/22/2022 DANIELSEN CO. 18,936.72 


992110 02/22/2022 DICK BLICK CO. 2,024.32 


992111 02/22/2022 DOCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES LLC 12,991.86 


992112 02/22/2022 GOLD STAR FOODS 5,282.10 


992113 02/22/2022 HARTFORD LIFE 3,100.06 


992114 02/22/2022 HEINEMANN 1,838.10 


992115 02/22/2022 JEFFREY N BOTTORFF 776.25 


992116 02/22/2022 JW PEPPER & SON INC 3.00 


992117 02/22/2022 KATIE EICHOLZ 862.40 


992118 02/22/2022 LINCOLN AQUATICS 810.48 


992119 02/22/2022 LINCOLN ELECT CUTTING SYS INC 750.00 


992120 02/22/2022 MISSION HILL BLDG OWNERS ASSN 971.86 


992121 02/22/2022 NUZ DBA GOOD TIMES 436.00 


992122 02/22/2022 OFFICE DEPOT 52.81 


992123 02/22/2022 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 209.48 


Page 3 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Mar  1 2022  


9:46AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


26/268







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 02/16/2022 through 03/01/2022


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


992124 02/22/2022 PEDX COURIER & CARGO 100.00 


992125 02/22/2022 PRODUCERS DAIRY FOODS INC 3,146.74 


992126 02/22/2022 RAY MORGAN CO. 18,726.27 


992127 02/22/2022 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 124.66 


992128 02/22/2022 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY SOCCER REFEREE 


ASSOCIATION


5,836.00 


992129 02/22/2022 SANTA CRUZ SAW & TOOL 915.60 


992130 02/22/2022 SANTA CRUZ, CITY OF 1,606.31 


992131 02/22/2022 SCHOOL SPECIALTY LLC 64.15 


992132 02/22/2022 SILKE COMMUNICATIONS INC 2,845.27 


Unpaid Tax


2,862.00 Expensed Amount


16.73 


992133 02/22/2022 SOUL SHOPPE PROGRAMS 900.00 


992134 02/22/2022 SPURR 77,007.37 


992135 02/22/2022 SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF SF 8,707.04 


992136 02/22/2022 TESLA 1,741.32 


992137 02/22/2022 TESLA INC 6,135.05 


992138 02/22/2022 TESLA INC 4,690.44 


992139 02/22/2022 THE HARTFORD LTD ATTN: GROUP BENEFITS 3,707.15 


992140 02/22/2022 WATSONVILLE COAST PRODUCE 500.60 


992141 02/22/2022 A & C CONSTRUCTION 8,800.00 


992142 02/22/2022 CRW INDUSTRIES INC 108,590.73 


992143 02/22/2022 DILBECK & SONS INC 2,015.48 


992144 02/22/2022 I & A CONTRACTOR INC 20,673.15 


992145 02/22/2022 PSR ELECTRIC 9,723.90 


992146 02/22/2022 SUBDYNAMIC LOCATING SERVICES 766.25 


992738 02/28/2022 MARCUS HERNANDEZ 1,000.00 


992739 02/28/2022 CALIFORNIA SCHOOL NURSES ORG 765.00 


992740 02/28/2022 SANTA CRUZ METRO 5,835.00 


992741 02/28/2022 CINTAS CORPORATIONS 240.34 


992742 02/28/2022 ELITE INTERACTIVE SOLUTIONS LLC 5,626.05 


992743 02/28/2022 HOME DEPOT INC 757.18 


992744 02/28/2022 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 205.08 


992745 02/28/2022 KELLY MOORE PAINT CO 47.79 


992746 02/28/2022 SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME CENTER 232.60 


992747 02/28/2022 WESTSIDE HARDWARE 15.27 


992748 02/28/2022 19SIX ARCHITECTS 914.00 


992749 02/28/2022 COLBI TECHNOLOGIES INC 2,070.00 


992750 02/28/2022 DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT 30,621.69 


992751 02/28/2022 PSR ELECTRIC 8,742.00 


992752 02/28/2022 SECUREALL CORPORATION 1,592.92 


992753 02/28/2022 KEENAN 666.00 


992754 02/28/2022 ABRITE ORGANIZATION, THE 118,728.83 


992755 02/28/2022 ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 22,208.69 


992756 02/28/2022 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 2,266.20 


Unpaid Tax


2,266.28 Expensed Amount


.08 


992757 02/28/2022 APPI 327.70 


Page 4 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Mar  1 2022  


9:46AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


27/268







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 02/16/2022 through 03/01/2022


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


Unpaid Tax


326.94 Expensed Amount


.76-


992758 02/28/2022 APPLE COMPUTER INC 3,136.06 


992759 02/28/2022 B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 84.10 


992760 02/28/2022 BALANCE4KIDS 46,716.94 


992761 02/28/2022 BROPRINTS INC 820.47 


992762 02/28/2022 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 3,238.78 


992763 02/28/2022 COAST LOCK & SAFE 696.47 


992764 02/28/2022 COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 2,267.49 


992765 02/28/2022 COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC 565.75 


992766 02/28/2022 EASTER SEALS CENTRAL CALIF 14,149.13 


992767 02/28/2022 FLYERS ENERGY LLC 2,888.46 


992768 02/28/2022 GOPHER SPORT 87.86 


992769 02/28/2022 GRAY'S MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS 155.00 


992770 02/28/2022 GREENBACKER DBA MAGNOLIA SUN LLC 4,014.32 


992771 02/28/2022 INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE OR 550.00 


992772 02/28/2022 JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD 1,233.76 


992773 02/28/2022 KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN INC 12,181.59 


992774 02/28/2022 KONE INC 1,866.16 


992775 02/28/2022 NORTH BAY FORD 440.36 


992776 02/28/2022 OFFICE DEPOT 54.68 


992777 02/28/2022 PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 113.78 


992778 02/28/2022 PROVO CANYON SCHOOL 13,825.00 


992779 02/28/2022 PSR ELECTRIC 3,973.00 


992780 02/28/2022 SAFEWAY STORES INC ACCT 58624 21.25 


992781 02/28/2022 SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL 237.25 


992782 02/28/2022 SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION 136.85 


992783 02/28/2022 SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIF 520.00 


992784 02/28/2022 SILKE COMMUNICATIONS INC 415.18 


992785 02/28/2022 SOUL SHOPPE PROGRAMS 2,700.00 


992786 02/28/2022 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 415.15 


992787 02/28/2022 STEPS TO SUCCESS 750.00 


992788 02/28/2022 VALLEY ATHLETICS FIELD SOLUTIONS INC 2,772.22 


992789 02/28/2022 WINCHESTER SOQUEL DBA NAPA AUTO PARTS 50.84 


1,894,078.38  209Total Number of Checks


Fund Recap


Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount


01 GENERAL/COUNTY SCHOOL 1,630,862.89 183 


11 ADULT EDUCATION 153.88 1 


13 CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE 51,380.50 14 


14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE 395.00 1 


21 BUILDING 193,247.18 11 


40 SPL RESV CAPITAL OUTLAY PRJ 17,061.81 4 


73 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRU 1,000.00 1 


Page 5 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Mar  1 2022  


9:46AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


28/268







Board ReportReqPay12b


Checks Dated 02/16/2022 through 03/01/2022


Pay to the Order ofCheck DateCheck Number Check Amount


Net (Check Amount)


Less Unpaid Tax Liability


Total Number of Checks 1,894,101.26 209 


22.88 


1,894,078.38 


Page 6 of 6


Generated for Beatriz Solorzano (BSOLORZANO), Mar  1 2022  


9:46AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


29/268







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Notice of Completion for Bond Contract 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept one notice of completion for Bond funded contract. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications of the vendor 
contracts. The District has determined that this project is complete. The Board is asked to 
accept completion of this project by approving the attached Notice of Completion, which will 
be duly filed with the County. In order to comply with Public Contract Code, this Notice of 
Completion must be made official so that the District can pay the contractor by required 
timelines and not incur financial penalties.  
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


CONTRACTOR PROJECT Completion Date 


Anaya Construction Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing January 28, 2022 


30/268







 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
Facility Services 


536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
(831) 429-3904 


 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 


Date: 


To: 


Project: 


March 9, 2022 


 Anaya Construction 


Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing, 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT HEREBY GIVES NOTICE THAT: 
 
 


The address of this School District is 133 Mission Street, Suite l00, Santa Cruz, California 95060. 
 
 


On      10/20/2021     , this District contracted with: Anaya Construction as 
 


Contractor; and with   Western Surety Company as Surety for said Contractor, for work of 
 


   Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing     performed on District grounds at:  415 Walnut Ave  
 
  Santa Cruz, Ca 95060.  
 
 
 


It has been certified that this work has been inspected and complies with the plans and specifications, and 


that the Contractor competed the work on   January 28, 2022    


The work of improvement described above is accepted as completed, and the Assistant Superintendent 


for Business Services has filed for recording this Notice as a Notice of Completion in connection with 


that contract. 


 
 
 
 
 
                                                             


Jim Monreal 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


 
31/268







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Certificated Personnel Actions 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, California 


Education Code and the negotiated contract. 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 


opportunities. 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 


cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 


within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 


teaching. 


 
 
 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


32/268







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


2021-2022 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Larissa Adams, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Lindsey Behr, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


 


Kali Campbell, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


 


Jason Dilles, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Stacey Falls, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Sarina Fernandez, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


James Gaynor, Weight Lifting Enrichment Provider, Harbor High, 1/16/22 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 


100 hours. 


  


Katie Hochler, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Michelle Hubbard, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


 


Lillie Lazarus, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Stacy Newsom Kerr, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not 


to exceed 20 hours. 


 


  


33/268







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


2021-2022 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS (continued): 


 


Molly O’Neil, Costanoa Math Coach, Branciforte Small Schools, 2/16/22 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 14 


hours. 


 


Tyler Olson, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Suzzanne Ordway, ELPAC Training & Testing, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 1/16/22 – 


3/15/22, not to exceed 16 hours. 


 


Larissa Owechko, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Stacy Palmer Henderson, PE/APE Training and Preparation for District Professional Development Day, 


Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 12/16/21 – 1/15/22, not to exceed 8 hours. 


 


Serena Palumbo, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Julianna Perry, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


  


Nikola Ristic, Mindfulness Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill, 10/1/21 – 5/15/22, not to exceed 10 


hours. 


 


Jennifer Schmidt, Grading Inquiry Project Research Team, Santa Cruz High, 8/11/21 – 6/15/22, not to 


exceed 20 hours. 


 


Kyle Suess, Native Ways of Knowing Webinar, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 1/16/22 – 


4/15/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


34/268







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


 


AGENDA ITEM:         Classified Personnel Actions 


  
MEETING DATE:    March 9, 2022 


 


FROM:                    Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  
THROUGH:             Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 
           
BACKGROUND: 
The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 
SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 
  
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


35/268







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS  


 


Reviewed by Director-Classified Personnel: Keneé Houser 2/28/2022 


 


• Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments • 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular):   


Ayala Melendres, Cynthya, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - BMS, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 


2/22/22 


Enger, Randall, Playground/Recess Coach - GA, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 2/28/22 


Sandas Harvey, Paula, Paraeducator - WL, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 2/22/22 


Waters, Peggy, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, .4 hrs/9 mos, effective 2/28/22 


Yates, Kevin, Paraeducator-After School - BV, 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 2/22/22 


Decrease FTE/Hrs & Mos:     


Maldonado Ortega, Arlett, Paraeducator-After School - GA, from 3.9 hrs/9 mos to 3.3 hrs/9 


mos, effective 2/22/22 


Medina, Jesus, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, from 1.05 hrs/9 mos to .6 hrs/9 mos, effective 2/14/22 


Add Position:     


Medina, Jesus, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - WL, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 2/14/22     


 


• Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes • 


New Temporary Employees:  


Austin-Lane, Karen, ELPAC Proctor, effective 2/24/22 


Gembe, Emmanuel, Night Custodian, effective 2/7/22 


Reyes, Santana, Night Custodian - M/O, not to exceed 40 hrs, 2/15 - 6/30/22 


Rodriguez, Michael, Campus Safety Supervisor - MHMS, effective 2/22/22 


Ronning, Linda, Paraeducator or Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - DL, effective 2/22/22 


Speka, John, Night Custodian - M/O, effective 2/22/22 


Temporary Employees (Limited Term Assignments):  


Anguiano Gonzalez, Crystal, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 14 hrs, 11/30 - 


12/15/21 


Flores, Adrian, Paraeducator - WL, not to exceed 5.5 hrs, 1/16 - 2/15/22 


Sosa Valdez, Jasmin, Paraeducator - BV, not to exceed 30 hrs, 1/24 - 3/15/22 


Sosa Valdez, Jasmin, Yard Duty Monitor - BV, not to exceed 20 hrs, 1/18 - 3/15/22 


36/268







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


Tristan Lopez, Alejandra, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 200 hrs, 12/16/21 - 


4/15/22 


Webster, Kristen, Paraeducator-After School - SHS, not to exceed 100 hrs, 2/9 - 6/15/22 


Wilson, Anita, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, not to exceed 15 hr, 1/16 - 2/15/22 


Regular Employees (Extra Hours or Limited Term Assignments):  


Adler, Jacqueline, Registrar - SC, not to exceed 40 hrs, 1/16 - 6/30/22 


Adler, Jacqueline, School Administrative Assistant III - SC, not to exceed 16 hrs, 1/5 - 1/6/22 


Bonuccelli, Maria, Health Office Assistant - SC, not to exceed 120 hrs, 12/16/21 - 6/30/22 


Dew, Chris, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 125 hrs, 2/7 - 4/15/22 


Franks, Dorothy, Health Office Assistant - WL, not to exceed 160 hrs, 1/16 - 6/30/22 


Gonzales, Elisa, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 50 hrs, 2/1 - 6/30/22 


Gonzales, Laura, Health Office Assistant - BV, not to exceed 51 hrs, 1/16 - 6/30/22 


Laurance, Elizabeth, Administrative Assistant - M/O, not to exceed 40 hrs, 1/3 - 6/30/22 


Marizette, Gail, Office Assistant - BV, not to exceed 47.5 hrs, 1/16 - 6/30/22 


Medina Bahena, Rita, Parent/Community Support Coordinator - SCHS, not to exceed 3 hrs, 1/16 


- 6/30/22 


Moran, Patricia, Food Service Worker III - FS, not to exceed 15 hrs, 1/16 - 6/15/22 


Serna Castaneda, Jessica, ELPAC Proctor - Curr, not to exceed 83 hrs, 2/14 - 6/30/22 


Sheinbaum, Grainne, Textbook/Media Assistant - HHS, not to exceed 40 hrs, 2/16 - 4/15/22 


Stocker, Christina, Paraeducator-Sped - BV, not to exceed 68 hrs, 1/18 - 6/15/22 


Walls, April, Attendance Technician - SHS, not to exceed 25 hrs, 2/14 - 2/28/22Bachman, 


Retired:    


Young, Jacqueline, Good Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 150 hrs, 2/16 - 6/15/22 


 


• Eligibility Lists Established •  


Attendance Technician 


Behavior Technician Special Education 


Campus Safety Supervisor  


Executive Assistant I  


 


 


 


37/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Board Meeting Schedule for 2022-2023 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Board Meeting Schedule for 2022-2023 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This schedule outlines Board Meetings for the 2022-2023 academic year.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


38/268







DRAFT 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS - BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 2022-23 


YEAR BOARD MEETING DATE LOCATION 


2022 
August   3  –  IDT Appeals & 
potential meeting to take 
action on Bond Measures 


Santa Cruz COE Board Room 
Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2022 August   17 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2022 August 31 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2022 September 14 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2022 September 28 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2022 October 19 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2022 November 2 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2022 
November 16  – Study 
Session 


Santa Cruz COE Board Room 
Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2022 December 14 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 January 11 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 January  18  – Study Session 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 February 8 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 February 22 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 March 8 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 March 22 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 April 12 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 April  26  – Study Session 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 May 10 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 May 24   – Study Session 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 May 31 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 


2023 June 14 
Santa Cruz COE Board Room 


Broadcast to public via Zoom 
 


39/268







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT  
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:                    Nonpublic Agency: ACES  
 
MEETING DATE:                  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:                                 Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency Master Contract for new and continuing services 
through the 2021-2022 regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect 
the identity of students with disabilities, the students’ names have been omitted.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
This contract with ACES will provide required services for four students in Special Education 
which include Behavior Intervention Development and Behavior Intervention Implementation. 
These services are mandated by each of the students’ Individualized Education Plan Service 
period: March 10, 2022 - June 30, 2022. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Not to exceed $71,715.00. Special Education (Restricted)  


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 


  


 Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


40/268







NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN 


SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES 
 
 
 


MASTER CONTRACT 
 


 


2021-2022


41/268







 


MASTER CONTRACT 
GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN,  
NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES 


LEA SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


 
 


Contract Year 2021-2022 


            


 


 
Nonpublic School  


 
Nonpublic Agency  


 


Type of Contract: 


 


X Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the 


term of this contract. 
 


 


  


 Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) 


into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.  


 


 


  


 Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates.  The sole purpose 


of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year’s rates for 90 days at the sole 


discretion of the LEA.  Expiration Date:___________ 


 


 


When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above 


   shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract.


42/268







 


 


I.   GENERAL PROVISIONS                                                                                                                    Page 


   
1. MASTER CONTRACT  1 


2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES  1 


3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS  2 


4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT  2 


5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT    


        FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION  3 


6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  3 


7. DEFINITIONS  4 


   


II.   ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 


   


8. NOTICES  5 


9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS  5 


10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE  6 


11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST  6 


12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW  6 


13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO   


               CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES  6 


14. TERMINATION  6 


15. INSURANCE  6 


16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS  9 


17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR  9 


18. SUBCONTRACTING  9 


19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  10 


20. NON-DISCRIMINATION  10 


 


III.  EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 


 


 


   


21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION  11 


22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION  11 


23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES  12 


24. CLASS SIZE  12 


25. CALENDARS  13 


26. DATA REPORTING  13 


27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT  14 


28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING  14 


29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS  14 


30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS  15 


31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE  16 


32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS  16 


33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH  17 


34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS  17 


35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  17 


36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS  18 


37. TRANSCRIPTS  18 


38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE  19 


   


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


   


43/268







 


39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM  19 


40. PARENT ACCESS  19 


41. LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS 


AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS  19 


42. STATE MEAL MANDATE  20 


43. MONITORING  20 


   


        


EXHIBIT A: RATES  32 


EXHIBIT B:  INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  34 


   


  


IV. PERSONNEL   


   


44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS  21 


45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS  21 


46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS  22 


47. STAFF ABSENCE  23 


48.  STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR  23 


   


V.    HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES    


   


49. HEALTH AND SAFETY  23 


50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS  24 


51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION  24 


52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING  24 


53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING  24 


54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT  25 


55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN  25 


   


VI.  FINANCIAL   


   


56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,   


        ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES  25 


57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT  26 


58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES  27 


59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES  27 


60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY  28 


61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT  28 


62. RATE SCHEDULE  29 


63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION   29 


44/268







 


1 
 


 


 


2021-2022                                                              CONTRACT NUMBER: 
 


 CONTRACT NUMBER: 
 


  


LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY:  Santa Cruz City Schools   
 


NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER:        
 


NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES  


MASTER CONTRACT 
 


AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 


1. MASTER CONTRACT  


  


 This Master Contract (or “Contract”) is entered into on July 1, 2021, between  Santa Cruz City Schools_, 


hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the North Santa Cruz County 


SELPA and ACES 2020, LLC (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A 


or “CONTRACTOR” for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students 


with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 


56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, 


Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004).  It is understood that this agreement does 


not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or 


CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized 


LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.  
 


Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement 


(hereinafter referred to as “ISA”).  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge 


CONTRACTOR’s obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student’s Individualized 


Education Program (hereinafter referred to as “IEP”).  The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days 


of a student’s enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by 


CONTRACTOR.  As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP 


system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing. 
 


  Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter 


referred to as “OAH”) order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or 


authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not 


responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP 


team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is 


signed by the student’s parent.  
 


2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES 


 


CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as 


“CDE”) as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and 


licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq 


and within the professional scope of practice of each provider’s license, certification and/or credential.  A 


current copy of CONTRACTOR’s NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE 


pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement 


is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver 


is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. 


Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the 


Master Contract. 


 


45/268







 


2 
 


In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 


operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils 


shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services 


and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities 


Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   


 


  If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI”), CONTRACTOR 


shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state 


to license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional 


needs.  The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, 


and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed.  If the CONTRACTOR 


operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the 


appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.  


 


With respect to CONTRACTOR’s certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any 


changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) 


major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in 


the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract 


by the LEA.  
 


3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS 
 


During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all 


applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations.  


CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into 


consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy 


does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it 


accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA 


under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including 


reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with 


applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related 


services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive 


status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).    


   


CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the 


provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE 


nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a). 
 


4.  TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT 
 


The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 (Title 5 California Code of 


Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated.  Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required 


to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years.  The parties acknowledge that any subsequent 


Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2022.  In the event the contract negotiations are not 


agreed to by June 30th, the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days.  (Title 


5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d))  No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all 


of the contracting requirements have been satisfied.  The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR 


is at the sole discretion of the LEA. 


 


The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent 


contractors.  Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR’s ownership or authorized representative shall be 


provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized 


representative.   


 


 


 


46/268







 


3 
 


 


5.   INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR 


TERMINATION 
 


This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference.  This Master 


Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement.  This Master 


Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.   


 


CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract 


or a renewal. 


 


At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance 


documentation and CDE certification.  The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the 


application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued.  If 


CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative 


within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the 


newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new 


Master Contract’s effective date.  If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such 


ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school 


year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) 


and (2)).  In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be 


bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between 


CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion 


of the LEA. 


 


6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“ISA”) 


  


 This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide 


special education and/or related services.   An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the 


approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A).  An ISA may be effective for 


more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect.  In the event that 


this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms 


and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as 


CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.  


 


Any and all changes to a student’s educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract 


and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student’s IEP or by written agreement 


between the parent and LEA.  At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student’s parent, 


CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student’s IEP subject to all procedural safeguards 


required by law.  


 


 Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified 


in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA.  (California Education Code 


sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)).  In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service 


at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) 


business days of the last date a service was provided.  CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent 


compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student 


was served by the NPS/A. 


 


If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, 


CONTRACTOR shall abide by the “stay-put” requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees 


otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH 


consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.  CONTRACTOR shall adhere 


to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.  


 


47/268







 


4 
 


Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master 


Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, 


or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code 


section 56366(c) (2). 


 


7. DEFINITIONS   


 


 The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract: 


 


a. The term “CONTRACTOR” means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the 


California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.  


 


b. The term “authorized LEA representative” means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible 


for NPS/A.  It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 


of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA.  


The LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract. 


 


c. The term “credential” means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special 


education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of 


Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which 


entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as 


defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g). 


 


d. The term “qualified”  means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent 


to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and 


designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, 


registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is 


providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 


of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in 


Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards 


of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards 


contained in the California Business and Professions  Code. 


 


Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate 


needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate 


degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations.  


(Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)). 


  


e  The term “license” means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the 


Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and 


authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to 


themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board 


and care services at a residential placement.  If a license is not available through an appropriate 


state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at 


the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to 


a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations 


section 3001(l). 


 


f. “Parent” means: 


i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal 


authority to make educational decisions for the child,  


ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child’s parent or authorized to make 


educational decisions for the  child,  


iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, 


stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally 


responsible for the child’s welfare,   


48/268







 


5 
 


iv. a surrogate parent,  


v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational 


decisions on the child’s behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance 


with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).   


 


Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under 


contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services 


for a child. (California Education Code section 56028). 


 


g. The term “days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 


 


h. The phrase “billable day” means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those 


in comparable LEA programs. 


 


i. The phrase “billable day of attendance” means a school day as defined in California Education 


Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet 


or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA. 


 


j. It is understood that the term “Master Contract” also means “Contract” and is referred to as such in 


this document. 


 


ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 
 


8. NOTICES 
  


All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing.  Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand 


and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.    


 


All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page 


of the Master Contract.  Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of 


this Master Contract. 


 


9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS   


 


 All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations.  


Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) 


years after the termination of this Master Contract.  For purposes of this Master Contract, “records” shall 


include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) 


including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code 


of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service 


logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; 


daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional 


instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports 


(BER); incident reports; notification of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, 


telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, 


such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials 


held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates 


of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer 


sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules 


when applicable; liability and worker’s compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications by-


laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general 


journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents 


evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled 


checks or facsimile thereof.   


 


49/268







 


6 
 


 CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent 


unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of 


CONTRACTOR’s employees who have access to confidential records.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain an 


access log for each student’s record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or 


receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education 


Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for 


each individual requesting or receiving information from the student’s record.  Such log needs to record 


access to the student’s records by: (a) the student’s parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has 


been executed by the student’s parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate 


educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record.  CONTRACTOR/LEA shall 


maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records.  For purposes of this 


paragraph, “employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR” do not include subcontractors.  CONTRACTOR shall 


grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents’ requests for copies of student records, as 


required by state and federal laws and regulations.  CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency 


closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA.  These shall include, but not 


limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER’s, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other 


relevant reports.  LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon 


request within five (5) business days. 


 


10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 


 


 If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the 


remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect. 


 


11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 


 


 This contract binds CONTRACTOR’s successors and assignees.  CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of 


any change of ownership or corporate control.   
 


12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW 


  


 The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the 


County where the LEA is located. 


 


13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND 


ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES 


 


This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory 


guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency.  The party seeking such modification 


shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days’ notice of any such changes or modifications 


made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which 


the modification or changes are based. 


 


14. TERMINATION   


 


 This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause.  The cause shall not be the availability of a public 


class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the 


public school program at an IEP team meeting.  To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty 


(20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, 


CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain 


under this Master Contract.  ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 


5 or 6.  CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause.  To terminate the ISA, either party shall 


give twenty (20) days prior written notice.  


 


15.       INSURANCE   


 


50/268







 


7 
 


CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the 


term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer 


with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, 


liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with 


CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the 


work or any component or part thereof: 


 


 PART I -  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES 


 


A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, 


with limits as follows:  


                         


$2,000,000 per occurrence 


$   500,000 fire damage 


$       5,000 medical expenses 


$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury 


$3,000,000 general aggregate 


$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate 
 


The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual 


molestation or abuse.  In the event that CONTRACTOR’s policy should have an exclusion for 


sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a 


supplemental policy providing such coverage. 


 


B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor 


Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations 


pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage).  The Workers’ 


Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits 


of $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.   
 


C. Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with 


a $1 million combined single limit.  


 


If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.  


 


If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from 


students’ homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR 


must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements. 


 


D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, 


including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is 


afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by 


endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits: 
 


                                    $1,000,000 per occurrence 


                                    $2,000,000 general aggregate 
 


E.     CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request, 


shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage.  The certificate 


of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision.  The Commercial 


General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of 


Education additional insured’s premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by 


CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this 


contract at no additional charge. 


 
F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above $100,000 must be declared to and approved 


by the LEA.  At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR’s 


51/268







 


8 
 


sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such 


deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or 


(b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation. 


G. For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the 


CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, 


its subsidiaries, officials and employees.   Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 


LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's 


insurance and shall not contribute with it. 


 


H. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency 


submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on 


the certificate. 


 


             PART II -  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED 


WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY (“RTC”) 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a residential treatment center (NPS/RTC), the following 


insurance policies are required: 


 


A. Commercial General Liability including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits 


as follows:  


 


$3,000,000 per occurrence 


$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.  


 


The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as named additional 


insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be 


applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC’s insurance primary 


despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC’s policy.  Coverage shall be maintained with no 


Self-Insured Retention above $100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA. 


 


B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor 


Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to 


the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage).  The Workers’ Compensation Insurance 


coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of 


$1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.   


C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per 


Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service.  If the RTC provides student bus 


services, the required coverage limit is $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence. 


D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees 


who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other 


assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be $250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured 


retention. 


E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice coverage with minimum limits of 


$3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.   


F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the 


Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum 


limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.   


 


If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section 


is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations. 


52/268







 


9 
 


 


16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS   


 


To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board 


Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors (“LEA 


Indemnities”) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 


resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, 


damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of 


CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed 


directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall 


arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member 


District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense 


at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier. 


  


 To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board 


Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors (“CONTRACTOR 


Indemnities”) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 


resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, 


damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of 


LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or 


indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities). 


 


 LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the self-


insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that 


its self-insurance covers the LEA’s indemnification obligations under this Master Contract. 


 


17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR   


  


 Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent 


relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this 


Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any 


commitment on behalf of the other.  Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any 


association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or 


employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any 


individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.   


 


 If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principle, employer or co-employer of 


CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and 


all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, 


taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.   


  


18. SUBCONTRACTING   


 


CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education 


and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract.  In the event LEA determines that it can provide 


the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s).  If LEA elects to 


provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of 


receipt of CONTRACTOR’s original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s). 


 


CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the 


fullest extent reasonably possible.  Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the 


provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any 


student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term 


of each subcontract. Such subcontractor’s insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15.  Each 


subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting 


coverage required by Section 15.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer 


53/268







 


10 
 


to bind coverage on its behalf.  The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA.  All 


endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor’s work commences.  


The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the 


LEA Board of Education as additional insured. 


 


As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor’s insurer may provide complete, certified copies of 


all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master 


Contract.  All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or 


agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency 


submitting the certificate.  In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in 


Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.  


 


19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  


 


 CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its 


Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated.  CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of 


Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict 


of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 


including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, 


and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student’s advocate.  Pursuant to California Education code 


section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not 


recommend placement at CONTRACTOR’s facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted 


by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of 


interest. 


 


Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with 


CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education 


and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR 


to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR 


regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is 


enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a 


report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid 


conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation 


(hereinafter  referred to as “IEE”) and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE 


by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom 


the IEE is requested.  Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator 


whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund.   When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request 


and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has 


read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special 


education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an 


individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to 


executing this contract.  This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated 


instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to 


ten months of the school year by LEA. 


 


  CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a 


private pay or tuition free “scholarship” basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to 


pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings. 


 


20. NON-DISCRIMINATION   


 


CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the 


basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, 


age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or 


54/268







 


11 
 


expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal 


or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group 


with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.  


 


EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM  
 


21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE) 


 


The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition 


Plan (hereinafter referred to as “ITP”) of each student served by CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR shall 


provide to each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the 


NPS/A consistent with the student’s IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, 


CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services 


outlined in the student’s IEP.  If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services 


Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.  


  


Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for 


the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the 


student’s IEP and ISA.  CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education 


and/or related services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, 


assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student’s enrollment under the terms 


of this Master Contract).   LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low 


incidence disabilities when specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property 


of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment 


is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS.  CONTRACTOR shall ensure 


that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health 


and safety regulations.  CONTRACTOR may charge a student’s parent(s) for services and/or activities not 


necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the 


student’s parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the 


LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student’s parent(s) of the cost 


and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities.  CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA 


requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility. 


 


Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public 


education shall not interfere with the student’s receipt of special education and/or related services as 


specified in the student’s IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in 


writing. 


 


22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION 


 


All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification 


and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 et seq..  


  


  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR’s general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize 


evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA’s standards regarding the particular course of study 


and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, 


assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE’s standards regarding the particular 


course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  Students 


shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted  Common Core State Standards 


(“CCSS”) for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; 


and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, 


used by a local education agency (LEA), that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c) 


extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and 


vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental 


assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college 


counseling.   


55/268







 


12 
 


 


When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to 


CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading 


toward graduation or completion of LEA’s diploma requirements.    CONTRACTOR shall not award a high 


school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA’s graduation requirements. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR’s general program of 


instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE 


guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  The NPA providing 


Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service 


for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA.  School-


based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided 


at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team.  Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR 


that is a Licensed Children’s Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the 


presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or 


caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as 


requested.   LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is 


present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately 


notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to 


LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master 


Contract.  CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or 


trained equivalent on staff.  It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE 


Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for 


transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing. 


 


23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES   


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by 


CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided 


to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed 


in accordance with the student’s IEP. 


 


For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student’s IEP 


and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at 


the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA. 


 


The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual 


instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise 


specified in the student’s IEP. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school 


day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed in accordance with the 


student’s IEP. 


 


24. CLASS SIZE  


 


 When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of 


one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing.  Upon 


prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a 


ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to 


provide services to students with disabilities. 


 


 In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, 


and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school, 


56/268







 


13 
 


the NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated 


staff.  The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may 


be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher.  Such an agreement shall be in 


writing and signed by both parties.  This provision does not apply to a NPA. 


 


CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between 


the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child 


ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq. 


 


25. CALENDARS  


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with 


the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent 


to the number of days determined by the LEA’s extended school year calendar.  Billable days shall include 


only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the 


IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student.  CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school 


calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA.  Nothing 


in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes. 


 


Unless otherwise specified by the students’ IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site.  A 


student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP 


Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA.  Extended school year shall consist of 


twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA.  Any 


days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, 


prior to the start of the extended school year. 


 


Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school 


year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be 


eligible for payment.  It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays 


and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the 


delivery of any NPS service.  Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at 


the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA.  Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran’s 


Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President’s Day, 


Memorial Day and Independence Day.  With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date 


upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved 


calendar prior to the initiation of services.  CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified 


in the LEA-developed/approved calendar.  CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-


developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and ISA.  Unless otherwise specified 


in the LEA student’s ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those 


days that the LEA student’s school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school.  


CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the 


LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing.  Student must have actually 


been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to 


be eligible for payment.  It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on 


weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, 


in advance of the delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR.  Any instructional days 


provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 


 


26. DATA REPORTING  


 


  CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing 


information with LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract, 


57/268







 


14 
 


including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA.  It is 


understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, 


service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA.  Additional 


progress reporting may be required by the LEA.  The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with 


appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access. 


 


  Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon 


by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of 


all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a 


disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education 


Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral 


restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900 


and 48915. 


   


  The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, 


but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports.  The LEA may approve use of 


CONTRACTOR’S provided forms at their discretion. 


 


27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT  


 


  CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive 


Environment (“LRE”) options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to 


have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum 


extent appropriate. 


 


  CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings 


regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed.  This shall include IEP team consideration 


of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary 


to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings. 


 


When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, 


CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team’s recommended activities to support 


the transition.   


 


28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING  


 


  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer 


all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


(“CAASPP”), Desired Results Developmental Profile (“DRDP”), California Alternative Assessment 


(“CAA”), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness 


Gram, , the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (“ELPAC”), and as appropriate to 


the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.  


 


CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code 


section 52052, in the same manner as public schools.  Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by 


the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability 


program.  LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR’S qualified staff.   


CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as 


required by LEA. 


 


29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS 


 


CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and 


procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of:  curriculum, high school graduation, 


standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, 


dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized 


58/268







 


15 
 


testing and IEPs.  LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings.  


Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s). 


 


30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS   


 


 CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, et seq., 56521.1 


and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others 


must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with 


the federal law and it’s implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) team 


determines that a student’s behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is 


required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to 


address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States 


Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention 


Plan (“BIP”), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student’s behavioral problems 


through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 


regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that 


all of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based 


practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR’s pupil 


population.  The training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact 


or interaction with pupils during the schoolday, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction 


with pupils during the schoolday. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance 


with California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the 


training and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request. 


 


Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for 


a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions 


may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of 


serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately 


prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the 


behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from 


the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as 


a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others.  It 


requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical 


intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property 


damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used.  Emergencies require 


a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours 


for administrative action.  CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone.  


If the student’s IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan (“BIP”) or Positive Behavior Intervention 


Plan (“PBIP”), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine 


if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan.  If the student 


already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been 


exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule 


with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.    


    


  Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay 


for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: 


(1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, 


electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant 


sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies 


adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An 


intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, 


ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive 


59/268







 


16 
 


interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, 


including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques 


may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in 


a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that 


precludes adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or 


more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child’s learning or that of 


others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral 


interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 


1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. 


 


 All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are 


used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple 


uses by the same individual.  CONTRACTOR shall notify the student’s parent/guardian when any type of 


physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used.  Upon the use of any type of physical or 


mechanical restraint or seclusions of a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the 


reporting and notification requirements listed above.   


 


31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE  


 


 CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with 


state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education 


or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, 


on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA 


student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory 


offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents 


resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of 


Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915. 


 


When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for 


disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA.  


Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to:  the student’s name; the time, date, and 


description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such 


disciplinary action.  A copy of the student’s behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written 


discipline report.   CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an 


IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10th) day of suspension.   


  


32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS   


 


 An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each 


student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of 


Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the 


NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student’s IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be 


transitioned to a public school setting.  (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) 


and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)   


 


 If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for 


any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided 


to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as 


the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the 


transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each 


student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team.  Except 


as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team 


meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed.  At any time during the term 


of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student’s 


IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and 


participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting.  Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team 


60/268







 


17 
 


meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA.  


CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers 


upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures.  It is understood that attendance at an IEP 


meeting is part of CONTRACTOR’S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this 


Master Contract. 


  


 It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for 


all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA’s discretion.  The LEA or SELPA may provide training 


for any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system.  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain 


confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the 


system.  When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of 


the approved system for that student. 


 


Changes in any student’s educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting 


provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student’s IEP.  In 


the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the 


CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student’s IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change 


in the student’s placement.  Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement 


unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and 


appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.   


 


33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH 


 


 CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as 


the child’s parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under 


the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-


300.756.  A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 


42238.01(b).  The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the 


educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time 


after the completion of the pupil’s second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil 


in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice 


otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1. 


 


34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS   


 
CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations 


and hearings, as requested by LEA.  Participation further includes the willingness to make 


CONTRACTOR’s staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due 


process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of 


documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any 


other state and/or federal governmental body or agency.  Full participation shall include, but in no way be 


limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator 


and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of 


CONTRACTOR’s program and/or the implementation of a particular student’s IEP/Individual and Family 


Service Plan (“IFSP”). 


 


35.  COMPLAINT PROCEDURES   


 
  CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent 


complaints.  These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with 


appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following:  (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures 


pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 et seq.; (2) Nondiscrimination policy 


pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, 


California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) 


(d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and 


61/268







 


18 
 


Accountability Act (“HIPAA”).  CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. 


CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students 


and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, 


including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation. 


 
36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS   


 
 Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall 


provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards.  At a minimum, progress reports 


shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives.  A copy of the progress reports/report 


cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR’s place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and 


LEA student’s parent(s) quarterly. 


 


 The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to 


determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data 


sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress 


on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans.  The LEA may request such 


data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service.  The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data 


supporting progress within five (5) business days of request.  Additional time may be granted as needed by 


the LEA. 
 


CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the 


student’s annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student’s present 


levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and 


pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices.  CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of 


its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days 


prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols 


and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.  


 


The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, 


progress reporting and development of present levels of performance.  All assessments resulting from an 


assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that 


CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment.  Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be 


added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA’s sole discretion. 


 


It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA.  For NPA 


services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, 


shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA.  Supervision means the direct observation of 


services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each 


professional’s license, certification, or credential. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student’s parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report 


cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings.  


It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It 


is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil’s 


record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request. 


 


37. TRANSCRIPTS  


 


  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, 


or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on 


LEA approved forms to the student’s school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of 


diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures.  CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of 


students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA. 


 


 


62/268







 


19 
 


38.  STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE   


 


  Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student’s change of 


residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student’s change of residence as specified 


in LEA Procedures.  Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation 


to notify CONTRACTOR of the student’s change of residence.  CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and 


provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents. 


 


 If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student’s change of 


residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA 


shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student’s change of residence.   


 


39.  WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM   


 


CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business 


days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including 


student’s change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student’s discharge 


against professional advice from a NPS/RTC. 


 


40. PARENT ACCESS   


 


 CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not 


limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters.  


CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA 


students. 


 


CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent’s reasonable 


request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC.  CONTRACTOR shall require 


that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA 


at least thirty (30) days in advance.  CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations 


and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate.  Payment by LEA for approved travel-


related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.  


 


CONTRACTOR providing services in the student’s home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least 


one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an 


emergency, is present.  The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA 


prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency 


situations.  The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization 


for emergency situation.  The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the 


NPS/NPA service provider. 


 


All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing, 


to the LEA. 


 


41. LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION (“LCI”) CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL 


TREATMENT CENTER (“RTC”) CONTRACTORS   


 


  If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational 


placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and 


Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005), 


AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter 


772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. An LCI 


shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility. 


 


If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the 


Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code 


63/268







 


20 
 


section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education 


Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code 


Regs., Title 5, section 3001 et seq., regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential 


care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student’s IEPs. CONTRACTOR shall meet all 


monitoring requirements as noted in Section 43 below. 
 


  If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall 


provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special 


education.  For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education 


eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each 


student’s IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA. 


 


  Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed 


agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement 


until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement 


is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student’s parent or another adult with educational decision-


making rights. 


 


In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 


operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, 


special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the 


federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   


 


42. STATE MEAL MANDATE  


 


  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under 


California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550. 


 


43. MONITORING   


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit 


during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a 


master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to 


the pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward 


the goals set forth in the pupil’s individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making 


toward the goals set forth in the pupil’s behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the 


pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA (or SELPA) shall report the findings 


resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of 


the onsite visit.  


 


The LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does 


not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement. 


 


 CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring 


of each student’s instructional program.  LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe 


the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student’s records and progress.  Such 


access shall include unannounced monitoring visits.  When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to 


CONTRACTOR's site administrative office.  CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review 


of each student’s progress. 


 


 If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether 


CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 


1501.1(b).   


 


 The State Superintendent of Public Instruction (“Superintendent”) shall monitor CONTRACTOR’S 


facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching 


64/268







 


21 
 


staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the 


standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall 


complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and 


(3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as 


aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code 


section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant 


state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-


up or corrective action procedures related to review findings. 


 


CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause.  


The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; 


curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance. 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the 


applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California 


Education Code Section 33126. 


 


PERSONNEL 
 


44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS   


 


CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 


35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California 


Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as “CDOJ”) and clearance from the Federal Bureau of 


Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers who will 


have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students.  CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that 


CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI 


clearance are ascertained.  CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and 


volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, 


or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious 


felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the 


employee’s conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for 


employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j).  Contractor shall certify to LEA 


that they have successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all 


employees who may come into contact with students.  


 


Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, 


CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal 


background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each 


owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A.  CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, 


as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency.  Background 


clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 


11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.  


 


 45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS  


 


  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by 


CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, 


certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold  


in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to 


Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code 


of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065.  Such qualified staff may only provide related services 


within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each 


65/268







 


22 
 


profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special 


education teacher’s scope of practice.   


 
  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services 


to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided 


to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)). 


 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and 


instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The 


administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An 


administrative credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of 


experience with pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school 


counseling or psychology. (C) A license as a clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral 


Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master’s degree 


issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling, 


behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special 


education instruction and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming 


an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral 


Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A 


license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California 


Education Code Section 56366.1 (a)(5)) 


 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and 


teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 


45340 et seq. and 45350 et seq.  Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, 
instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by 


CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a 


high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications:  (a) 


completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate’s 


(or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or 


local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; 


or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and 


mathematics readiness, as appropriate.   CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations 


governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.  


 


In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that 


operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by 


that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with 


Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).   


 


46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS   


 


CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, 


certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or 


related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by 


CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents 


are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools.    CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA 


with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test 


clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to 


work with any student. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other 


documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR.  


CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes 


occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. 


CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers 


66/268







 


23 
 


are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or 


lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be 


obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are 


expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is 


providing services under this Master Contract.  Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in 


credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension 


or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA. 


 


47. STAFF ABSENCE  


         


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR’s service provider 


is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as 


determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s 


service providers.  It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute 


for their student.  LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or 


CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified 


service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been 


provided.  CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or “carry over” make up service hours under any 


circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA 


representative. 


 


48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR 


SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME 


 


It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to 


the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services.  All practices shall only be within 


the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession 


as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made 


available to the CONTRACTOR.   


 


For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A 


providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus 


consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the 


CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is 


responsible for the instructional program. 


 


CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student’s school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that 


at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in 


an emergency is present during provision of services.  The names of any adult caregiver other than the 


parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and 


signed authorization in emergency situations.  The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer 


associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR 


to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA. 


 


HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES 
 


49. HEALTH AND SAFETY   


 


 CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, 


ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety.  CONTRACTOR 


shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 et. seq., 49406, and Health 


and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR’s employees and 


volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual 


volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before 


an individual comes in contact with a student. 


 


67/268







 


24 
 


 CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal 


Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student.  


CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and 


to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code. 


 


50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS   


 


  CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply 


with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to:  


disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning 


permits; and occupancy capacity.  When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire 


drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550.  CONTRACTOR shall be 


responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR’s facilities as required 


complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the 


LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension 


or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA. 


 


51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION  


 


CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when 


CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication 


during the school day.  CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the 


administration of such medication after the student’s parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written 


statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which 


such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student’s parent(s) granting 


CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician’s statement.  


CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements.  


CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered.  Such 


written log shall specify the student’s name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each 


administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR’s employee who administered the medication.  


CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration 


of such medication consistent with physician’s written orders.  Any change in medication type, 


administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.   


 


52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING   


 


 CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA.  


CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures 


specified in LEA Procedures.  


 


53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING   


 


CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are 


familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and 


procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To 


protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain 


confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates.  A written statement acknowledging the 


legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted 


to the LEA.  


 


 


 


 


54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 


 


68/268







 


25 
 


CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds 


of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR’s policy, as 


well as federal and state law.  The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of 


retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints.  


CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning 


sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.  


 


55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN   


 


  CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to 


adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 


49370.  A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of 


staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA.  The written statement shall be 


submitted as specified by the LEA. 


 


FINANCIAL 
 


56.  ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND 


BILLING PROCEDURES  


 


  CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an 


appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to 


implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student. 


 


  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance 


reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA 


Procedures.  CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services 


specified in the student’s IEP and ISA.  All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms 


and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and 


services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides.  Original attendance 


forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for 


instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be 


completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available 


for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five 


(5) years thereafter.  CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the 


basis of services being billed for payment. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month 


when education or related services were provided.  Invoices and related documents shall be properly 


submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA. 


At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and 


times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed 


to by the LEA;  name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service 


and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing 


that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; 


verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent 


with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly 


or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service 


was provided.   


 


In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.  


 


69/268







 


26 
 


Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract.  At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic 


invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the 


CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training. 


 


Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period 


in which the services were rendered.  LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number 


of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) 


days of LEA’s receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in 


California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA.   CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and 


submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA.  LEA 


shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely 


corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA. 


 


In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) 


extend beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year.  In no case shall any rebilling for the Master 


Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year 


unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay 


in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, 


but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year.  If the billing or re-billing error is the 


responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have 


communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year.  


LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee. 


 


57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT   


  


 LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when:  (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole 


or in part,  under the terms of this contract;  (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days 


other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive 


services; (c)  CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of 


its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation 


with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e)  education and/or related services are provided to 


students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f)  LEA has 


not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning  one or more students 


enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student’s 


change of residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to 


notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation;   or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from 


Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood 


that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close 


of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.  


 


 Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a 


Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for 


regular ongoing operations.  In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a 


review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA.  Such review or audit will be completed within ninety 


(90) days.  The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR 


determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the 


CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected. 


 


The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding 


paragraph are as follows:  (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of 


overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been 


provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not 


appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e)  the proportionate amount of the invoice 


related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation 


is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for 


the service provided to the student.  


70/268







 


27 
 


 


If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) 


business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding 


payment.  Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA’s withholding payment and the amount to 


be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all 


necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA’s withholding 


payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies.  Upon receipt of 


CONTRACTOR’s written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR’s time to 


correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied. 


If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should 


not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes 


payment should not be withheld.  LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR’s notice within thirty (30) business 


days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes 


payment should not be made.  If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding 


the withholding of payment continues after the LEA’s response to CONTRACTOR’s notice, 


CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.  


After forty-five (45) business days:  The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA’s Representative 


of the dispute in writing.  The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in 


writing within fifteen (15) business days.   


After sixty (60) business days:  Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the 


Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of 


Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2). 
 


58.  PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES   
 


  CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated 


with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR 


shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or 


any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to 


students. 
 


59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES  
  


 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE 
 


 Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an 


appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher’s classroom in accordance with California 


Education Code section 56061.  CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute 


coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures.  Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during 


all instructional time.  LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is 


provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher. 


 


 Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in 


Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute.  LEA will not pay for services unless a 


qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision 


of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on 


which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student’s IEP. 
 


 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE 
 


 If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, no later than the tenth (10th) cumulative day of a student’s unexcused absence, 


CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.   
 


Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California 


Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307.   LEA shall not pay for services provided on days 


71/268







 


28 
 


that a student’s attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under 


state law.  Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be 


adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was 


served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student’s 


attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (“ADA”) reimbursement under state law, nor 


shall student be eligible for make-up services. 
 


NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE 
 


When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and CONTRACTOR’s service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall 


provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless 


LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service providers.  LEA shall not pay for 


services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation 


evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar 


days from the date on which the services should have been provided.  CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or 


“carry over” make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by 


CONTRACTOR and LEA.  In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not 


provided shall be included. 
 


NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE  
 


If CONTRACTOR is a NPA, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5th) 


consecutive service day of the student’s absence.  LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services 


when a student is absent.   


 


 


 


 60.  CONTRACTOR’S CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY  


 A. THE FIRST THREE (3) DAYS OF EMERGENCY SCHOOL CLOSURES:  


For the first three (3) days of any emergency school closure of the CONTRACTOR’s site due to a 


natural disaster or unavoidable crisis event(s) as described under Education Code Section 41422 


(hereinafter “emergency school closure”), payment will be in accord with sub-paragraph “C.2” of 


Paragraph 60, below.   


When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA it serves of any 


lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEA shall work collaboratively to determine the 


need for make-up days or service changes and shall work together to amend the IEP and ISA as 


appropriate.  


B. EXTENDED EMERGENCY SCHOOL CLOSURES EXCEEDING THREE (3) 


CONSECUTIVE SCHOOL DAYS: 


“Extended emergency school closure” is defined as an emergency school closure that exceeds three (3) 


consecutive school days (which may include days from the prior school year), thereby necessitating 


either (A) alternative days/weeks, where a hybrid program involving a combination of physical school 


attendance and Distance Learning Programs is adopted, or (B) 100% Distance Learning, as defined 


below.  For any extended school closure of the CONTRACTOR’s site, the following provisions will 


apply from the first day of the closure: 


72/268







 


29 
 


  1.  Distance Learning Programs:   


In accordance with any the California Department of Education (“CDE”) guidance (whether or not the 


CDE explicitly states its guidance is applicable to nonpublic schools or agencies), and SELPA and/or 


LEA consultation, CONTRACTOR shall provide a Distance Learning Program during an extended 


school closure.  


“Distance learning” means instruction in which the pupil and instructor are in different locations and 


pupils are under the general supervision of a certificated employee of the local educational agency. 


Distance learning may include, but is not limited to, all of the following: 


● Interaction, instruction, and check-ins between teachers and pupils through the use of a 


computer or communications technology. 


● Video or audio instruction in which the primary mode of communication between the pupil and 


certificated employee of the NPS is online interaction, instructional television, video, 


telecourses, or other instruction that relies on computer or communications technology. 


● The use of print materials incorporating assignments that are the subject of written or oral 


feedback. 


 


“In-person instruction” means instruction under the immediate physical supervision and control of a 


certificated employee of the NPS while engaged in educational activities required of the pupil. 


 


For  all  related services and instruction provided through virtual platforms, the CONTRACTOR will 


use due diligence to ensure  the privacy of each student’s learning, in compliance with the Family 


Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”), and the Health Insurance Portability and 


Accountability Act  (“HIPAA”);Children's Internet Protection Act (“CIPA”); Children’s Online Privacy 


Protection Act (“COPPA”); and any other laws which protect the safety and confidentiality of students’ 


information.  


  


During distance learning, safeguards shall be in place in accordance with state mandates, and shall 


include the following:  


  


● Confirmation of provision of access for all pupils to connectivity and devices provided by the 


LEA adequate to participate in the educational program, including distance learning,  and to 


complete assigned work. 


● Content aligned to grade level or alternative standards, provided at a level of quality and 


challenge substantially equivalent to in-person instruction. 


● Academic and other supports designed to address the needs of pupils who are not making 


expected progress or who need support in other areas, such as English learners, pupils in foster 


care or experiencing homelessness, and pupils requiring mental health supports. 


● Designated and integrated instruction in English language development pursuant to Section 


11300 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations for English learners, including assessment 


of English language proficiency, support to access curriculum, the ability to reclassify as fully 


English proficient, and, as applicable, support for dual language learning. 


● Daily live interaction with certificated employees of the NPS and peers for purposes of 


instruction, progress monitoring, and maintaining school connectedness. This interaction may 


take the form of internet or telephonic communication, or by other means permissible under 


public health orders. If daily live interaction is not feasible as part of regular instruction, NPS 


CONTRACTOR and LEA shall develop, with parent and stakeholder input, an alternative plan 


for frequent live interaction that provides a comparable level of service and school 


connectedness. 


73/268







 


30 
 


● Comparable special education services in the form of Distance Learning Plans (addressed below) 


which are substantially equivalent to the quality and rigor of in person services. 


● Procedures to re-engage students who are absent from distance learning for more than three days 


or 60 percent of the instructional days in a school week. On the third day of student absence, or 


at which point the student is absent from distance learning activities for 60 percent of the 


instructional days in a school week, the LEA will be notified by the NPS.  The NPS will 


collaborate with the LEA and determine the necessity of an IEP meeting and/or further 


procedures for student re-engagement. 


 


2.   Distance Learning Services:  


In the event a pupil does not have a Distance Learning Plan in place at the time of an extended 


emergency school closure, the following provisions shall apply for Distance Learning Services: 


a.  Within five (5) days of a school closure, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the 


LEA a plan for the provision of remote and/or distance learning educational services for 


each pupil who will receive special education and/or related services provided by the 


CONTRACTOR through a Distance Learning model or hybrid model (“Distance Learning 


Plan”). The CONTRACTOR and LEA shall discuss and mutually agree to the Distance 


Learning Plan. The LEA shall not unreasonably withhold approval of the Distance Learning 


Plan but may base its approval on the Distance Learning Plan’s consistency with applicable 


state and federal guidance. The CONTRACTOR will implement the agreed-upon Distance 


Learning Plan within ten school days of the emergency closure.  


b.  Based on the applicable ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall submit monthly to LEA 


detailed service tracker logs reflecting dates, times, manner, and description of services 


provided in accordance with the Distance Learning Plan.  


c. Within the current ISAs between the Parties, there may be services that cannot 


reasonably be provided under the Distance Learning Plan. These services will be identified 


in the course of the development of the Distance Learning Plan and CONTRACTOR shall 


not charge for services that cannot be provided. 


d.  If an extended emergency school closure occurs, the LEA may, at any time, 


terminate the Master Contract or the ISA upon twenty (20) days written notice, as provided 


in Section 14 of the Master Contract.  


3.   Legal Guidance.  


Nothing herein shall impede the CDE, Governor, Public Health Officials or Agencies, or state or federal 


legislature from issuing its own guidance, requirements, conditions or reporting requirements.  In that 


event, the parties will adhere to those requirements to the extent applicable, and all Contract provisions 


shall be deemed amended to conform to such requirements as if they were written herein, unless a party 


challenges the directive or applicability of the directive with the CDE, and/or any other judicial or quasi-


judicial body with jurisdiction to adjudicate the challenge.  


  4.  Attendance While Distance Learning Programs are in Effect.  


74/268







 


31 
 


A day of positive student attendance shall be defined during the extended school closure as each 


documented day the student participates in the CONTRACTOR’s Distance Learning Program, for 


either the partial or full program for that day, as documented.  


A student is determined to be “absent” for both Basic Education and Related Services on days 


when there has been no participation by the student with CONTRACTOR’s Distance Learning 


Program and/or support service(s).  


Accessible attendance records will be kept in accordance with procedures agreed upon in Section 9 of 


the Master Contract, as well as detailed services logs reflecting dates, times (including duration), 


manner, and description of services will be provided upon request.  


  5.  Utilization of Behavioral Support Staff in Distance Learning.  


Behavior Implementation Intervention  providers, Behavior Implementation Development providers, 


and Intensive Individualized Services/Special Circumstance Instructional Assistance providers may be 


utilized in alternative ways to support student progress toward goals on the IEP or the Distance Learning 


Plan. The above named support providers who are normally utilized for direct student interaction and 


supervision may be utilized to provide assistance to students and consultation with their family 


members/adult caregivers and/or teachers in facilitating student access to Distance Learning via video, 


telephone, or other virtual methods, as well as via paper packets or other assignments as agreed upon by 


LEA and CONTRACTOR. During the extended emergency school closure period, such services may be 


billed as if they were directly delivered, as detailed below, in lieu of traditionally delivered Designated 


Instructional (Related) Services.  


  6.  Transportation Services for Distance Learning.  


With prior authorization from the SELPA/LEA, for those students with who have transportation 


provided by CONTRACTOR listed on their ISA, in lieu of daily transportation, transportation staff and 


equipment may be utilized up to once per week for student delivery of materials, equipment, or any 


other transportation needed to facilitate Distance Learning Programs. Documentation of transportation 


services will be separately maintained by Nonpublic School CONTRACTOR and submitted with the 


monthly invoice. If a student is transported during the week (e.g., as part of a hybrid model in which 


students are attending in person for part of the week), this service will not be offered because materials 


can be provided directly to the student and brought home by the student.  


C. Payment for Services During Emergency School Closures.  


The billing and payment provisions of the Master Contract and applicable ISAs are modified as follows 


while Distance Learning Programs are in effect during Emergency School Closure during the Regular 


School Year: 


1. Regular School Year:  For students not attending extended school year, payment for 


student attendance does not begin until the first day of Regular School Year. 


75/268







 


32 
 


2. Initial Closure.  During the first three days of the first emergency school closure 


during a contract year, if the LEA receives reimbursement for education services from 


the state for an emergency school closure, the LEA will pay CONTRACTOR at 100% 


for their regularly scheduled services according to the ISA, regardless of whether 


services are provided.  If the LEA does not receive payment during the first three 


days, LEA will pay CONTRACTOR 100% for services provided, and 50% for 


services not provided. 


 


3. Multiple Closures:   In the case of CONTRACTOR experiencing multiple emergency 


closures and multiple re-openings within the course of the school year, the LEA shall 


make payment to the CONTRACTOR for those services provided by the 


CONTRACTOR pursuant to the approved Distance Learning Plan, at the regular rate for 


such services, as set forth in the Master Contract.  


 


 


61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT   
 


 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, 


records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed 


to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement. 


 


CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to:  student records 


as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service 


logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service 


logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior 


intervention aides,  bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone 


logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, 


documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-


paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school 


calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker’s compensation insurance policies; 


state NPS/A certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other 


documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and 


bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.  Such access shall include unannounced 


inspections by LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including 


operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.  


 


CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR’s offices (to be 


specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge.  All records shall be provided to LEA within 


five (5) working days of a written request from LEA.  CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide 


assistance for such examination or audit.  LEA’s rights under this section shall also include access to 


CONTRACTOR’s offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR’s employees.  If any document or 


evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA 


agrees to the use of the electronic format. 
 


CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements 


of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.  
 


If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent 


agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over 


billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA 


shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying 


the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, 


76/268







 


33 
 


CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing and/or 


failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by 


an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. 


CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA’s written notice 


demanding payment. 


  


62. RATE SCHEDULE 
 


 The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum 


dollar amount of the contract.  It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided 


specific services.  Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may 


be adjusted proportionally.  In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on 


the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section 


46200-46208. 


 


 Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified 


personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related 


services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A. 


 


63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 


 
By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that: 


 
(a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are not presently 


debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by 
any Federal agency, and 


 
(b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil 


judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or 
subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or 
otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these 
offenses. 
 


77/268







 


34 
 


The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or 
representatives.  This contract is effective on the       1st    day of July, 2021 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on 
June 30, 2022, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 


 
CONTRACTOR     LEA 
 
 


__ ACES 2020, LLC __________________ ___ SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS ___ 


Nonpublic School/Agency   LEA Name 
 
 
By: ________________________________ By:  __________________________________ 
        Signature                              Date            Signature                                   Date 
 


________________________________ _Kris Munro, Superintendent________________ 
Name and Title of Authorized  Name and Title of Authorized  
Representative Representative   


 
 
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to: Notices to LEA shall be addressed to: 


 


 


Name and Title Name and Title   


Stacy O’Farrell, Director 


Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider LEA   


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


Address Address 


133 Mission St, Suite 100 


City   State        Zip City   State        Zip 


Santa Cruz                     CA                   95060 


Phone                                   Fax Phone   831-429-3410 x 47200      Fax  831-425-3450 


Email Email  sofarrell@sccs.net 


  


 Additional LEA Notification 


(Required if completed) 


 Name and Title 


Fiona Campbell, Administrative Assistant 


 Address 


133 Mission St, Suite 100 


 City   State        Zip 


Santa Cruz                     CA                   95060 


 Phone   831-429-3410 x 47201      Fax  831-425-3450 


 Email 


fionacampbell@sccs.net 


 
 


78/268







 


35 
 


 
EXHIBIT A:   2021-2022 RATES 


 


 


79/268







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Contract Renewal: LaserFiche 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the contract renewal for LaserFiche. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
LaserFiche, a content management company, has supported the District through digitizing 
personnel files when physical copies are no longer needed on site. The District wishes to renew 
the contract for another year as staff continue the transition to online documents for new 
employees in the Human Resource Department. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,212.50  LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  


80/268







Date
Santa Cruz City Schools Main Contact
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 P.O. #
Santa Cruz CA 95060 Sales Rep


Sales Type


CA 95060


Contact: Billing Contact:
Phone/Fax: Phone/Fax:
Email: Email:


Quantity Product # Unit Price Total Price
1 LF MCQ01B $150.00 $150.00
8 LF MNF16B $150.00 $1,200.00
1 LF MCA01B $487.50 $487.50
1 LF MSE10B $375.00 $375.00


Subtotal $2,212.50


TOTAL AMOUNT $2,212.50
Less 


Payment (Check #:              )


AMOUNT DUE $2,212.50


Date


(831) 429-3410


Description
jmonreal@sccs.net jmonreal@sccs.net


LSAP Renewal 
05/19/2022 - 05/18/2023


LSAP LF Quick Fields 
LSAP Named Full User 
LSAP Import Agent 
LSAP LF Avante Server for SQL Express with Workflow 


PLACE YOUR LOGO HERE


Sales Order Agreement


Ship To Bill To
Santa Cruz City Schools Santa Cruz City Schools
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 133 Mission Street, Suite 100


2/17/2022


ProIT Team


Santa Cruz Santa Cruz


Jim Monreal Jim Monreal
(831) 429-3410


CA


Payment Terms for this order are Net 30 Days    INITIAL HERE______________________


PLUS APPLICABLE TAXES


100% of all licensing, software, hardware and/or Block Time to be invoiced and due upon signed quote. Subsequent billing, if applicable, will be based on 
milestones as defined in the Project Management Plan and/or invoiced on signed Letter of Completion.


Customer Acceptance


Authorized Signature Title


X


Print Name


Special Payment Terms & Due Dates


This quote is valid for 30 days post issue. Please note: Customer understands that the above listed products are non-refundable once purchased. 
Signing this document authorizes Ray Morgan Company to purchase the above products on behalf of the customer, and register the products in the 


customer’s name.  


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0843835F-677E-417B-8D52-F43F17CAD7C0


Assistant Superintendent, BusinessJim Monreal


81/268







Ray Morgan Company Terms and Conditions


PROIT SOFTWARE ORDER - TERMS AND CONDITIONS


The terms on this Software Order Form constitute the software purchase agreement between the purchaser and the seller. This is a binding order, not 
subject to cancellation.


The Buyer grants to PROIT a security interest in the above described goods to secure payment of the purchase price. Buyer authorizes PROIT to file a 
UCC-1 Financing Statement, and authorizes PROIT, as Buyer's attorney-in-fact, to execute and file the financing statement. Buyer agrees to pay all of 
PROIT costs in the collection of any amount due hereunder in the recovery of any property, pursuant hereto or in the enforcement of its right against Buyer, 
including reasonable attorney's fees, whether or not suit be brought. Customer agrees that in the event of any default of this agreement, PROIT may 
remove products affected by the default from customer's premises with or without process of law.


Payment terms are upon receipt of invoice (URI) unless otherwise specified. Late charges of 1.5% per month on the outstanding balance will be added if 
payments are not received within 15 days of the invoice date. The minimum late charge is $9.50. Late charges will not exceed the maximum permitted by 
law. Buyer agrees to pay seller a returned check charge of $25.00 per occurrence if any of buyer's checks are returned to seller unpaid. Upon default of any 
payment or any other aspect of this agreement, seller may, at its option, declare the entire outstanding balance immediately due and payable.


Other than the obligations set forth herein, PROIT disclaims all warranties, express or implied, including any implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for 
use, or fitness for a particular purpose. PROIT shall not be responsible for direct, incidental, or consequential damages, including but not limited to damages 
arising out of the use or performance of the equipment or the loss of use of the equipment.


PROIT shall be temporarily relieved of its obligation in the event that labor disturbance, acts of God, unavailability of product, or other circumstances beyond 
PROIT's control prevent PROIT from fulfilling the terms of this agreement.


No goods may be returned without PROIT's approval or prior written consent. A) Only consumable goods invoiced within 60 days will be considered for 
return. B) On authorized returns, buyer agrees to pay a restocking charge equivalent to 30% of the purchase price. C) Merchandise returned without 
authorization may not be accepted at the receiving dock, and is the sole responsibility of the buyer. D) All non-saleable merchandise (that has been partially 
used or opened) will be deducted from any credit amount due the buyer.


All claims regarding shipments and receipt of goods must be made within 7 days of delivery. Applicable taxes shall be 
added to the purchase price unless the customer has supplied a tax exemption or resale certificate (prior to shipment) acceptable to the proper taxing 
authorities.


I acknowledge the above stated Terms & Conditions:__________________________________________   


Date:________________________________________


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0843835F-677E-417B-8D52-F43F17CAD7C0


82/268







 
 


 


 


Laserfiche Support 
Agreement (LSAP) 
For technical assistance, please contact: 


(Monday through Friday, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm) 


Email: helpdesk@raymorgan.com 


Phone: (800) 990-6899 


24/7 Web Portal: helpdesk.raymorgan.com/support 


 


During the term of your Laserfiche Support Agreement, Ray 
Morgan Company (RMC) will provide the following: 


o Ongoing support of Laserfiche server and client applications for all users 
o Ongoing product updates and patches as requested and agreed upon 
o Support portal for tracking ticket history and automatic ticket creation 
o Laserfiche Remote Administrator Training capped at 2 hours per year (Value 


of $450) 
o Regional Workshops/Users’ Group meetings 
o Quarterly newsletters 
o Team of dedicated Laserfiche engineers striving to improve our level of 


support and product knowledge, and alleviating the support burden on your 
IT resources 


 


 
 


For more details about your LSAP agreement benefits and terms, please see the 
ProIT Laserfiche Service Agreement included in your original Laserfiche order. 


 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0843835F-677E-417B-8D52-F43F17CAD7C0


83/268







 
 


 


 


 RMC IT/Laserfiche Support Channels  


Three Methods for Creating Tickets:  


 


RMC Portal  
 
Visit https://helpdesk.raymorgan.com/support  


Username: (your email address) 


Password: Welcome1 (can be changed after initial login)  


When the ticket is created via the Portal, the creator will receive an email with a ticket number. If you 


want to CC in others, this is the point to do that – reply to the received email and add in anyone else you 


want to notify.  


 


 


Email  
 


Send an email directly to us at helpdesk@raymorgan.com 


Once we have received your request, you will receive an email to confirm that a ticket has been created. If 


you want other individuals to be notified of action on the ticket, reply to the email and CC those email 


addresses.  


 


 


Phone  
 
For emergencies, or to follow up on a ticket status, please call (800) 990-6899  
 
Please make sure you have your ticket number ready – this will allow our helpdesk to serve you most 
efficiently.  
 
 
 


Have you consulted with your IT department?  
If you’re an end user, please confirm that you have consulted with your IT department and/or your Laserfiche 
Admin prior to opening a ticket.  


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0843835F-677E-417B-8D52-F43F17CAD7C0


84/268







 
 


 


 


 


When submitting a ticket request, be sure to include the 
following information:  
1. Symptoms – Please be specific as to the symptoms you are experiencing  


Ex. “I can’t log in to the application, it says my username or password are incorrect”  


2. How many people are affected? – If you’re an end user, have you contacted your Laserfiche Admin or 


IT department? If others are affected, who are they?  


3. What is the impact? – Is the problem preventing core duties or can it be worked around?  


4. When is a good time to work with you? – Please be specific and we will do our best to accommodate  


5. If it is related to a printer/MFD, please provide the RMD ID# or Serial number.  


 Service/hardware issues should not be reported through the IT portal; reporting such issues via web 


portal may delay your request.  


 
 
 


Notifications for all tickets  
When the ticket is acknowledged/scheduled/completed the creator of the ticket will get an email 
notification. On the completed tickets, the notification will also include the resolution notes – you can also 
view the notes in the portal for active and closed tickets.  
 
 
 


Other notes 
All email threads to the helpdesk (other than the initial ticket creation) should include the ticket number in 
the subject line. Emails without that information create a new ticket and takes some effort on the back 
end for us to make sure all correspondence gets consolidated, which may delay our response to your 
issue.  
 
When an existing ticket is updated via email or portal, all resources on that ticket (such as the assigned 
engineer, and the original effected user) will receive an email update.  
 
We actively cross train our techs to allow maximum availability; you may be in contact with several 
different technicians as we seek the most effective solution to your issue. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 0843835F-677E-417B-8D52-F43F17CAD7C0


85/268







Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 0843835F677E417B8D52F43F17CAD7C0 Status: Sent


Subject: Please DocuSign: Santa Cruz City Schools Laserfiche Support (LSAP) Renewal (2022-2023)


Source Envelope: 


Document Pages: 5 Signatures: 0 Envelope Originator: 


Certificate Pages: 4 Initials: 0 Ray Morgan Company Software Renewals


AutoNav: Enabled


EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled


Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)


3131 Esplanade


Chico,   95973


ProITorders@raymorgan.com


IP Address: 107.1.93.154   


Record Tracking
Status: Original


             2/17/2022 10:38:13 AM


Holder: Ray Morgan Company Software Renewals


             ProITorders@raymorgan.com


Location: DocuSign


Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Jim Monreal


jmonreal@sccs.net


Assistant Superintendent, Business


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)


Sent: 2/17/2022 10:40:31 AM


Viewed: 2/18/2022 11:13:56 AM 


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 2/18/2022 11:13:56 AM
      ID: 6ce516c6-760a-4abf-9130-df1ecda2bd99


In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp


Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp


Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
ProIT Orders


proitorders@raymorgan.com


Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign


Witness Events Signature Timestamp


Notary Events Signature Timestamp


Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 2/17/2022 10:40:32 AM


Certified Delivered Security Checked 2/18/2022 11:13:56 AM


Payment Events Status Timestamps


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure


86/268







ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE 
From time to time, RMC, A Ray Morgan Company (we, us or Company) may be required by law
to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and
conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through your
DocuSign, Inc. (DocuSign) Express user account. Please read the information below carefully
and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and
agree to these terms and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking the 'I agree'
button at the bottom of this document. 
Getting paper copies 
At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by us. For such copies, as long as you are an authorized user of the
DocuSign system you will have the ability to download and print any documents we send to you
through your DocuSign user account for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such
documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of
any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a $0.00 per-page fee. You may
request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below. 
Withdrawing your consent 


If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures
only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and
disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures
electronically is described below. 
Consequences of changing your mind 
If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to
you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format,
and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must
withdraw your consent using the DocuSign 'Withdraw Consent' form on the signing page of your
DocuSign account. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your consent to receive
required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer be able to use your
DocuSign Express user account to receive required notices and consents electronically from us
or to sign electronically documents from us. 
All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically 
Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide
electronically to you through your DocuSign user account all required notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or
made available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of
you inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required
notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given
us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through
the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as
described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the
consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures
electronically from us. 


Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 7/30/2015 2:58:01 PM
Parties agreed to: Jim Monreal


87/268







How to contact RMC, A Ray Morgan Company: 
You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically,
to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to
receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:
 To contact us by email send messages to: spulino@raymorgan.com
 
To advise RMC, A Ray Morgan Company of your new e-mail address 


To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures
electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at spulino@raymorgan.com and in
the body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail address.  
We do not require any other information from you to change your email address..  
In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc to arrange for your new email address to be reflected
in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in DocuSign. 
To request paper copies from RMC, A Ray Morgan Company 
To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided
by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to spulino@raymorgan.com and in the
body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and
telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 
To withdraw your consent with RMC, A Ray Morgan Company 
To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic
format you may:


i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign account, and on the subsequent
page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;
ii. send us an e-mail to spulino@raymorgan.com and in the body of such request you must
state your e-mail, full name, IS Postal Address, telephone number, and account number.
We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences
of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a
longer time to process.. 


Required hardware and software 


Operating Systems: Windows2000? or WindowsXP? 


Browsers (for SENDERS): Internet Explorer 6.0? or above 


Browsers (for SIGNERS): Internet Explorer 6.0?, Mozilla FireFox 1.0,
NetScape 7.2 (or above) 


Email: Access to a valid email account 


Screen Resolution: 800 x 600 minimum 


Enabled Security Settings: 
•Allow per session cookies


 
•Users accessing the internet behind a Proxy


Server must enable HTTP 1.1 settings via
proxy connection 


** These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, we will
provide you with an email message at the email address we have on file for you at that time
providing you with the revised hardware and software requirements, at which time you will
have the right to withdraw your consent. 


88/268







Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically 
To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to
other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you
were able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or
electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to
e-mail this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or
save it for your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and
disclosures exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above,
please let us know by clicking the 'I agree' button below. 
By checking the 'I Agree' box, I confirm that: 


• I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF
ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURES document; and
 


• I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can
print it, for future reference and access; and
 


• Until or unless I notify RMC, A Ray Morgan Company as described above, I consent
to receive from exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be
provided or made available to me by  RMC, A Ray Morgan Company during the
course of my relationship with you.
 


89/268







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  American Fidelity Online Benefit Platform 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the contract with American Fidelity. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
American Fidelity has provided district employees with benefits including disability and flexible 
spending accounts. This contract with American Fidelity will give employees access to an online 
platform where they can access benefit information and make plan changes during open 
enrollment. The recent switch to new insurance carriers created a need for this type of service 
as the options have increased and requires the creation of new online applications and forms.  
 
American Fidelity will work with district staff beginning in the summer of 2022 to educate and 
assist employees with the online enrollment process. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  


90/268







91/268







92/268







93/268







94/268







95/268







96/268







97/268







98/268







99/268







100/268







101/268







102/268







103/268







104/268







105/268







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


 
AGENDA ITEM :  School Works Inc.: Developer Fee Justification Study Contract 


 


MEETING DATE:             March 9, 2022 


 


FROM:                              Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


 


THROUGH:                       Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the SchoolWorks, Inc., contract for a 2021-22 Developer Fee Justification Study 


Report. 


 


BACKGROUND: 


Per state law, the District collects Developer Fees that are assessed on a per square foot basis 


on new residential and commercial construction within the District. These funds are used to 


provide school facilities to house and service the growth in the student enrollment generated 


by the new construction. The Developer Justification Study is to justify the statutory fee rates 


for both residential and for commercial/industrial development. School districts are authorized 


to collect these fees per Education Code Section 17620. 


 


The State Allocation Board (SAB) adjusts these statutory school impact fees commonly known 


as Level 1 Fees, every two years for inflation. The State Allocation Board has just increased the 


Level 1 fee amounts for 2022.  


 


Schoolworks, Inc., will complete an updated report that will be presented to the board aligned 


with the SAB recent action.  This study will assess whether or not the District is eligible to 


receive the updated Level 1 Fees. 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 


Total cost of the study is $6,250 to be paid from the Developer Fees. 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


106/268







 


Level 1 Developer Fee Study for Santa Cruz City SchoolsFebruary 25, 2022 1 


 


P
ro


fe
ss


io
n


a
l S


e
rv


ic
e


s 
A


g
re


e
m


e
n


t SchoolWorks, Inc. 
8700 Auburn Folsom Rd., #200 
Granite Bay, CA 95746 
Ph: (916) 733-0402 
www.SchoolWorksGIS.com  


Date: Services Payable To: Services Performed For: 


February 25, 2022 SchoolWorks, Inc. 


8700 Auburn Folsom Rd., #200 
Granite Bay, CA 95746 
Ph: (916) 733-0402 
www.SchoolWorksGIS.com 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Jimmy Monreal, Asst Supt – Business Svs 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3754 
Ph:  (831) 429-3410 


LEVEL 1 DEVELOPER FEE JUSTIFICATION STUDY  


Scope of Work 


SchoolWorks, Inc. shall prepare a Level 1 Developer Fee Study (Developer Fee Justification Study) 
to justify the statutory fee rates for both residential and for commercial/industrial development. 
School districts are authorized to collect these fees per Education Code Section 17620. 


Project Approach 


1. The current enrollment (2021/2022 CALPADS) and projected growth within the District's 
boundary is determined. 


2. Determination of Local Student Generation Rates (Census data) 


3. The impact of new developments is determined by analyzing the proposed development projects 
(Consultant will contact local County and City development and planning agencies) and 
calculating the estimated number of students that will be generated from new housing. 


4. Existing facility capacity is derived from the baseline capacities approved by the State (SAB 50-
02) along with any approved and funded projects that also increase the District's capacity. 


5. The projected growth from developments is then loaded into existing facilities to the extent that 
there is available space. 


6. Any unhoused students will generate a need for new facilities and an estimated cost is calculated, 
based on State allowances and local land values. 


7. If any students from new development are to be housed in existing facilities, the need to 
modernize existing schools will be determined and the appropriate portion will be included in 
the facility cost. 


8. The cost is then compared to the amount of projected new development (residential then 
commercial/industrial) to determine the amount of developer fees that are justified. 


107/268







 


Level 1 Developer Fee Study for Santa Cruz City SchoolsFebruary 25, 2022 2 


 


Responsibilities of SchoolWorks, Inc. 


 Prepare Developer Fee Justification Study pursuant to Government Code 66000, et. Seq. 
and Education Code 17621 (e) and 17622 


 Assist the District with a timeline for adoption of new Developer Fees, including a sample 
Notice and sample Resolution for the Public Hearing 


 Present Developer Fee Justification Study to the Board (Extra Charge) 


 Attend public hearing and respond to questions (Extra Charge) 


District to Provide 


1. Current 2021/2022 CALPADS/CBEDS information (must be separated by school site and 
grade level) 


2. Listing of developer fees collected over the past two (2) years (must include the amount paid and 
the square footage for each permit) 


3. List of projects that the District will use the developer fees for 


4. Latest audit report 


5. The current Developer Fee Justification Study adopted by the District (if not prepared by 
SchoolWorks, Inc.) 


Level 1 Fee Rates 


The Level 1 Fees are adjusted every two years to account for the changes in the construction cost 
index. The next adjustment will be made in January 2024. 


 


2020 


Rates 


2022 


Rates 


Residential $4.08 $4.79 


Commercial/Industrial $0.66 $0.78 


  


108/268







 


Level 1 Developer Fee Study for Santa Cruz City SchoolsFebruary 25, 2022 3 


 


Pricing 


 
If SchoolWorks, Inc presence is requested at a School Board meeting, the District will be billed at 
$185 per hour plus travel time and expenses. 


Payment Schedule 


The first installment of the consulting fees will be billed upon completion of the Study. The second 
installment will be billed January 2023.  The amount is due within thirty (30) days of the date of the 
invoice. A late fee of 5% of the invoice amount will be charged if the amount due is not paid within 
sixty (60) days of the date of the invoice. 


Signed Contract 


 
SchoolWorks, Inc. will contract to perform the tasks enumerated above for the prices indicated. 
Santa Cruz City Schools is authorized to enter into this agreement by Government Code 53060. 
These services are chargeable to the District Capital Facility Funds. 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools  SchoolWorks, Inc. 


   


Signature  Signature 


  Ken Reynolds 


Name  Name 


  President - SchoolWorks, Inc.  


Title  Title 


  February 25, 2022 


Date  Date 


 


Item Description Cost 


2022 – First Installment $3,125 


2023 – Second Installment $3,125 


Level 1 Developer Fee Justification Study Total Cost $6,250 


109/268







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CDW-G Quote for Westlake Elementary School Interactive Touch 
Panels 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve CDW-G quote for interactive touch panels at Westlake Elementary School.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This quote consists of thirty 75” interactive touch panels for Westlake Elementary School. These 
video screens are for District standardized classroom learning to eliminate the need for 
projectors and smart boards. This product has become our District standard. The bond site 
committee, which included teaching staff, with concurrence by Education Services in the 
District Office have identified this product as a new standard.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$76,462.50 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.57% of the overall site budget 
$13,439,288.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Westlake Elementary School  
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


110/268







Page 1 of 2


QUOTE CONFIRMATION


DEAR CURTIS GOMEZ,


Thank you for considering CDW•G LLC for your computing needs. The details of your quote are below. 


Click here to convert your quote to an order.


QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL


MPZJ353 2/15/2022 VIEWSONIC PANELS X 30 1165316 $76,462.50


IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ


Fees applied to item(s): 5344832


QUOTE DETAILS


ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE


ViewSonic ViewBoard IFP7550-E1 75" LED-backlit LCD display 


- 4K


30 5344832 $2,300.00 $69,000.00


Mfg. Part#: IFP7550-E1


UNSPSC: 43211902


Contract: Irvine USD 19/20-01 IT Tech & Peripherals (19/20-01 IT)


ViewSonic - extended service agreement - 4 years - years  4th 


- 7th - on-si


30 5345410 $0.00 $0.00


Mfg. Part#: IFP-EW-70-04


UNSPSC: 81111811


Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA


Contract: Irvine USD 19/20-01 IT Tech & Peripherals (19/20-01 IT)


ViewSonic Extended Warranty - extended service agreement - 


4 years - years 


30 5345437 $30.00 $900.00


Mfg. Part#: NMP-EW-03-05


UNSPSC: 81111811


Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA


Contract: Irvine USD 19/20-01 IT Tech & Peripherals (19/20-01 IT)


RECYCLING FEE DETAILS


ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE


RECYCLING FEE 35" AND OVER


Fee Applied to Item: 5344832


30 654813 $6.00 $180.00


PURCHASER BILLING INFO SUBTOTAL


$69,900.00


Billing Address:


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


ACCOUNTS PAYABLE


133 MISSION ST STE 100


SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-3747


Phone: (831) 429-3410


Payment Terms: NET 30 Days-Govt/Ed


SHIPPING


$0.00


RECYCLING FEE


$180.00


SALES TAX


$6,382.50


GRAND TOTAL


$76,462.50


DELIVER TO Please remit payments to:


111/268







Page 2 of 2


Shipping Address:


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS WAREHOUSE


CURTIS GOMEZ


536 PALM ST


SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-4758


Shipping Method: DROP SHIP-COMMON CARRIER


CDW Government


75 Remittance Drive


Suite 1515


Chicago, IL 60675-1515


Need Assistance? CDW•G LLC SALES CONTACT INFORMATION


Chris Atraje | (877) 325-2820 | chriatr@cdwg.com


LEASE OPTIONS


FMV TOTAL FMV LEASE OPTION BO TOTAL BO LEASE OPTION


$70,080.00 $1,878.84/Month $70,080.00 $2,170.38/Month


Monthly payment based on 36 month lease. Other terms and options are available. Contact your Account Manager for details. Payment quoted is


subject to change.    


Why finance?   


• Lower Upfront Costs. Get the products you need without impacting cash flow. Preserve your working capital and existing credit line. 


• Flexible Payment Terms. 100% financing with no money down, payment deferrals and payment schedules that match your company's business


cycles. 


• Predictable, Low Monthly Payments. Pay over time. Lease payments are fixed and can be tailored to your budget levels or revenue streams. 


• Technology Refresh. Keep current technology with minimal financial impact or risk. Add-on or upgrade during the lease term and choose to


return or purchase the equipment at end of lease. 


• Bundle Costs. You can combine hardware, software, and services into a single transaction and pay for your software licenses over time! We


know your challenges and understand the need for flexibility.   


General Terms and Conditions:   


This quote is not legally binding and is for discussion purposes only. The rates are estimate only and are based on a collection of industry data


from numerous sources. All rates and financial quotes are subject to final review, approval, and documentation by our leasing partners.


Payments above exclude all applicable taxes. Financing is subject to credit approval and review of final equipment and services configuration.


Fair Market Value leases are structured with the assumption that the equipment has a residual value at the end of the lease term.


This quote is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at


http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


For more information, contact a CDW account manager


© 2022 CDW•G LLC 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239


112/268







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: K & D Landscaping, Inc. Proposal for Branciforte Small Schools 
Irrigation 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve K & D Landscaping, Inc. proposal for Branciforte Small Schools irrigation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of turf & irrigation replacement at Branciforte Small Schools to complete 
work that the original contractor has been unwilling to do. This proposal will also include AFE 
modular island irrigation that has been requested by the site, some of which is additional 
scope.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$24,646.00 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.28% of the overall site budget 
$8,759,099.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Branciforte Small Schools 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


113/268







Branciforte Small Schools Campus 
840 N Branciforte Ave, Santa Cruz, 
CA 95060


Date: 2/14/2022 
Proposal # 3008


· Remove the existing weeds and grass
· Grade area smooth
· Install redwood header to define the bedding areas (2) sides
· Install new piping and sprinklers
· Install (1) hose bib on a 4x4 post
· Amend and till soil and rake smooth
· Install Delta Bluegrass Bolero plus sod
· Roll to remove air pockets
· Includes a 60-day maintenance period


Qualifications:


· Utilize the existing valve and control wires-district to confirm they are in good working
order


· Utilize schedule 40 piping throughout the system
· Abandon in place existing irrigation that is not in the way of new work
· Backfill and compact all trenches
· Includes prevailing wages


Exclusions:


· Control valves, wiring, and controller
· Pest control
· Removal, repairs, or relocation of unknown underground utilities


Turf & Irrigation Replacement:


Turf & Irrigation Replacement: $20,688.00


K&D Landscaping, Inc. • P.O. Box 2187  • Freedom  CA 95019• Lic 664584


Professionalism - Teamwork - Humility - Respect - Hunger - Safety


114/268







· Install new piping and sprinklers only
· Install (1) hose bib on a 4x4 post


Qualifications:


· Utilize the existing valve and control wires-district to confirm they are in good working order
· Utilize schedule 40 piping throughout the system
· Backfill and compact all trenches


· Abandon in place existing irrigation that is not in the way of new work


· Includes prevailing wages


Exclusions
· Removal of weeds
· Grading
· Control valves, wiring, and controller
· Post-installation maintenance
· Removal, repairs, or relocation of unknown underground utilities


Irrigation Only:


Irrigation Only: $6,135.00


· Install (1) new drip valve with pressure regulator and filter
· Install a Node battery-operated controller
· Install (1) hose bib on a 4x4 post
· Saw cut asphalt and install a 3/4" sc. 40 pipe in a 4" sleeve to the island
· Patch Asphalt


Exclusions:


· drip tubing, emitters, etc
· Grading, soil prep, or planting


Modular Island Irrigation Scope of Work:


AFE- Modular Island Irrigation: $3,958.00


Approved By: Date:


This proposal is valid for 90 days


K&D Landscaping, Inc. • P.O. Box 2187  • Freedom  CA 95019• Lic 664584


Professionalism - Teamwork - Humility - Respect - Hunger - Safety


115/268



thaye

Cross-Out



thaye

Cross-Out



thaye

Cross-Out







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Mobile Modular Quote for Temporary Transportation Housing 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Mobile Modular quote for temporary transportation housing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of delivery of one 10x32 foot office building to serve as temporary 
housing for the transportation department while the new building is being constructed. This 
quote also includes one month of rental fees for the building and the cost of removal after 
construction is complete. The District expects to need the temporary housing for up to nine 
months at $1,060.13 per month. We will only be billed for the amount of use. The total of the 
attached contract reflects one month's rent. Staff anticipate that the project will take up to six 
months.  The total fiscal impact below includes the additional months of rent.  
 


Porta-Potty Rental $22,985.00 (estimated) 


Modular Building $541,394.00 (approved & budgeted) 


Building Site Work $413,333.00 (estimated) 


Door Hardware $11,657.00 (approved & budgeted) 


Hardware Install $5,000.00 (estimated) 


DSA Inspection $3,950.00 (approved & budgeted) 


Temporary Housing $13,284.42 (This Item) 


Temporary Housing Power $24,518.00 (Agenda Item 8.3.5) 


Electrical Charging Infrastructure $50,000.00 (estimated) 


Storage Shed $10,000.00 (estimated) 


Storage Shed Installation $20,000.00 (estimated) 


Storage Shed Electrical $2,500.00 (estimated) 


Storage Shed Shelving $5,000.00 (estimated) 


Estimated Total $1,123,621.42 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$13,284.42 
Cost Breakdown by fund: 
$8,634.87 representing 0.67% of the Measure A District Set-Aside (Restricted)  


116/268







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


$4,649.55 representing 0.64% of the Elementary Redevelopment Agency Fund (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


117/268







Sign up for the Easy Lease Option (see end of document for details)


Customer Information Site Information Mobile Modular Contact


Santa Cruz City SD
405 Old San Jose Road
Soquel, CA 95073


Trevor Miller
trevormiller@sccs.net
Phone: (831) 429-3904


Santa Cruz City SD
300 La Fonda Avenue
Santa Cruz, CA 95062


Questions?
Contact: Merici Trujillo
merici.trujillo@mobilemodular.com
Direct Phone: (925) 453-3125
Fax:


Product Information Qty Monthly Rent Extended Monthly Rent Taxable


Office, 10x32 HCD (Item1250) 1 $912.17 $912.17 Y
1 Office.Size excludes 3' towbar.


Charges Upon Delivery Qty Charge Each Total One Time Taxable


Office, 10x32 HCD (Item1250)
Block and Level Building (A2) 1 $178.00 $178.00 N
Delivery Haulage 10 wide 1 $1,123.00 $1,123.00 N
Delivery Haulage Permit 10 wide 1 $206.00 $206.00 N
Install Foundation, Tiedown (Blvl) 12 $141.00 $1,692.00 Y__________


$3,199.00
______________________


Total___ $ 3,199.00


Charges Upon Return Qty Charge Each Total One Time Taxable


Office, 10x32 HCD (Item1250)
Cleaning Fee 1 $450.00 $450.00 N
Prepare Equipment For Removal (A2) 1 $165.00 $165.00 N
Removal, Tiedown 12 $47.00 $564.00 N
Return Haulage 10 wide 1 $1,123.00 $1,123.00 N
Return Haulage Permit 10 wide 1 $206.00 $206.00 N__________


$2,508.00
______________________


Total___ $2,508.00


Total Estimated Charges


Subtotal of Monthly Rent $912.17
Personal Property Expense $58.20
Taxes on Monthly Charges $89.76____________________________________________________________
Total Monthly Charges (including tax) $1,060.13____________________________________________________________
Charges Upon Delivery (including tax) $3,355.51
Charges Upon Return (including tax) $2,508.00____________________________________________________________
Total One Time Charges (including tax) $5,863.51


Special Notes


General: Security Screens, Door bars and steps will be delivered with this trailer. Customer's site must be dry, compacted, level and
accessible by normal truck delivery. Pricing does not include any clearing or grading of sites, obstruction removal, site or final building
clean up , any asphalt transitions, dolly, crane, forklift, electrical or plumbing connections, window coverings, furniture, casework,
appliances, doorstops, phone or data lines, gutters, downspouts or tie-in, temporary power, temporary fencing, traffic control, flagmen, soil


Mobile Modular Management Corporation
5700 Las Positas Road
Livermore, CA 94551
Phone: (925) 606-9000
Fax: (925) 453-3201
www.mobilemodular.com


Lease Quotation and Agreement
Quotation Number: 441862
Customer PO/Ref:
Date of Quote: 02/02/2022
Term: 4 Months


Thank you for contacting Mobile Modular.
Mobile Modular is a division of McGrath RentCorp. www.mobilemodular.com
441862, 02-02-2022 03:39 PM prod Page 1 of 3


118/268







and/or pull test, custom engineering, fees associated with inspections, city or county submittals and/or use permits, security screens, door
bars and any item not specifically listed as being included.
Delivery of Equipment:
Delivery of Equipment: Customer is responsible for selecting a suitable site and directing Mobile Modular on exact placement/orientation
of the Equipment. Customer shall physically mark the site/pad to indicate corner locations for Equipment placement.
Pilot Cars & Haul Permits:Pricing does not include transportation pilot cars & haul permits. Occasionally additional charges occur due to
city re-routing or city/county requirements. If such requirements are applicable, Customer will be notified prior to delivery.
Site Installation Requirements: Prior to delivery, Customer shall mark the four corners where the building is to be placed on the site/pad
location, and shall also mark the locations of door(s) and ramp(s). Should special handling be required to position, install, or remove the
classroom on Customer's site due to site conditions/constraints and/or obstructions, Customer will be responsible for additional charges.
Additional rolling charges may be applicable as site conditions necessitate.
Stairs: Mobile Modular will provide standard 30" fixed height, one-piece metal stairs are at no additional charge. Securing stairs to the
modular, adjusting stairs to the threshold of the doorway, adjusting the treads, landing or handrails to meet local, state or federal
requirements are the sole responsibility of the Customer.
Used building rental: Quotation is for a used or refurbished modular building. There may be variations in wall paneling, flooring, or other
exterior and interior finishes. Dimensions are nominal unless otherwise stated.
Flooring (VCT):
This building ships standard with used VCT in good condition. VCT may have some discoloration or wear). New VCT is available
for an additional charge. Tie-downs: Quantity and price may vary based on seismic source factor and site conditions. Patch and repair
of site after removal is not included and is the responsibility of the Customer. Alternative non-penetrating seismic system is available for
an additional charge. Wet-stamped engineering available for an additional charge.


Floor Plans


Office, 10x32 HCD (Item1250)


All drawings and specifications are nominal.


Additional Information


• Quote is valid for 30 days.
• A minimum cleaning charge per floor will apply for modular buildings.
• Customer's site must be dry, compacted, level and accessible by normal truck delivery. Costs to dolly, crane, forklift, etc. will be paid by
• customer. Unless noted, prices do not include permits, ramp removal, stairs, foundation systems, foundation system removal, temporary
• power, skirting, skirting removal, engineering, taxes or utility hookups.
• Subject to equipment availability. Unless noted, equipment and related furnishings, finishes, accessories and appliances provided are
• previously leased and materials, dimensions, and specifications vary. Detailed specifications may be available upon request.
• For lease transactions, Mobile Modular reserves the right to substitute equal or better equipment prior to delivery without notice.
• This transaction is subject to prior credit approval and all terms, conditions, and attachments of MMMC's standard contract.
• Security deposit and payment in advance may be required.
• Rent will be billed in advance every 30 calendar days.
• Sales Tax will be calculated based on the tax rate at the time of invoicing.
• Unless otherwise noted, prices do not include prevailing wages, Davis-Bacon wages, or other special or certified wages.


Lease Quotation and Agreement
Quotation Number: 441862
Customer PO/Ref:
Date of Quote: 02/02/2022
Term: 4 Months


Thank you for contacting Mobile Modular.
Mobile Modular is a division of McGrath RentCorp. www.mobilemodular.com
441862, 02-02-2022 03:39 PM prod Page 2 of 3


119/268







Mobile Modular Easy Lease. Sign Me Up!


Getting your modular building on its way has never been easier... and faster.With Mobile Modular Easy Lease you can convert your
Lease Quotation directly into a Lease Agreement by signing below. It's as easy as 1, 2, 3, 4. Once we receive your signed Easy Lease
option, we'll finalize your building details and get your project on its way.
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________


1. Review and acknowledge agreement.
This Quotation is subject to Mobile Modular Management Corporation, a California corporation, herein known as lessor (the "Lessor")
credit approval of Customer, herein known as lessee (the "Lessee"). Lessor does not warrant that the equipment meets any local or
state code not specifically listed herein. Equipment is subject to availability. By signing below, customer accepts the terms of this
quotation including prices and specifications, and instructs Lessor to make appropriate arrangements for the preparation and delivery of
the Equipment identified herein, and agrees that such signature constitutes customer's acceptance of and agreement to the Lessor's
Lease. Such lease, and customer's agreement thereto, is subject to Lessor's standard terms and conditions located on the Lessor's web
site at (www.mobilemodular.com/contractterms) which are incorporated by reference herein. Customer may request a copy of the terms
and conditions from Lessor. If customer has previously executed a master agreement with Lessor, those terms and conditions shall
govern the transaction. Such terms and conditions are incorporated as if fully set forth herein. No alterations, additions, exceptions, or
changes to any Quotation or Agreement made by Lessee shall be effective against Lessor, whether made hereon, contained in any
printed form of Lease or elsewhere, unless accepted in writing by Lessor. Any customer purchase order or other customer-provided
document purporting to replace, supersede or supplement the terms and conditions of the Lessor's Lease shall carry no force or effect
except as an instrument of billing.


Lessor:
Mobile Modular Management Corporation


By: ________________________________________


Name: _____________________________________


Title: ______________________________________


Date: ______________________________________


Lessee:
Santa Cruz City SD


Signature: _________________________________


Print Name: ________________________________


Title: ______________________________________


Date: ______________________________________


2. Request your delivery date. Requested delivery date: ____________________________________


Please note: For modular buildings, as a "rule of thumb" allow one day per module to accommodate for set up after delivery.
We will attempt to meet your desired date. However, the date is subject to change based on equipment availability and
readiness and must be confirmed by a Mobile Modular representative.


3. Insurance value.
Prior to the scheduled delivery, please send, or have your insurance company send, a certificate of insurance referencing the Quotation
number shown above. We require General Liability coverage in the amount of 1,000,000.00 per occurrence listing Mobile Modular
Management Corporation as an additional insured and Property coverage for the value of the leased unit(s) listing Mobile Modular
Management Corporation as loss payee.


Item & Description Qty Item Code Insurance Value
Office, 10x32 HCD (Item1250) 1 1250 $51,600.00


4. Tell us how you would like to pay.
❏ Bill me on approved credit (you will be sent an invoice for payment as charges are incurred)


❏ Credit card payment (a representative will contact you to obtain the credit card information for billing)


Lease Quotation and Agreement
Quotation Number: 441862
Customer PO/Ref:
Date of Quote: 02/02/2022
Term: 4 Months


Thank you for contacting Mobile Modular.
Mobile Modular is a division of McGrath RentCorp. www.mobilemodular.com
441862, 02-02-2022 03:39 PM prod Page 3 of 3


120/268







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Procore Proposal for Project Management Software 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Procore proposal for project management software. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the implementation of project management software that will assist 
the District with the management of bond projects by streamlining processes internally, and in 
collaboration with contractor and architectural firms. This software allows the District to more 
closely monitor and track contractors’ billing and communication with architects and creates a 
database of records that are easily retrievable instead of relying on emails and thumb drives. 
This proposal includes software setup, the first year of software use, and two months of use in 
the current fiscal year. This software will cost $20,095.00 annually after July 2023.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$46,277.50 Measure A & B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


121/268







Orders_Order_Form_V4.1.docx


PROPOSED BY:


Adriana Nelson
adriana.nelson@procore.com
+1 512-593-5495


6309 Carpinteria Avenue


Carpinteria, CA 93013


(866) 477-6267


ORDER FORM
Customer Name Santa Cruz City Schools
Quote Number Q290666


Subscription Info
Subscription Type New Subscription
Start Date May 1, 2022
Initial Term Months 14
Renewal Term Months 12
Billing Frequency Annual
Payment Terms Net 30
Payment Method Check
Multi Year Paid up Front Yes
Currency USD
Offer Valid Through May 13, 2022


THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE – PRICES QUOTED BELOW ARE ESTIMATES


INVOICE INFORMATION
Invoice Dates Estimated Invoice Amounts (Excludes Taxes)
05/01/22 - 06/30/23 $44,277.50
Next Invoice Amount $44,277.50


SUBSCRIPTION INFORMATION
Product UOM QTY Project Cap Subscription Term Annual Fees
Invoice Management ACV (MM) 15.000000 1 05/01/22 - 06/30/23 $4,146.00
Project Financials ACV (MM) 15.000000 1 05/01/22 - 06/30/23 $6,644.00
Project Management Pro ACV (MM) 15.000000 1 05/01/22 - 06/30/23 $14,305.00


One Time Fees UOM QTY Fees
QuickStart 4
4 Month Implementation Service Bundle


Each 1 $15,000.00


BILL TO SHIP TO
Santa Cruz City Schools
Trevor Miller
400 Encinal Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
United States\
trevormiller@sccs.net


Santa Cruz City Schools
Trevor Miller
400 Encinal Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
United States\
trevormiller@sccs.net


122/268







TERMS AND CONDITIONS


The line item prices shown above have been rounded to two decimal places for display purposes. The totals for this Order were calculated using the actual prices, rather than the prices displayed 
above, and are the true and binding totals for this order. Prices quoted do not include taxes. Construction Volume means the aggregate dollar value of the construction work performed or put in 
place for all distinct projects for which Customer utilizes the Subscription Services identified with Customer’s Procore account(s) during the Subscription Term identified on this Order.


This Order is governed by the terms of the Procore Subscription and Services Agreement found at https://mkt-cdn.procore.com/legal/procore_SSA_V1_2021.pdf, unless the parties have an active, 
executed frame agreement covering the use of the Services, in which case such agreement will govern (in either case, the "SSA"). This Order is incorporated into the SSA; however, any conflicting 
terms in this Order will supersede over the SSA. By signing below, Customer agrees to the terms of this Order, the SSA, and the Procore Data Processing Addendum located at 
https://www.procore.com/legal/dpa. Each party represents that it has the authority to enter into this Order.


The Services purchased above are further described in the table below. Please note that if this is an upgrade to your current subscription, then the table below shall only reflect your new or 
changed Services. The Order and SSA constitute the entire agreement between Procore and Customer, superseding any other terms (including, but not limited to, the terms of any Customer 
purchase order).


PO #: \poq_1\                                                                                                                     Tax Exempt: \q_Tax_Exempt_1\


Santa Cruz City Schools  (“Customer”)


Signature: \s1\                                         


Name:  \n1\


Title:  \t1\ 


Date:  \d1\


Procore Technologies, Inc. (“Procore”)


Signature:  \s2\ 


Name:  \n2\


Title:  \t2\


Date: \q_signdate2\


123/268







** In Addition to the tools listed below, all Procore clients have access to the following core tools: directory, documents, reports, and task, except for those clients 
who have purchased only Capital Planning and/or Portfolio Financials.


PRODUCT TOOLS
Invoice Management Invoicing
Project Financials Budget, Change Events, Change Orders, Commitments, Direct Costs, Prime Contract
Project Management Pro Correspondence, Daily Log, Drawings, Emails, Meetings, Photos, Punch List, RFI, 


Schedule, Specifications, Submittals, Transmittals, Timecard


124/268







125/268







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: PSR Electric Proposal for Temporary Transportation Housing 
Power 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve PSR Electric for temporary transportation housing power. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of installation of temporary power and network connection to the 
temporary housing for the transportation department while the new building is being 
constructed.  
 


Porta-Potty Rental $22,985.00 (estimated) 


Modular Building $541,394.00 (approved & budgeted) 


Building Site Work $413,333.00 (estimated) 


Door Hardware $11,657.00 (approved & budgeted) 


Hardware Install $5,000.00 (estimated) 


DSA Inspection $3,950.00 (approved & budgeted) 


Temporary Housing $13,284.42 (Agenda Item 8.3.3) 


Temporary Housing Power $24,518.00 (This Item) 


Electrical Charging Infrastructure $50,000.00 (estimated) 


Storage Shed $10,000.00 (estimated) 


Storage Shed Installation $20,000.00 (estimated) 


Storage Shed Electrical $2,500.00 (estimated) 


Storage Shed Shelving $5,000.00 (estimated) 


Estimated Total $1,123,621.42 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$24,518.00 Total 
Cost Breakdown by fund: 
$15,936.70 representing 1.40% of the Measure A District Set-Aside (Restricted)  
$8,581.30 representing 1.38% of the Elementary Redevelopment Agency Fund (Restricted) 
 
 


126/268







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


127/268







128/268







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Tesla Inc. Quote for Harbor High School Solar Tie-In  
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Tesla Inc. quote for Harbor High School to tie the existing solar panels into the new 
switchgear.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the reconnection of the site solar systems to the new switchgear. The 
solar connections needed to be rerouted to the new switchgear upon project completion.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$23,102.50 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.08% of the overall site budget 
$28,554,079.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Harbor High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


129/268







Tesla
Admin Cost


Atlantic to Pacific
Contractor Fee


Scope of Work Attached


Total Price (subject to Section 6a)


Date:Title:


Payment Terms - 100% due upon receipt of invoice


This agreement is made up of the Quote and the attached General Terms and Conditions


Accepted and Agreed:
Santa Cruz Schools - Harbor High School


Signature:


Name:


Draper, UT 84020


4,620.50$      


Terms


Work Description and Price


Santa Cruz Schools - Harbor High School
300 La Fonda Avenue
Santa Cruz, CA 95062


23,102.50$   


Please make checks payable to:


Attn: Accounts Receivable
Tesla, Inc.
P.O. Box 3500


Nov 11, 2021
22121789


Quote Date:
Quote Number:


Work Site Name / Address


$18,482


130/268







General Terms and Conditions: 


1) Work. Tesla shall be responsible for performing the Work
described in this Agreement, although Tesla may, at its sole
discretion, subcontract or assign the Work to a third party.
Customer grants Tesla and any of its subcontractors full
permission to enter the applicable sites during the duration of the
Work. The Work will be performed pursuant to those practices,
methods, standards, and acts (including those engaged in or
approved by a significant portion of the photovoltaic industry for
similar facilities in the United States) that at a particular time in
the exercise of good judgment, and in light of the facts known at
the time the decision was made, would have been expected to
accomplish the desired result in compliance with all Laws and in a
manner consistent with safety, environmental protection,
economy, and expedition (“Prudent Industry Practices”). Prudent
Industry Practices are not necessarily defined as the optimal
standard practice method or act to the exclusion of others, but
rather refer to a range of action reasonable under the
circumstances. “Law” means any applicable law, statute,
regulation, rule, decision, writ, order, decree, or judgment, or any
interpretation thereof, promulgated or issued by federal, State,
municipal, local, or administrative authorities. 


2)    Indemnity. 


(a) Indemnity by Tesla. Tesla shall indemnify and hold harmless
the Customer from and against any and all third party (i) claims,
(ii) damages, (iii) losses and expenses, including but not limited to
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the breach of this
Agreement by Tesla, its subcontractor, anyone directly or
indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may
be liable. 


(b) Indemnity by Customer. Customer shall indemnify and hold
harmless Tesla and its Subcontractors and agents from and
against third party (i) claims, (ii) damages, (iii) losses and
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out
of or resulting from Customer’s negligence or the negligent acts
or omissions of anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or
anyone for whose acts they may be liable or any claim by any
party that the Work is subject to prevailing wage, living wage or
similar Laws, regulations or ordinances unless such wage
requirements are disclosed in writing prior to execution of a final
contract. 


3)    Limitation of Liability. 


(a) IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY OR ITS AGENTS OR
SUBCONTRACTORS BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR
SPECIAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY NATURE. 


(b) NO WARRANTY OR REMEDY, WHETHER STATUTORY,
WRITTEN, ORAL, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
WITHOUT LIMITATION WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY
AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR
WARRANTIES ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR
USAGE OF TRADE SHALL APPLY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.
The remedies set forth in this Agreement shall be Customer’s
sole and exclusive remedies for any claim or liability arising out of
or in connection with this Agreement, whether arising in contract,
tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise.


(c) Limit of Liability. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement to the contrary, Tesla’s total liability arising out of
relating to this Agreement shall in no event exceed the amounts
paid under the terms of this Agreement: 


4)    Applicable Law/Arbitration. 


The Laws of the state where the Work is performed shall govern
this Agreement without giving effect to conflict of Laws principles.
All claims, disputes and other matters in question, arising out of,
or relating to, this Agreement or the breach thereof shall be
decided by binding arbitration. Each arbitration, including the
selecting of the arbitrator, will be administered by JAMS under its
Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures. If JAMS is
unavailable, the AAA will be the administering body. Arbitration
will be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act (Title 9 of the U.S.
Code). Either party can initiate an arbitration proceeding by filing
the necessary forms with JAMS. Venue for any arbitration brought
under this Agreement shall be proper in the State of California,
County of San Mateo. The arbitrator shall have the authority to
award any legal or equitable remedy or relief that a court could
order or grant. The arbitrator, however, is not authorized to
change or alter the terms of this Agreement or to make any award
that would extend to any transaction other than this Agreement. In
the event of any litigation or arbitration arising from or related to
this agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to recovery of
all reasonable costs incurred, including court costs, attorneys’
fees, experts’ fees and other related expenses. 


5)    Entire Agreement; Changes. 


This Agreement contains the Parties' entire agreement regarding
the matters set forth herein. No breach of this Agreement shall
affect Customer's obligations under its other agreements with
Tesla. Tesla's obligations under this Agreement may only be
assigned in writing to a party that expressly accepts responsibility
in writing for Tesla's obligations under this Agreement. Except for
changes to the Quote allowed pursuant to Section 6(a), any
change to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both
Parties. If any portion of this Agreement is determined to be
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall be enforced in
accordance with their terms or shall be interpreted or re-written so
as to make them enforceable. Provisions that should reasonably
be considered to survive termination of this Agreement shall
survive. After execution of this Agreement, Customer shall not
have the right to terminate this Agreement. 


6)    Payment Terms 


(a) Customer acknowledges that the price listed in the Quote is
an estimate made by Tesla prior to performing any Work.
Customer agrees to pay up to twenty percent (20%) more than
the Quote without requiring an amendment to this Agreement. If
the price is more than twenty percent (20%) more than the Quote,
Tesla shall give Customer advanced written notice of same and
the parties shall enter into an amended Quote reflecting the new
price. 


(b) Tesla will invoice Customer for the final amount due after
completion of the Work. Payment of the invoice will be due net
thirty (30) days from the invoice date.


131/268







   


 


Santa Cruz Schools – Harbor High – AC Disconnect Relocation 


Atlantic to Pacific Scope of Work 


 


• Install conduit between existing 400a disconnect and junction box. 


• Purchase and install a single set of 500KCmil copper 3 phase with a 500KCmil neutral and 1/0 


ECG between disconnect and new switch gear 


• Purchase and install new Siemens 400a breaker (model & serial# in the photos) into new switchgear 


and land conductors 


• Re-energize site (we’ll send a tech to oversee start up on the inverter) 


SCOPE: 


• Supply and install (4) 500kcmil CU and (1) 1/0 CU from existing switchgear to existing pull box 


approximately 75’ 


• Supply and install (4) 500kcmil CU and (1) 1/0 CU in 3” conduit from existing pull box to existing 


400amp 600volt disconnect 


• Supply and install 400amp 600volt Siemens 3 pole breaker 


• Make all terminations between 400amp breaker and 400amp disconnect 


• Energize 


BID DOES NOT INCLUDE: 


• Permits 


• Fuses for existing disconnect 


132/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Staff Report: A-G Improvement Grant  
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approve the A-G Completion Improvement Grant plan. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Completion of A-G courses with a “C” or better are required by the University of California (UC) 
and California State University (CSU) in order to be eligible for college admission. The A-G 
Completion Improvement Grant is intended to help districts increase the number of high school 
students who graduate with A-G eligibility. Funds must be used towards activities that directly 
support pupil access to, and successful completion of, the A-G course requirements. It is 
recommended that students who are in danger of not receiving a grade of “C” or better in A-G 
courses be targeted for support, and that students who received a “D” or “F” in an A-G 
approved course in the 2020-21 school year to retake those A-G courses.  
 
All students in Santa Cruz City Schools have access to enroll in A-G courses. Nearly every high 
school class fulfills an A-G requirement, with the rare exception of some elective courses. The 
district’s opportunities for improvement lie in increasing the number of students passing these 
A-G courses with a grade of C or higher.  
 
Input to the plan was gathered from our Parent Leadership group, Secondary Principals and 
from pertinent responses from family, student and staff Local Control Accountability Plan 
(LCAP) surveys.  
 
The funds will be used for the following activities that will increase and improve services for our 
unduplicated students (Low Income, English learners and Homeless/Foster Youth): 


● Advanced Placement (AP) and International Baccalaureate (IB) test fees for 
unduplicated students, removing economic barriers. 


● Support and tutoring for unduplicated students in AP courses. 
● Completion of A-G Transcript Audits to identify and respond to patterns of students' 


success and challenges to remove barriers to A-G completion. 
● Professional development including equitable grading practices and Tier I interventions 


to best support unduplicated students in accessing curriculum and passing A-G courses 
and teacher AP instruction certification. 


 


133/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


To improve the rates of students passing A-G courses with a grade of C or higher, the district 
will continue to use established funds, including LCFF Supplemental funds, for the following 
actions: 


● Staff participation in Professional Learning Communities to support student outcomes 
through staff collaboration and sharing of best practice. 


● Universal student access to all AP and IB courses. 
● Staff participation in Grading for Equity Professional Development program through the 


County Office of Education. 
● Credit Recovery Teachers & A-G Credit Recovery opportunities including summer school. 


 
There are 120 students from spring 2020 and 247 students from the 2020-21 school year who 
received a “D” or “F” grade in an A-G course. The following was offered to these students:  
 


● Credit recovery summer school using Brigham Young University High in 2020 & 
Edgenuity in 2021. 


● Credit recovery during the school year with the credit recovery teacher at their high 
school using Edgenuity. 


● Retaking the course at their high school during the school year (Harbor & SCHS allow 
students to take 8 courses a year instead of the traditional 6). 


 
Each District must adopt a plan by April 1, 2022, that describes how the funds received will 
increase or improve services for unduplicated students to improve A-G eligibility.  The Board 
must discuss and adopt the plan at two separate meetings. 
 
In addition, the District must report to the California Department of Education by December 31, 
2023, on how it is measuring the impact on the A-G completion rate. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Plan Expenditures 


Programs and Services to increase or improve A-G completion Planned 
Expenditures 
(Restricted) 


Cover AP and IB test fees for unduplicated students  $327,575 


Provide support and tutoring for unduplicated students in Advanced 
Placement courses  


$43,677 


School Counselor A-G Transcript Audits to identify and respond to 
patterns of students’ success and challenges 


$43,677 


Staff professional development including the following topics: 


 Grading for Equity and Mastery 


$21,838 


134/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


 Tier I interventions to best support unduplicated students in 
accessing material and passing A-G courses 


 AP instruction certification 


Total $436,767 


 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


135/268







A-G Completion Improvement 
Grant Staff Report 


March 9, 2022


136/268







A-G Completion Improvement Grant 


Grant Outcomes:
◦ increase the number of high school students who graduate with A-G 


eligibility
◦ directly support pupil access to and successful completion of A-G course 


requirements 
◦ increase A-G support for unduplicated students (Low Income, English 


learners and Homeless/Foster Youth)


A-G courses:
required by the University of California (UC) and California State University 
(CSU) college eligibility (“C” or better)


137/268







Plan Input 


◦ Parent Leadership Group


◦ High School Principals 


◦ Input gathered from Local Control Accountability Plan 
(LCAP) family, student and staff surveys


138/268







Planned Actions 


● Advanced Placement (AP) and International Baccalaureate (IB) test fees for 
unduplicated students


● Support and tutoring for unduplicated students in AP courses
● Completion of A-G Transcript Audits to identify and respond to patterns of 


students' success and challenges to remove barriers to A-G completion
● Professional development (PD): equitable grading practices and Tier I 


interventions for unduplicated students 
● Advanced Placement teacher certification 


139/268







Plan Expenditures
Programs and Services to increase or improve A-G 
Completion


Planned
Expenditures 
(Restricted) 


Cover AP and IB test fees for unduplicated students $327,575


Provide support and tutoring for unduplicated students 
in Advanced Placement course $43,677


School Counselor A-G Transcript Audits to identify and 
respond to patterns of students’ success and challenges $43,677


Staff professional development including the following 
topics:
-Reinforcing equitable grading practices
-Tier I interventions to best support unduplicated 
students in accessing material and passing A-G courses
-AP instruction certification


$21,838


Total: $436,767
140/268







A-G Completion Improvement Grant Requirements


o Must adopt a plan by April 1, 2022, that describes how the funds received will 


increase or improve services for unduplicated students to improve A-G eligibility. 


Discuss and adopt at two separate meetings.


o Must report to the California Department of Education by December 31, 2023, on 


how the District is measuring the impact on the A-G completion rate.


141/268







Questions?


142/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:              CDW-G Quote: Chromebooks Purchase 
  
MEETING DATE:   March 9, 2022 
  
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
  
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase for 3,000 Emergency Connectivity Fund Chromebooks.  
  
BACKGROUND: 
The Emergency Connectivity Fund is a $7.17 billion program that will help schools and libraries 
provide the tools and services communities need for students without technology access at 
home. During the pandemic, Santa Cruz City Schools distributed over 3,000 Chromebooks for 
distance learning to all ten school sites due to students not having an adequate device at home. 
The Emergency Connectivity Fund program will serve all ten school sites for students with 
unmet technology needs at home to help bridge the homework gap.  
 
SCCS will provide the vendor, CDW-G, full compensation of the Chromebook proposal to start 
the inventory and distribution process. Each of the SCCS libraries will be receiving a 
Chromebook allotment at all ten sites where inventory and distribution will take place. The 
Director of Information Technology will then follow up and submit the Billed Entity Applicant 
Reimbursement form for reimbursement. The reimbursement timeline from the state is 
between 4-8 weeks.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total Reimbursed Cost: $1,192,933.50 Emergency Connectivity Fund Reimbursement 
(Restricted) 


● Chromebooks - HP 11 G9 MT8183 32/8 WGOOG  
○ Quantity: 3,000  
○ Unit Price: $367.00 


● CHROME LICENSE INCL W CBK 
○ Quantity: 3,000  
○ Unit Price: $0 


 
District Total Cost: $33,450 - LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 


● White Glove Service to enroll all new Chromebooks into the District network (On above 
HP 11 G9 MT8183 32/8 WGOOG) 


○ Quantity: 3,000 


143/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


○ Unit Price: $7.15 
● Recycling Fee (On above HP 11 G9 MT8183 32/8 WGOOG) 


○ Quantity: 3,000 
○ Unit Price: $4.00 


 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


144/268







Page 1 of 2


QUOTE CONFIRMATION


DEAR CURTIS GOMEZ,


Thank you for considering CDW•G LLC for your computing needs. The details of your quote are below. 


Click here to convert your quote to an order.


QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL


MQNM781 3/1/2022 HP 11 G9 8GB W/WGS 1165316 $1,226,383.50


IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ


Fees applied to item(s): 6625823


QUOTE DETAILS


ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE


HP 11 G9 MT8183 32 8 WGOOG 3000 6625823 $367.00 $1,101,000.00


Mfg. Part#: 436B9UT#ABA-INCLGOOG


Contract: Standard Pricing


CHROME LICENSE INCL W CBK 3000 6604945 $0.00 $0.00


Mfg. Part#: CROS-SW-DIS-EDU-NEW-INCLWCBK


Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA


Contract: Standard Pricing


SANTACRUZ-WGS-PERITEM 3000 6549124 $7.15 $21,450.00


Mfg. Part#: ACT-30641-3


Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA


Contract: Standard Pricing


RECYCLING FEE DETAILS


ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE


RECYCLING FEE 4" TO LESS THAN 15"


Fee Applied to Item: 6625823


3000 654809 $4.00 $12,000.00


PURCHASER BILLING INFO SUBTOTAL


$1,122,450.00


Billing Address:


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


ACCOUNTS PAYABLE


133 MISSION ST STE 100


SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-3747


Phone: (831) 429-3410


Payment Terms: NET 30 Days-Govt/Ed


SHIPPING


$0.00


RECYCLING FEE


$12,000.00


SALES TAX


$91,933.50


GRAND TOTAL


$1,226,383.50


DELIVER TO Please remit payments to:


Shipping Address:


EKC ENTERPRISE


CURTIS GOMEZ


4658 E WEATHERMAKER AVE


FRESNO, CA 93703-4430


Phone: (831) 429-3410


Shipping Method: CEVA Deferred, 3-5 Days


CDW Government


75 Remittance Drive


Suite 1515


Chicago, IL 60675-1515


145/268







Page 2 of 2


Need Assistance? CDW•G LLC SALES CONTACT INFORMATION


Chris Atraje | (877) 325-2820 | chriatr@cdwg.com


LEASE OPTIONS


FMV TOTAL FMV LEASE OPTION BO TOTAL BO LEASE OPTION


$1,134,450.00 $30,108.30/Month $1,134,450.00 $34,861.65/Month


Monthly payment based on 36 month lease. Other terms and options are available. Contact your Account Manager for details. Payment quoted is


subject to change.    


Why finance?   


• Lower Upfront Costs. Get the products you need without impacting cash flow. Preserve your working capital and existing credit line. 


• Flexible Payment Terms. 100% financing with no money down, payment deferrals and payment schedules that match your company's business


cycles. 


• Predictable, Low Monthly Payments. Pay over time. Lease payments are fixed and can be tailored to your budget levels or revenue streams. 


• Technology Refresh. Keep current technology with minimal financial impact or risk. Add-on or upgrade during the lease term and choose to


return or purchase the equipment at end of lease. 


• Bundle Costs. You can combine hardware, software, and services into a single transaction and pay for your software licenses over time! We


know your challenges and understand the need for flexibility.   


General Terms and Conditions:   


This quote is not legally binding and is for discussion purposes only. The rates are estimate only and are based on a collection of industry data


from numerous sources. All rates and financial quotes are subject to final review, approval, and documentation by our leasing partners.


Payments above exclude all applicable taxes. Financing is subject to credit approval and review of final equipment and services configuration.


Fair Market Value leases are structured with the assumption that the equipment has a residual value at the end of the lease term.


This quote is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at


http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


For more information, contact a CDW account manager


© 2022 CDW•G LLC 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239


146/268







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  


AGENDA ITEM:                       Local Control Accountability Plan Update: Multi-Tiered  


           Systems of Support - School Climate and Culture  


                                                 


MEETING DATE:                     March 9, 2022 


  


FROM:                                     Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 


  


THROUGH:                              Kris Munro, Superintendent 


  


BACKGROUND: 


Multi-Tiered Systems of Support, is an integrated, comprehensive framework that aligns 


academic, behavioral and social-emotional learning in a fully integrated system of support for 


the benefit of ALL students. Multi-Tiered Systems of Support offers the potential to create 


needed systemic change through the intentional design and redesign of services and supports 


to quickly identify and match to student needs.  


  


In Multi-Tiered Systems of Support, academics, behavioral support and social emotional 


learning intersect to support the “Whole Child.” This paradigm is driven by the understanding 


that if a students’ behavioral and social emotional needs are not responded to, learning will be 


negatively impacted. As such, the need for a strong, positive and safe school culture and 


climate is integral for the academic success of all students. 


  


It is important to remember that the last “normal” school year our students experienced was in 


2018-2019 (our current 12th graders’ last “normal” year was when they were in 9th grade). As a 


result, our students are re-learning what it means to be students (academically and 


emotionally), to regulate emotions, and to interact with others. Districts across the nation are 


reporting higher levels of student dysregulation which can profoundly impact student learning. 


 


Because of the pandemic and its impact, Santa Cruz City Schools began the 21-22 school year 


with a “Restorative Restart” and a focus on enhanced social emotional support. The 20-21 Local 


Control Accountability Student Survey results as well as the Student Social Emotional Health 


Survey results showed that students were feeling less connected and engaged with school.  


 


These results, in addition to family, student and staff input led the district to establish a full 


time Social Emotional Counselor with an LMFT/LPCC/LCSW at each middle and high school site. 


147/268







The Social Emotional Counselors were added to our other tiered social emotional support 


systems. 


 


The work of our Social Workers and Social Emotional Counselors has been profoundly impactful 


during our Restorative Restart, and LCAP student and Social Emotional Survey results from this 


year show a rebound of students feeling a connection and engagement with their schools.  


 


Universal Screeners and Assessments 


Gauging students’ mental health and attitudes is an important step in identifying needs and  


implementing social emotional health programs, as well as monitoring their impact. One of our 


universal screening tools, the Social Emotional Health Survey has allowed staff to identify and 


follow up on students who self-assess as needing emotional health support. 


 


The Social Emotional Health Survey is given once a year in the fall for students in 3rd through 


12th grade. It measures students’ assets and risk factors.  Additionally, the Local Control 


Accountability (LCAP) Student Survey allows sites to assess overall student emotional health 


and connectedness to schools, and is an important metric in determining site goals and the 


impact of Tier 1 programs like Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS) and 


Restorative Practices.  Our secondary schools have also been piloting the Safe School Climate 


Index to assess emotional safety for LGBTQ+ youth.   


 


In addition to universal screeners and assessments, data points such as attendance, nursing 


logs, behavioral referrals and suspensions are studied by staff to inform student follow-up and 


interventions.  


 


Elementary Tiered Social Emotional Supports  


Tier 1  


PBIS is a foundational behavioral framework for our elementary schools. PBIS makes behavioral 


expectations explicit, and positive behavior is recognized and celebrated through assemblies 


and award programs. After distance and hybrid learning, this leveling of expectations has been 


integral for students as they re-learn how to be successful students both academically and 


socially. The Second Step and Soul Shoppe curriculum have had a powerful impact on student 


self-regulation and supports the numerous site-specific programs and activities in this area. 


Elementary counselors case-manage students in need of extra support academically, 


behaviorally and emotionally. Additionally, our School Community Coordinators coordinate 


family outreach and support our multilingual and low income students in numerous areas 


including accessing social emotional support as needed.  


 


Professional development for elementary  includes trauma-informed practices and suicide 


148/268







prevention training, mandatory reporting, and intervening for harassment and bullying.  


 


 


Tier 2  


Elementary students in Tier 2 need more individualized support, and this comes in many forms 


including: 


● Check In/Check out where a student connects with an assigned adult at the beginning 
and end of each day. 


● Small Group Counseling  
● Individual Counseling 
● Tiered Support Meetings 
● SST/504 Intervention Meetings 
● Conflict Mediation/Resolution 
● Home Visits 
● PBIS Technician Support 


 


Tier 3 


Students in need of intensive support are identified in Tiers 1 and 2 by staff, and interventions 


become more individualized, consistent and intensive. Social Work Interns, under the 


supervision of our district Social Workers, meet with students and families, assess needs, and 


connect them with community resources.  


 


Secondary Tiered Supports 


Tier 1 


PBIS at the middle school level and Restorative Practices form the foundation of Tier 1 at the 


secondary levels. Each site has a well-coordinated counseling program that includes both one-


to-one and classroom academic and social emotional presentations, including mindfulness, 


anti-bullying, suicide prevention, active consent and sexual harrassment. Another layer to Tier 1 


efforts include the adoption of Second Step Curriculum at the middle school level. School 


Community Coordinators, like elementary,  are an integral part of secondary Tier 1.   Site based 


programs including student leadership, clubs, athletics, music, drama, CTE and other efforts 


connect students to school and one another based on common interest.  


 


Also, like elementary, professional development includes trauma-informed practices and 


suicide prevention training, mandatory reporting, and intervening for harassment and bullying.  


 


 


 


Tier 2 


149/268







Secondary Tier 2 intervention and support programs include 


● PBIS - Check-In / Check-Out 
● Small Group & Individual Counseling  
● Social Emotional Counselor Wrap Around Services 


○ Collaboration with Community Support teams (private therapist, pediatricians) 
○ Referrals to Community Counseling 
○ School Based Intervention Teams (Equity Team, PBIS Team, Attendance Team) 


● SST/504 Intervention Meetings 
 


 


Tier 3 


In Tier 3, Social Workers consult with School Counselors, Teachers, Mental Health Specialists, 


and Social Emotional Counselors to create plans that provide wrap-around services for students 


and families.  


 


Special Education Social Emotional and Behavioral Supports 


If  students need more than the MTSS Tiered supports, an Individualized Education Plans (IEPs) 


may be developed.  Students with IEPs have access to all of the tiers of support as described 


above.  Further, students with IEPs may receive a variety of services along a continuum of 


intensity.  For example, the following are available to address students’ mental health or 


behavioral needs: 


● Group counseling 


● Individual counseling 


● Behavior goals 


● Behavior intervention plans 


● Therapeutic day program placement 


● Residential treatment 


 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
 


Action/Program  Expenditure  Funding Source  


Positive Behavioral Intervention and 
Supports (PBIS) Technicians  


$200,440 
 


LCFF Supplemental (Restricted) 


Social Workers $249,267 
 


LCFF Supplemental (Restricted) 


Social Work Interns $55,440 LCFF Supplemental (Restricted) 


150/268







Restorative Justice Training $20,000 LCFF Supplemental (Restricted) 


Second Step Digital Curriculum $11,588 Medi-Cal Administrative 
Activities (MAA) Resources 
(Restricted) 


Soul Shoppe Curriculum $16,650 Medi-Cal Administrative 
Activities (MAA) Resources 
(Restricted) 


Social Emotional Counselors  $632,853 COVID Resources SB86 
(Restricted) 
 


Total:  $1,186,238 


 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


151/268







Multi-Tiered 
Systems of 
Support


March 4, 2022


LCAP Update - School Climate & Culture


152/268







There has never been a more important time to
know each student’s heart and mind well.


Restorative
Restart  a21-


22


153/268







Multi-Tiered System of Support District Vision


We use data and evidence based practices
to design and implement flexible, integrated, 
comprehensive systems responsive to the 
academic, behavioral, and social emotional
needs of our diverse students.


154/268







The last normal school year:


﹣ For Seniors was 9th Grade


﹣ For Juniors was 8th Grade


﹣ For Sophomores was 7th Grade


﹣ For Freshmen was 6th Grade


﹣ For 8th was 5th Grade


﹣ For 7th was 4th Grade


﹣ For 6th was 3rd Grade


155/268







The last normal school year:


﹣ For 5th Graders was 2nd Grade


﹣ For 4th Graders was 1st Grade


﹣ For 3rd Graders was Kindergarten


﹣ For 2nd Graders was never


﹣ For 1st Graders was never


﹣ For Kindergarteners was never


156/268







Social Emotional Health Survey Data


Effects of Distance Learning on Students' Social Well-Being 2019-2021


● 53% decline in students' feeling that society is becoming better
● 41% decline in students' feeling that society makes sense
● 34% decline in students' feeling that people are basically good
● 28% decline in students' feeling they make social contribution
● 2% increase in students' feeling they belong to community or group rebounded in 2021


Key Takeaways


1. Students' social well-being declined substantially from October 2019 to October 2021
2. Most declines occurred from 2019 to 2020
3. Students' feelings of belonging rebounded in 2021


157/268







MTSS Universal Social Emotional Screening Tools 


● Social Emotional Health Survey 3rd - 12th Grades


● LCAP Student Survey


● Safe School Climate Index (Secondary)


Key Data Points


● Attendance


● Behavior Referrals / Suspensions


● Nursing Logs


158/268







Tier 1
● Positive Behavior Interventions & Support


○ Social Emotional Curriculum 
○ Zones of Regulation
○ Schoolwide Expectations and Reinforcements
○ Mindfulness


● Elementary Counselors


● School Community Coordinators - help connect families to resources


Professional Development


Annual Mandatory Staff Trainings


Trauma Informed Instruction Practices


Elementary Tiered Supports


159/268







Tier 2


● Check In Check Out (students check in and out with an assigned adult each day)


● Small Group Counseling


● Individual Counseling


● Tiered Support Meetings


● SST/504 Intervention Meetings


● Conflict Mediation/Resolution


● Home Visits


● PBIS Technician Support


Elementary Tiered Supports


160/268







Tier 3


● Consult with Social Workers/Interns


● Referral to Community Organizations


Elementary Tiered Supports


161/268







Secondary
Multi-Tiered Systems 


of Support
Tiers 1, 2 & 3


162/268







● Positive Behavior Interventions and Support (Middle School)
○ Schoolwide Expectations and Reinforcements
○ Social Emotional Curriculum
○ Mindfulness Lessons
○ Anti-Bullying Program
○ Check-in Check Out


● School Connectedness Activities
○ Clubs (QSAs/Mental Health Clubs / Friday Night Live etc.)
○ Student Leadership 
○ Athletics
○ Drama 
○ Music
○ CTE


Secondary Tiered Supports: Tier One


163/268







● Counseling Program
○ School Counselors
○ Social Emotional Counselors
○ National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) student education 
○ Active Consent and Sexual Harassment Training
○ Thriving Youth Community Counseling (substance use intervention)
○ Parenting Support and Resources
○ Mental Health Pop-Up Day


● School Community Coordinators - help connect families to resources


● Professional Development
○ Annual Mandatory Staff Trainings
○ Trauma Informed / Restorative Practices 


Secondary Tiered Supports: Tier One


164/268







● PBIS - Check-In / Check-Out


● Small Group & Individual Counseling 


● Social Emotional Counselor Wrap Around Services


○ Collaboration with Community Support teams (private therapist, pediatricians)
○ Referrals to Community Counseling
○ School Based Intervention Teams (Equity Team, PBIS Team, Attendance Team)


● SST/504 Intervention Meetings


Secondary Tiered Supports: Tier Two


165/268







● Chronic Absenteeism


● Individual & Family Counseling


● Connect and Students and Families to Community Resources


● Address Food & Housing Insecurity


● School Based Intervention Teams 


● Staffing Consultation with School Counselors, Teachers, Mental Health Specialists, and 
Social Emotional Counselors


● Support Students Returning from Residential Treatment or Mental Health 
Hospitalizations


● Ongoing Summer Support


To date in 2021-22 -- 213 students have been served by district Social Workers


Secondary Tier 3: Social Work program (2 Social Workers / 6 Inters)


166/268







Promising Social Emotional Mid-Year Outcomes


Elementary 2020-21 2021-22


"I feel connected and engaged with school" 67% 80%


Secondary


"I feel connected and engaged with school" 43% 51%


"I am satisfied / very satisfied with my school 
experience"


38% 52%


167/268







Social Emotional & Behavioral Supports:


● Assessment driven


● Based on individual student need


● Introduced after general education 
supports have been exhausted


● Exist on a continuum


Special Education After Tier Three


168/268







General 
Education with 
related services 
(e.g., counseling)


Specialized Academic 
Instruction for less than 


50% of the day with 
related services 


Therapeutic 
Special Day Class 


on a school 
campus


Residential 
Treatment Facility 


and Non-Public 
Schools


All students with disabilities must be served in the least restrictive environment.
“Least restrictive” is defined relative to access to typical peers


Special Education Continuum of Service Options


Less Restrictive More Restrictive


169/268







Questions?


170/268







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Annual Wellness Committee Report 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal,  Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The current District Wellness Policy was created in 2013 through a robust committee including 
students, parents, teachers, administrators, and community.  This policy was one of the first in 
the state as well as the nation that included a definition of local purchasing, the elimination of 
unhealthy ingredients, marketing and advertising restrictions, and the incorporation 
requirements for physical activity. SCCS’s policy became one of the recommended templates 
for the State of California. 
 
A minor revision was made to the policy in 2017 that aligned the Wellness Policy to the Healthy 
Hunger Free Act and changes in the United States Department of Agriculture’s Nutrition 
Reauthorization. This year, the Santa Cruz City Schools Wellness Committee is leading the way 
and will be one of the first districts with the Wellness Committee’s recommendations to include 
the Whole Child Model in their planning and policy development. 
 
The annual Wellness Committee Report will provide an overview of the committee’s work this 
year and plans to bring forward a revised policy including student social emotional health and 
wellness to the Board for possible action in April.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  


171/268







Annual Wellness 


Committee Report


Amy Hedrick-Farr & Gail Atlansky 


March 9, 2022


172/268







Wellness Committee Mission
The educational mission of the Santa Cruz City School District includes improving the 


health and wellness in our community by teaching students to establish and maintain 


lifelong healthy eating and physical activity habits.


Adopted March 13, 2013


Last Revised: April 19, 2017


173/268







21Le
2021-22 Expanding our Wellness Focus


Committee Consensus:


● Continuing our focus on nutrition and physical health


● Expanding wellness to account for the “whole child”


174/268







The Whole Child Model


● School Nutrition


● Social & Emotional 


School Climate


● Social Emotional 


Learning


175/268







Wellness & 
Multi-Tiered 
Systems of 


Support 


Supporting the Social 


Emotional Health & 


Wellness of All 


Students 


Universal Assessments


● Social Emotional Health Survey


● LGBTQ+ Climate Index Survey


Professional Learning


● Annual Mandatory Staff Trainings


Three Tiers of Support


● School Safety Plans


● Social Emotional Learning (SEL), Positive 


Behavior Intervention & Support, Restorative 


Justice, Trauma Informed Practices


● Social Emotional Counseling


● Social Workers and Interns 
176/268







21Le


Social & Emotional Core Competencies


How Does Nutrition Fit?


Self Awareness
● Recognize how it feels to be full or hungry


● Realize healthy diet influences emotional well being and emotions may 


influence eating habits.


Self Management
● Nutrition education skills, including how to politely accept or turn down 


food


● Limit food-based celebrations, encourage students to ignore internal 


hunger cues


177/268







21Le


Social & Emotional Core Competencies


How Does Nutrition Fit?


Social Awareness
● Opportunity for students to try new foods and gain awareness of different 


enthic and cultural culinary varieties


Relationship Skills
● Adequate seat time allows students to both eat nutritious meals and 


socialize with peers


● School gardens and hands on learning opportunities foster teamwork and 


strengthen relationships between peers and teachers


Responsible Decision Making
● Teach food marketing strategies to influence decisions and making 


healthy choices


● Encourage students to take only what they will eat with self serve option
178/268







Connecting 
the Pieces 


Nutrition Outreach Education Specialist


● Coordinate, develop and implement an 


outreach and education program


● Engage students and inform parents and 


the school community of the current 


healthy options and programs 


● Bridge the gap between student, 


classroom, and the cafeteria


● Facilitate student focus groups


● Create nutrition education activities 


● Integrate with health, agriculture and 


culinary education


● Collaborate with teachers & admin179/268







Next Steps 


● Bring revised Wellness Policy to Board in April incorporating a 


focus on the “whole child”


● Add action items and metrics supporting the policy to the SCCS 


Excellence and Equity Action Plan under social emotional 


support


● Continue communication about the policy to staff, parents and 


students


● Work with school sites to link the classroom, school garden and 


the cafeteria for a collaborative “healthy habits” message


● Work collaboratively with Student Services and our Wellness 


Committee to select an assessment tool for the “whole child” 


method.


● Assess our nutritional standards and align with the New Child 


Reauthorization Act 2020. (not yet released)


180/268







Questions?


181/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Bond Budget Update 
 
MEETING DATE: March 9, 2022 
 
FROM: Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Each quarter staff presents an update on Bond expenditures and the projected budget for the 
fiscal year.  This report reflects Bond expenditures through February 28, 2022.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$30,000.00 Bond Finance Software Annual Fee 
67% Measure A & 33% B Bond Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


182/268







Measure A & B Update
Program Budgets and Expenditure Summary


Santa Cruz City Schools


Update through: February 28, 2022


183/268







02/28/2022 2


Program Snapshot of Bond Measures
Resource Expenditure Remaining Resources


Measure A: Secondary Schools $ 140,000,000.00 $ 92,858,969.82 $ 47,141,030.18


Measure B: Elementary Schools $ 68,000,000.00 $ 46,206,397.59 $ 21,793,602.41


Measures A & B $ 208,000,000.00 $ 139,065,367.41 $ 68,934,632.59


66%


34%


Measure A


Remaining Resource


68%


32%


Measure B


Remaining Resource


67%


33%


Measures A & B


Remaining Resource


184/268







02/28/2022 3


Bay View Elementary School (Measure B) Site Budget: $13,252,495.97


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Card Access Security System $ 210,000.00 $ 165,010.56 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 750,000.00 $ 748,794.76 


Modernization Phase 1 $ 6,900,000.00 $ 6,820,302.10 


Modernization Phase 2 $ 100,000.00 $ 4,300.00 


Multi Project Overhead $ 150,000.00 $ 86,091.68 


New Classroom Bldg. & Site Work $ 3,697,791.00* $ 3,697,791.00 


New Kindergarten Bldg. & Site Work $ 92,476.83* $ 92,476.83 


New WPENS Portable & Site Work $ 79,582.33* $ 79,582.33 


Portable Demolition and Site Work $ 80,000.00 $ 10,250.00 


Re-Roof $ 925,529.14* $ 925,529.14 


Site Infrastructure $100,000.00 $ 50,824.51 


$13,085,379.30 $12,680,952.91


96%


4%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


185/268







02/28/2022 4


Branciforte Middle School (Measure A) Site Budget: $17,816,427.16


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Campus Re-Roof $ 1,678,923.35* $ 1,678,923.35 


Card Access Security System $ 250,000.00 $ 183,904.19 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 450,000.00 $ 432,950.66 


General Classroom Modifications $ 5,000,000.00 $ 683,505.09 


Library/Science Improvements $ 5,000,000.00 $ 200,414.16 


Multi Project Overhead $ 250,000.00 $ 147,911.69 


Music/MPR $ 2,600,000.00 $ 2,551,075.59 


Parking Lot Improvements $ 204,691.11* $ 204,691.11 


Relocatable Removal $ 5,000.00 $ 900.00 


Street Presence $ 1,700,000.00 $ 1,569,775.43 


Utility Infrastructure $ 120,000.00 $ 9,244.55 


$17,258,614.46 $7,663,295.82


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


43%


57%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


186/268







02/28/2022 5


Branciforte Small Schools (Measure B) Site Budget: $9,184,763.86


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Alternative Family Education Campus $ 2,000,000.00 $ 1,961,336.86 


Card Access Security System $ 170,000.00 $ 147,900.93 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 900,000.00 $ 847,710.24 


Modernization Phase 1 $ 1,540,549.00 $ 526,354.92 


Multi Project Overhead $ 57,000.00 $ 25,397.00 


New Classroom Building $ 3,385,573.69* $ 3,385,573.69 


Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelter $ 570,685.10* $ 570,685.10 


Site Infrastructure $ 10,366.45* $ 10,366.45 


$8,634,174.24 $7,475,325.19


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


81%


19%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


187/268







02/28/2022 6


DeLaveaga Elementary School (Measure B) Site Budget: $15,188,051.42


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Card Access Security System $ 200,000.00 $ 176,991.82 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 875,000.00 $ 859,463.15 


Modernization Phase 1 $ 7,850,000.00 $ 7,447,634.58 


Modernization Phase 2 $ 350,500.00 $ 339,500.00 


Multi Project Overhead $ 100,000.00 $ 60,947.40 


New Classroom Building $ 3,630,000.00 $ 3,621,276.12 


New Parking Lot $ 1,542,166.47* $ 1,542,166.47 


Portable Building Demo and Site Work $ 300,000.00 $ 44,582.00 


Re-Roofing Project $ 32,994.00 $ 26,395.20 


Site Infrastructure $ 70,000.00 $ 64,668.50 


$14,950,660.47 $14,183,625.24


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


93%


7%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


188/268







02/28/2022 7


Gault Elementary School (Measure B) Site Budget: $9,875,138.12


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Card Access Security System $ 120,000.00 $ 106,814.63 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 525,000.00 $ 471,686.49 


Modernization Phase 1 Main Building $ 150,000.00 $ 135,889.03 


Modernization Phase 3 Envelope $ 280,388.73* $ 280,388.73 


Multi Project Overhead $ 200,000.00 $ 127,162.67 


New Classroom Building 1 $ 7,500,000.00 $ 297,246.25 


Re-Roof $ 849,397.12* $ 849,397.12 


Utility Infrastructure $ 48,248.19* $ 48,248.19 


$9,673,034.04 $2,316,833.11


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


23%


77%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


189/268







02/28/2022 8


Harbor High School (Measure A) Site Budget: $29,757,368.44


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Athletic Field Improvements $ 11,966,656.63* $ 11,966,656.63 


Card Access Security System $ 450,000.00 $ 343,818.75 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 1,050,000.00 $ 1,046,533.09 


Electric Hand Dryers $ 185,790.23* $ 185,790.23 


External Security $ 143,174.76 $ 143,174.76 


Modernization Phase 1 MPR/Kitchen $ 10,000.00 $ 6,215.00 


Modernization Phase 2 FA/PA/H/MC/A $ 2,000,000.00 $ 734,790.70 


Modernization Phase 3 S/CT/Quad/Gym $25,000.00 $ 21,819.10 


Multi Project Overhead $ 150,000.00 $ 114,428.26 


New Electrical $ 110,970.53* $ 110,970.53 


Re-Roof $ 2,152,749.85* $ 2,152,749.85 


Site Infrastructure $ 60,000.00 $ 29,141.41 


Student Locker Improvements $ 257,067.04* $  257,067.04 


Swimming Pool $ 10,706,787.78* $ 10,676,166.09 


Tennis Court Remodel $ 181,444.00* $ 181,444.00 


Upper Parking Lot/Drop Off $ 21,805.95* $ 21,805.95 


$29,471,446.77 $27,992,571.39


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


94%


6%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


190/268







02/28/2022 9


Mission Hill Middle School (Measure A) Site Budget: $18,399,904.97


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Artificial Field $ 3,350,000.00 $ 3,328,771.02 


Card Access Security System $ 240,000.00 $ 193,011.11 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 450,000.00 $ 403,052.04 


Front Landscape $ 1,299,864.26* $ 1,299,864.26 


Gym Locker Rooms Phase 1 $ 188,535.83* $ 188,535.83 


Gym Phase 2 Improvements $ 18,901.00 $ 9,548.00 


Modernization Phase 1 Main Building $ 750,000.00 $ 662,791.19 


Modernization Phase 2 Main Building $ 225,000.00 $ 24,085.00 


Modernization Phase 3 Envelope $ 2,200,000.00 $  25,600.00 


Multi Project Overhead $ 200,000.00 $ 150,437.67 


New Classroom Building $ 5,500,000.00 $ 6,766.25 


Roofing Phase 1 $ 1,650,137.99* $ 1,650,137.99 


Roofing Phase 2 $ 900,000.00 $ 765,266.30 


SDC Portable $ 12,100.00* $ 12,100.00 


Site Improvements $ 150,000.00 $ 126,217.50 


Utility Infrastructure $ 1,250,000.00 $ 1,184,724.00 


$18,384,539.08 $10,030,908.16


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


55%


45%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


191/268







02/28/2022 10


Natural Bridges Elementary School (Measure B) Site Budget: $4,280,641.34


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Artificial Field $ 106,061.44* $ 106,061.44


Campus Roofing $ 1,537,050.74* $ 1,537,050.74


GYM Modernization Phase 1 and Parking Lot $ 774,274.67* $ 774,274.67


GYM Modernization Phase 2 and Modular 


Restroom Building
$ 1,206,091.80* $ 1,206,091.80


Modernization and Repairs $ 651,592.69* $ 651,592.69


Multi Project Overhead $ 5,570.00* $ 5,570.00


$4,280,641.34 $4,280,641.34


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


100%


0%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


192/268







02/28/2022 11


Santa Cruz High School (Measure A) Site Budget: $33,421,066.34


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Artificial Turf Project COP $ 1,437,463.72* $ 1,437,463.72 


Athletic Facility Upgrades $ 700,000.00 $ 383,627.88 


Campus Re-Roof Phase 1 $ 2,245,944.17* $ 2,245,944.17 


Campus Re-Roof Phase 2 $ 443,216.48* $ 443,216.48 


Card Access Security System $ 500,000.00 $ 372,167.20 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 1,550,000.00 $ 1,478,594.64 


External Security $ 225,500.00 $ 206,865.50 


Gym Modernization Phase 1 & 2 $ 6,200,000.00 $ 1,499,084.33


Modernization Phase 1 Main Building $ 1,500,000.00 $  895,572.35 


Modernization Phase 2 Cafe/CR/Toilets $ 5,816,000.00 $ 1,089,493.08 


Modernization Phase 3 Math/Science/Library $ 1,250,000.00 $ 152,001.35 


Modernization Phase 4 Main Building $ 3,750,000.00 $ 326,508.89 


Modernization Transportation 1 & 2 $ 218,045.68* $ 218,045.68


Multi Project Overhead $ 200,000.00 $ 176,966.87 


New Electrical $ 1,500,000.00 $ 1,423,865.18 


New Pool House $ 3,250,000.00 $ 91,900.50 


Temp Housing $ 350,000.00 $ 295,137.61 


Utility Infrastructure $ 800,000.00 $ 762,931.71 


$31,936,170.05 $13,499,387.14


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


40%


60%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


193/268







02/28/2022 12


Soquel High School (Measure A) Site Budget: $36,297,747.64


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Artificial Turf Project COP $ 1,527,269.08* $ 1,527,269.08 


Card Access Security System $ 375,000.00 $ 335,766.01 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 1,500,000.00 $ 1,392,811.49 


External Security $ 93,894.00* $ 93,894.00 


Interim Housing $ 108,804.00* $ 108,804.00 


Modernization Phase 1 (300) $ 2,000,000.00 $ 1,947,707.66 


Modernization Phase 2 (100/200) $ 13,000,000.00 $ 12,634,869.97 


Modernization Phase 3 $ 4,000,000.00 $ 1,961,570.12 


Multi Project Overhead $ 125,000.00 $ 76,087.65 


New Snack Shack $ 1,836,368.05* $ 1,836,368.05 


Performing Arts Center $ 161,113.00 $ 67,590.63 


Site Infrastructure $ 3,800,000.00 $ 3,766,824.02 


Swimming Pool $ 7,432,938.18* $ 7,463,559.87 


Tennis Court Remodel $ 209,524.00* $ 209,524.00 


$36,169,910.31 $33,422,646.55


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


92%


8%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


194/268







02/28/2022 13


Westlake Elementary School (Measure B) Site Budget: $14,382,633.08


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure 


Card Access Security System $ 220,000.00 $ 149,590.74 


Data Infrastructure Improvements $ 985,000.00 $ 976,547.53 


Lower Parking and Drive $ 1,000,000.00 $ 53,122.24 


Modernization Phase 1 Upper Wing $ 1,000,000.00 $ 145,193.40 


Modernization Phase 2 Lower Wing $ 1,000,000.00 $ 109,129.85 


Modernization Phase 3 Multipurpose $ 300,000.00 $ 80,459.66 


Multi Project Overhead $ 200,000.00 $ 136,431.32 


New Upper Classroom $ 5,000,000.00 $ 42,790.00 


Roof Replacement $ 2,270,053.15* $ 2,270,053.15 


Site Improvements Sign, Fence, Access $ 1,000,000.00 $ 656,776.08 


Utility Infrastructure $ 1,000,000.00 $ 648,925.83 


$13,975,053.15 $5,269,019.80


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


37%


63%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


195/268







02/28/2022 14


Set-Aside Funds (Measure A) Budget: $3,500,000.00


Project Categories Allocation Expenditure


Central Kitchen Cold Storage at DeLaveaga
$97,500.00 $ 10,486.00 


Central Kitchen Cold Storage at Harbor
$ 1,235,000.00 $ 121,674.14 


Palm Street Maintenance Facility


Parking Lot and Safety Lighting
$ 357,500.00 $ 69,003.36 


Transportation Trailer $ 1,137,500.00 $ 48,997.26 


Americans with Disabilities Act Access at   


Central Office
$81,250.00 $ 0.00


Palm Street Maintenance Facility


District Network & Key Cards $ 123,500.00 $ 0.00


$3,032,250.00 $250,160.76


* Denotes projects that are complete. 


7%


93%


Expensed Budget
Remaining Budget


196/268







02/28/2022 15


Questions?


197/268







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.2.3. 
 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: AB 1200 for Tentative 2021-22 Collective Bargaining Agreement, 


between Santa Cruz City Schools and the Administrators and 
Management (AMA), Cabinet, and Confidential  


 
MEETING DATE: March 9, 2022 
 
FROM: Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
  
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve AB 1200 Public Disclosure on tentative bargaining agreement with the Administrators 
and Management (AMA), Cabinet, and Confidential meet and confer groups for 2021-22. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A tentative bargaining agreement for 2021-22 has been reached with the District’s meet and 
confer groups, the Administrators and Management (AMA), Cabinet, and Confidential. The 
Board is required by AB 1200 to make this tentative agreement available to the public, to 
publicly disclose its costs. 
 
The proposed agreement for 2021-22 will provide a 2.75% increase on the Certificated 
Management, Classified Management, Cabinet including Superintendent, and Confidential 
salary schedules, starting July 1, 2021. This 2.75% is in addition to the 2.0% negotiated 
previously for the 2021-22 salary schedule.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
A recurring annual cost increase of $202,054 retroactive to July 1, 2021 for the 2.75% rate 
increase. 
Funding Source: LCFF Base (Unrestricted), Federal Categorical Programs (Restricted), State and 
Local Funds (Restricted and Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


198/268







Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
Business Services Department


Certificated or Classified:


July 1, 2021 and ending: June 30, 2022
(date) (date)


March 9, 2022
(date)


Annual
Cost Prior to


Proposed Agreement Year 1            
Increase/(Decrease)


Year 2            
Increase/(Decrease)


Year 3            
Increase/(Decrease)


FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24
Salary Schedule 
Increase (Decrease)


2.75% 0.00% 0.00%
Step and Column - Increase
(Decrease) Due to movement plus
any changes due to settlement


0.00% 0.00% 0.00%


Description of other compensation


2.81% 0.00% 0.00%


0.00% 0.00% 0.00%


7 Total Number of Represented Employees  
(Use FTEs if appropriate)


44.86 


2.55% 0.00% 0.00%


Form Revised May, 2017
Page 1 Santa Cruz Couny Office of Education


2


1


Compensation Fiscal Impact of Proposed Agreement


$162,123$5,895,371


5 Health/Welfare Plans


3 Other Compensation - Increase
(Decrease)(Stipends, Bonuses, Longevity,
Overtime, etc.) 


**Included in base above


4 Statutory Benefits - STRS, PERS, FICA,
WC, UI, Medicate etc.


$39,931$1,421,239


$7,934,231 $202,054 $0 $0


$0$617,621


6 Total Compensation - Increase 
(Decrease) (Total Lines 1-5)


in Accordance with AB 1200 (Chapter 1213/1991), GC 3547.5, and CCR, Title V, Section 15449
PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT


A. Proposed Change in Compensation


8 Total Compensation Average Cost per 
Employee 


 $          176,866.50  $                  4,504.10  $                            -    $                            -   


Certificated/Classified Management/Cabinet, and Confidential


Note: This form, along with a copy of the proposed agreement, must be submitted to the county office at least ten 
(10) working days prior to the date the governing board will take action.


Santa Cruz City Schools
Administrators and Management Association, Cabinet, and Confidential


Name of School District:
Name of Bargaining Unit:


The proposed agreement covers the period beginning:


The Governing Board will act upon this agreement on:


199/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 2


9.


10.


11.


12. Does this bargaining unit have a negotiated cap for Health and Welfare benefits Yes X No


B.


C.


None.


other services or programs (i.e., counselors, librarians, custodial staff, etc.)


If yes, please describe the cap amount.


changes such as staff reductions or increases, program reductions or increases, elimination or expansion of 


What are the specific impacts on instructional and support programs to accommodate the settlement?
Please indicate the status of these changes: 1) planning stage, 2) in-progess, or 3) adopted.  Include the impact o


What was the negotiated percentage increase approved? For example, if the increase in "Year 1" was for


Were any additional steps, columns, or ranges added to the schedules? (If yes, please explain.)


less than a full year, what is the annualized percentage of that increase for "Year 1"?


In 2021-22 the district and AMA agreed to a 2.75% increase to the salary schedule, this also includes Cabinet
and the Superintendent. This also includes a 2.75% increase for the Confidential employees on the salary
schedule.


Proposed Negotiated Changes in Noncompensation Items (i.e., class size adjustments, etc.)


AMA, Cabinet and Confidential have a 70/30 split, 70% district and 30% employee. Confidential has a hard
cap at Blue Shield HMO $25 Office/$500 Hospital plan rates, district picks up 70% of increases and employee
picks up 30%. All other confidential plans are 100% employee portion if the premium cost is more than the
cap.


Please include comments and explanations as necessary.


None


200/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 2


None.


201/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 3


D.


E.


F.


G.
1.  Current Year


General Fund Unrestricted, Restricted Funds, Fund 13, and Fund 21


Will this agreement create, increase or decrease deficit spending in the current or subsequent year(s)?


Describe other major provisions that do not directly affect the district's costs, such as binding


and other financing sources in a given year.  If yes, explain the amounts and justification for doing so.
"Deficit spending" is defined to exist when a fund's expenditures and other financing uses exceed its revenues


Yes, this will increase the deficit spending and the district does have a reserve over the 3% mininum to cover
these costs. 


which may or may not affect the district's fund balance in future years.
None.


arbitrations, grievance procedures, etc.  Please disclose any other components of the agreement 


General Fund Unrestricted, Restricted Funds, Fund 13, and Fund 21


3.  If this is a multiyear agreement, what is the source of funding, including assumptions used, to fund these
     obligations in subsequent years?  (Remember to include compounding effects in meeting obligations.)


2.  If this is a single year agreement, how will the on-going cost of the proposed agreement be funded in 
     subsequent years (i.e., what will allow the district to afford this contract)?


reopeners, applicable fiscal years, and specific contingency language.
None.


What contingency language is included in the proposed agreement? Include specific areas identified


Source of Funding for Proposed Agreement


202/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 4a


Santa Cruz City Schools
Bargaining Unit:


Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board-


Approved Budget 
Before Settlement 


(12/15/21)


Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement


Other Revisions Total Current Budget          
(Columns 1+2+3) 


REVENUES
    Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)  $     75,037,138.00  $                       -    $                       -    $     75,037,138.00 


     Remaining Revenues   (8100-8799)  $       8,204,969.00  $                       -    $                       -    $       8,204,969.00 


TOTAL REVENUES  $     83,242,107.00  $                       -    $                       -    $     83,242,107.00 


EXPENDITURES
     Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)  $     30,837,202.00  $          96,560.00  $                       -    $     30,933,762.00 


     Classified Salaries (2000-2999)  $       9,824,568.00  $          36,106.00  $                       -    $       9,860,674.00 


     Employee Benefits (3000-3999)  $     16,545,825.00  $          31,977.00  $                       -    $     16,577,802.00 


     Books and Supplies (4000-4999)  $       3,565,945.00  $                       -    $                       -    $       3,565,945.00 


     Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999)  $       6,740,571.00  $                       -    $                       -    $       6,740,571.00 


     Capital Outlay (6000-6599)  $          277,364.00  $                       -    $                       -    $          277,364.00 


     Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499)  $            25,362.00  $                       -    $                       -    $            25,362.00 


     Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399)  $     (1,304,190.00)  $                       -    $                       -    $     (1,304,190.00)


     Other Adjustments


TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $     66,512,647.00  $        164,643.00  $                       -    $     66,677,290.00 


OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)  $     16,729,460.00  $      (164,643.00)  $                       -    $     16,564,817.00 


TRANSFERS IN & OTHER SOURCES (8910-8979)  $       2,500,000.00  $                       -    $                       -    $       2,500,000.00 


TRANSFERS OUT & OTHER USES (7610-7699)  $          602,397.00  $                       -    $                       -    $          602,397.00 


CONTRIBUTIONS (8980-8999)  $   (20,305,562.00)  $        (24,449.00)  $                       -    $   (20,330,011.00)


BEGINNING BALANCE  $     23,701,879.00  $     23,701,879.00 


    Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements (9793/9795)  $                        -    $                        -   


CURRENT-YEAR ENDING BALANCE  $     22,023,380.00  $      (189,092.00)  $                       -    $     21,834,288.00 


COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:


Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9739)  $            63,484.00  $                       -    $                       -    $            63,484.00 


Restricted Amounts (9740)  $                        -    $                       -    $                       -    $                        -   


Reserves for Economic Uncertainties (9789)  $       3,575,122.00  $            5,672.00  $                       -    $       3,580,794.00 


Committed Amounts (9750-9760)  $                        -    $                       -    $                       -    $                        -   


Assigned Amounts (9780)  $     15,871,467.00  $        744,358.00  $                       -    $     16,615,825.00 


Unassigned Amount (9790)  $       2,321,380.00  $      (939,122.00)  $       1,382,258.00 


*  Please see question on page 7.


 $     (1,867,591.00)


H.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET


CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
FUND BALANCE


Administrators and Management Association, Cabinet, and Confidential
Unrestricted General Fund


 $     (1,678,499.00)  $      (189,092.00)  $                       -   


203/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 4b


Santa Cruz City Schools
Bargaining Unit:


Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board-


Approved Budget 
Before Settlement 


(12/15/21)


Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement


Other Revisions Total Current Budget          
(Columns 1+2+3) 


REVENUES
    Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)  $                         -    $                        -    $                        -    $                         -   


     Remaining Revenues   (8100-8799)  $     27,539,669.00  $                        -    $                        -    $     27,539,669.00 


TOTAL REVENUES  $     27,539,669.00  $                        -    $                        -    $     27,539,669.00 


EXPENDITURES
     Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)  $     11,701,418.00  $           14,429.00  $                        -    $     11,715,847.00 


     Classified Salaries (2000-2999)  $       5,352,644.00  $             5,280.00  $                        -    $       5,357,924.00 


     Employee Benefits (3000-3999)  $     10,387,022.00  $             4,740.00  $                        -    $     10,391,762.00 


     Books and Supplies (4000-4999)  $     14,687,390.00  $                        -    $                        -    $     14,687,390.00 


     Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999)  $       7,929,877.00  $                        -    $                        -    $       7,929,877.00 


     Capital Outlay (6000-6599)  $          693,136.00  $                        -    $                        -    $          693,136.00 


     Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499)  $                         -    $                        -    $                        -    $                         -   


     Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399)  $       1,304,190.00  $                        -    $                        -    $       1,304,190.00 


     Other Adjustments


TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $     52,055,677.00  $           24,449.00  $                        -    $     52,080,126.00 


OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)  $   (24,516,008.00)  $         (24,449.00)  $                        -    $   (24,540,457.00)


TRANSFERS IN & OTHER SOURCES (8910-8979)  $                         -    $                        -    $                        -    $                         -   


TRANSFERS OUT & OTHER USES (7610-7699)  $                         -    $                        -    $                        -    $                         -   


CONTRIBUTIONS (8980-8999)  $     20,305,562.00  $           24,449.00  $                        -    $     20,330,011.00 


BEGINNING BALANCE  $       4,593,213.00  $       4,593,213.00 


    Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements (9793/9795)  $                         -    $                         -   


CURRENT-YEAR ENDING BALANCE  $          382,767.00  $                        -    $                        -    $          382,767.00 


COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:


Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9739)  $                         -    $                        -    $                        -    $                         -   


Restricted Amounts (9740)  $          574,694.00  $                        -    $                        -    $          574,694.00 


Committed Amounts (9750-9760)  $                         -    $                        -    $                        -    $                         -   


Assigned Amounts (9775-9780)  $                         -    $                        -    $                        -    $                         -   


Unassigned Amount (9790)


*  Please see question on page 7.


H.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET


CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
FUND BALANCE


Administrators and Management Association, Cabinet, and Confidential
Restricted General Fund


 $     (4,210,446.00)  $                        -    $                        -    $     (4,210,446.00)


204/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 4c


Santa Cruz City Schools
Bargaining Unit:


Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board-


Approved Budget 
Before Settlement 


(12/15/21)


Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement


Other Revisions Total Current Budget          
(Columns 1+2+3) 


REVENUES
    Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)  $     75,037,138.00  $                       -    $                       -    $     75,037,138.00 


     Remaining Revenues   (8100-8799)  $     35,744,638.00  $                       -    $                       -    $     35,744,638.00 


TOTAL REVENUES  $   110,781,776.00  $                       -    $                       -    $   110,781,776.00 


EXPENDITURES
     Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)  $     42,538,620.00  $        110,989.00  $                       -    $     42,649,609.00 


     Classified Salaries (2000-2999)  $     15,177,212.00  $          41,386.00  $                       -    $     15,218,598.00 


     Employee Benefits (3000-3999)  $     26,932,847.00  $          36,717.00  $                       -    $     26,969,564.00 


     Books and Supplies (4000-4999)  $     18,253,335.00  $                       -    $                       -    $     18,253,335.00 


     Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999)  $     14,670,448.00  $                       -    $                       -    $     14,670,448.00 


     Capital Outlay (6000-6599)  $          970,500.00  $                       -    $                       -    $          970,500.00 


     Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499)  $            25,362.00  $                       -    $                       -    $            25,362.00 


     Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399)  $                         -    $                       -    $                       -    $                         -   


     Other Adjustments


TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $   118,568,324.00  $        189,092.00  $                       -    $   118,757,416.00 


OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)  $     (7,786,548.00)  $       (189,092.00)  $                       -    $     (7,975,640.00)


TRANSFERS IN & OTHER SOURCES (8910-8979)  $       2,500,000.00  $                       -    $                       -    $       2,500,000.00 


TRANSFERS OUT & OTHER USES (7610-7699)  $          602,397.00  $                       -    $                       -    $          602,397.00 


CONTRIBUTIONS (8980-8999)  $                         -    $                       -    $                       -    $                         -   


BEGINNING BALANCE  $     28,295,092.00  $     28,295,092.00 


    Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements (9793/9795)  $                         -    $                         -   


CURRENT-YEAR ENDING BALANCE  $     22,406,147.00  $       (189,092.00)  $                       -    $     22,217,055.00 


COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:


Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9739)  $            63,484.00  $                       -    $                       -    $            63,484.00 


Restricted Amounts (9740)  $          574,694.00  $                       -    $                       -    $          574,694.00 


Reserves for Economic Uncertainties (9789)  $       3,575,122.00  $            5,672.00  $                       -    $       3,580,794.00 


Committed Amounts (9750-9760)  $                         -    $                       -    $                       -    $                         -   


Assigned Amounts (9775-9780)  $     15,871,467.00  $        744,358.00  $                       -    $     16,615,825.00 


Unassigned Amount (9790)  $       2,321,380.00  $       (939,122.00)  $                       -    $       1,382,258.00 


Unassigned Amount - Restricted (9790)


Reserve for Economic Uncertainties Percentage 5% 4%


*  Please see question on page 7.


H.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET


CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
FUND BALANCE


Administrators and Management Association, Cabinet, and Confidential
Combined General Fund


 $     (5,888,945.00)  $       (189,092.00)  $                       -    $     (6,078,037.00)


205/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 4d


                                                                     Enter Fund:
Enter Bargaining Unit:


Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board-


Approved Budget 
Before Settlement 


(12/15/21)


Adjustments as a 
Result of Settlement


Other Revisions Total Current Budget          
(Columns 1+2+3) 


REVENUES
    Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)  $                       -   


     Remaining Revenues   (8100-8799)  $     1,762,602.00  $     1,762,602.00 


TOTAL REVENUES  $     1,762,602.00  $                       -    $                       -    $     1,762,602.00 


EXPENDITURES
     Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)  $                       -    $                       -   


     Classified Salaries (2000-2999)  $     1,110,171.00  $            9,748.00  $     1,119,919.00 


     Employee Benefits (3000-3999)  $        688,508.00  $            3,214.00  $        691,722.00 


     Books and Supplies (4000-4999)  $     1,025,765.00  $           (5,168.00)  $     1,020,597.00 


     Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999)  $          91,077.00  $          91,077.00 


     Capital Outlay (6000-6599)  $   28,134,162.00  $           (7,794.00)  $   28,126,368.00 


     Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499)  $                       -   


     Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399)  $                       -   


     Other Adjustments


TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $   31,049,683.00  $                       -    $                       -    $   31,049,683.00 


OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)  $  (29,287,081.00)  $                       -    $                       -    $  (29,287,081.00)


TRANSFERS IN & OTHER SOURCES (8910-8979)  $   63,002,397.00  $   63,002,397.00 


TRANSFERS OUT & OTHER USES (7610-7699)  $                       -   


CONTRIBUTIONS (8980-8999)  $                       -   


BEGINNING BALANCE  $   17,088,098.00  $   17,088,098.00 


    Prior-Year Adjustments/Restatements (9793/9795)  $                       -   


CURRENT-YEAR ENDING BALANCE  $   50,803,414.00  $                       -    $                       -    $   50,803,414.00 


COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:


Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9739)  $                       -   


Restricted Amounts (9740)  $   50,803,414.00  $   50,803,414.00 


Reserves for Economic Uncertainties (9789)  $                       -   


Committed Amounts (9750-9760)  $                       -   


Assigned Amounts (9775-9780)  $                       -   


Unassigned Amount (9790)  $                       -    $                       -    $                       -    $                       -   


Unassigned Amount - Restricted (9790)  $                       -   


Reserve for Economic Uncertainties Percentage


*  Please see question on page 7.


H.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET


CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
FUND BALANCE


Administrators and Management Association, Cabinet, and Confidential
Cafeteria-Fund 13 and Building-Fund 21 


 $   33,715,316.00  $                       -    $                       -    $   33,715,316.00 


206/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 5a


Santa Cruz City Schools
Enter Bargaining Unit:


2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Total Current Budget 


After Settlement 
First Subsequent Year 


After Settlement
Second Subsequent Year 


After Settlement


REVENUES
    Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)  $          75,037,138.00  $          76,484,699.00  $          75,901,244.00 


     Remaining Revenues   (8100-8799)  $            8,204,969.00  $            8,170,503.00  $            8,136,210.00 


TOTAL REVENUES  $          83,242,107.00  $          84,655,202.00  $          84,037,454.00 


EXPENDITURES
     Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)  $          30,933,762.00  $          31,470,911.00  $          31,934,552.00 


     Classified Salaries (2000-2999)  $            9,860,674.00  $          10,116,290.00  $          10,300,660.00 


     Employee Benefits (3000-3999)  $          16,577,802.00  $          18,525,160.00  $          19,292,443.00 


     Books and Supplies (4000-4999)  $            3,565,945.00  $            2,536,655.00  $            2,536,655.00 


     Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999)  $            6,740,571.00  $            7,046,315.00  $            6,955,927.00 


     Capital Outlay (6000-6999)  $               277,364.00  $               277,364.00  $               277,364.00 


     Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499)  $                 25,362.00  $                 25,362.00  $                 25,362.00 


     Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399)  $          (1,304,190.00)  $          (1,275,419.00)  $          (1,307,942.00)


     Other Adjustments  $                             -    $                             -   


TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $          66,677,290.00  $          68,722,638.00  $          70,015,021.00 


OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)  $          16,564,817.00  $          15,932,564.00  $          14,022,433.00 


TRANSFERS IN & OTHER SOURCES (8910-8979)  $            2,500,000.00  $            2,500,000.00  $            2,500,000.00 


TRANSFERS OUT & OTHER USES (7610-7699)  $               602,397.00  $               300,000.00  $               300,000.00 


CONTRIBUTIONS (8980-8999)  $        (20,330,011.00)  $        (21,303,133.00)  $        (21,789,403.00)


BEGINNING BALANCE  $          23,701,879.00  $          21,834,288.00  $          18,663,719.00 


CURRENT-YEAR ENDING BALANCE  $          21,834,288.00  $          18,663,719.00  $          13,096,749.00 


COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:


Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9739)  $                 63,484.00  $                 63,484.00  $                 63,484.00 


Restricted Amounts (9740)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


Reserves for Economic Uncertainties (9789)  $            3,580,794.00  $            3,053,258.00  $            3,095,135.00 


Committed Amounts (9750-9760)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


Assigned Amounts (9780)  $          16,615,825.00  $          13,102,361.00  $            7,292,148.00 


Unassigned Amount Unrestricted (9790)  $            1,382,258.00  $            2,444,616.00  $            2,645,982.00 


Unassigned Amount - Restricted (9790)


I.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS


CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE


strators and Management Association, Cabinet, and Conf
MYP - Unrestricted General Fund


 $          (1,867,591.00)  $          (3,170,569.00)  $          (5,566,970.00)


207/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 5b


Santa Cruz City Schools
Enter Bargaining Unit:


2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Total Current Budget 


After Settlement 
First Subsequent Year 


After Settlement
Second Subsequent Year 


After Settlement


REVENUES
    Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


     Remaining Revenues   (8100-8799)  $          27,539,669.00  $          11,066,744.00  $          11,066,744.00 


TOTAL REVENUES  $          27,539,669.00  $          11,066,744.00  $          11,066,744.00 


EXPENDITURES
     Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)  $          11,715,847.00  $            7,872,616.00  $            7,989,727.00 


     Classified Salaries (2000-2999)  $            5,357,924.00  $            4,327,662.00  $            4,408,120.00 


     Employee Benefits (3000-3999)  $          10,391,762.00  $            9,869,869.00  $          10,132,983.00 


     Books and Supplies (4000-4999)  $          14,687,390.00  $            2,227,092.00  $            1,837,389.00 


     Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999)  $            7,929,877.00  $            6,789,122.00  $            6,789,122.00 


     Capital Outlay (6000-6999)  $               693,136.00  $               390,864.00  $               390,864.00 


     Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


     Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399)  $            1,304,190.00  $            1,275,419.00  $            1,307,942.00 


     Other Adjustments  $                             -    $                             -   


TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $          52,080,126.00  $          32,752,644.00  $          32,856,147.00 


OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)  $        (24,540,457.00)  $        (21,685,900.00)  $        (21,789,403.00)


TRANSFERS IN & OTHER SOURCES (8910-8979)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


TRANSFERS OUT & OTHER USES (7610-7699)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


CONTRIBUTIONS (8980-8999)  $          20,330,011.00  $          21,303,133.00  $          21,789,403.00 


BEGINNING BALANCE  $            4,593,213.00  $               382,767.00  $                             -   


CURRENT-YEAR ENDING BALANCE  $               382,767.00  $                             -    $                             -   


COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:


Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9739)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


Restricted Amounts (9740)  $               574,694.00  $                             -    $                             -   


Reserves for Economic Uncertainties (9789)


Committed Amounts (9750-9760)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


Assigned Amounts (9775-9780)  $                             -    $                             -    $                             -   


Unassigned Amount Unrestricted (9790)


Unassigned Amount - Restricted (9790)


I.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS


CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE


strators and Management Association, Cabinet, and Conf
MYP - Restricted General Fund


 $          (4,210,446.00)  $             (382,767.00)  $                             -   


208/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 5c


Santa Cruz City Schools
Enter Bargaining Unit:


2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Total Current Budget 


After Settlement 
First Subsequent Year 


After Settlement
Second Subsequent Year 


After Settlement


REVENUES
    Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)  $          75,037,138.00  $          76,484,699.00  $          75,901,244.00 


     Remaining Revenues   (8100-8799)  $          35,744,638.00  $          19,237,247.00  $          19,202,954.00 


TOTAL REVENUES  $        110,781,776.00  $          95,721,946.00  $          95,104,198.00 


EXPENDITURES
     Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)  $          42,649,609.00  $          39,343,527.00  $          39,924,279.00 


     Classified Salaries (2000-2999)  $          15,218,598.00  $          14,443,952.00  $          14,708,780.00 


     Employee Benefits (3000-3999)  $          26,969,564.00  $          28,395,029.00  $          29,425,426.00 


     Books and Supplies (4000-4999)  $          18,253,335.00  $            4,763,747.00  $            4,374,044.00 


     Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999)  $          14,670,448.00  $          13,835,437.00  $          13,745,049.00 


     Capital Outlay (6000-6999)  $               970,500.00  $               668,228.00  $               668,228.00 


     Other Outgo (7100-7299) (7400-7499)  $                 25,362.00  $                 25,362.00  $                 25,362.00 


     Direct Support/Indirect Cost (7300-7399)  $                              -    $                              -    $                              -   


     Other Adjustments  $                              -    $                              -   


TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $        118,757,416.00  $        101,475,282.00  $        102,871,168.00 


OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)  $          (7,975,640.00)  $          (5,753,336.00)  $          (7,766,970.00)


TRANSFERS IN & OTHER SOURCES (8910-8979)  $            2,500,000.00  $            2,500,000.00  $            2,500,000.00 


TRANSFERS OUT & OTHER USES (7610-7699)  $               602,397.00  $               300,000.00  $               300,000.00 


BEGINNING BALANCE  $          28,295,092.00  $          22,217,055.00  $          18,663,719.00 


CURRENT-YEAR ENDING BALANCE  $          22,217,055.00  $          18,663,719.00  $          13,096,749.00 


COMPONENTS OF ENDING BALANCE:


Nonspendable Amounts (9711-9739)  $                 63,484.00  $                      63,484  $                      63,484 


Restricted Amounts (9740)  $               574,694.00  $                              -    $                              -   


Reserves for Economic Uncertainties (9789)  $            3,580,794.00  $                 3,053,258  $                 3,095,135 


Committed Amounts (9750-9760)  $                              -    $                              -    $                              -   


Assigned Amounts (9775-9780)  $          16,615,825.00  $               13,102,361  $                 7,292,148 


Unassigned Amount Unrestricted (9790)  $            1,382,258.00  $                 2,444,616  $                 2,645,982 


Unassigned Amount - Restricted (9790)


I.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS


CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE


strators and Management Association, Cabinet, and Conf
MYP - Combined General Fund


 $          (6,078,037.00)  $          (3,553,336.00)  $          (5,566,970.00)


209/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 6


1.
2021-22


a.
Total Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Uses 
(Including Cost of Proposed Agreement) 119,359,813.00$      


b.
State Standard Minimum Reserve Percentage for 
this District:   3%


c.


State Standard Minimum Reserve Amount for this 
District (For districts with less than 1,001 ADA, 
this is the greater of Line a, times Line b. OR 
$65,000.) 3,580,794$               


2.


a.
General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted       Reserve 
for Economic Uncertainties (9789) 3,580,794.00$          


b.
General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted Unassigned 
Amount (9790) 1,382,258.00$          


c.
Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted 
Reserves for Economic Uncertainties (9789) -$                         


d.
Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted 
Unassigned Amount (9790) -$                         


g. Total Available Reserves 4,963,052.00$          


h. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties Percentage 4.16%


3. Do unrestricted reserves meet the state minimum reserve amount?
2021-22 Yes   X No    
2022-23 Yes   X No    
2023-24 Yes   X No    


4.


2022-23


5,497,874.00$           


3,053,258$                


3,095,135.00$            


3,095,135$                 


3%


If not, how do you plan to restore your reserves?


-$                           


5,741,117.00$            


5.40%


-$                            


5.56%


J.  IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON UNRESTRICTED RESERVES


2,444,616.00$           2,645,982.00$            


-$                            


2023-24


103,171,168.00$        


3%


101,775,282.00$       


3,053,258.00$           


-$                           


.


State Reserve Standard


Budgeted Unrestricted Reserve (After Impact of Proposed Agreement)


210/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 7


5.


6.


information that you want to provide to assist us in our analysis.
Please include any additional comments and explanations of Page 4 as necessary or any other  


If the total amount of the adjustment in Column 2 on Page 4c does not agree with the amount of the 


The difference of $12,962 in 2021-22 is the amount that is not in the General Fund but is in Fund 13 and
Fund 21.


Compensation Increase in Section A, Line 5, Page 1 (i.e., increase was partially budgeted), explain the
variance below:


211/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 8


L.


Budget Adjustment Categories:


Unrestricted Revenues/Other Financing Sources


Unrestricted Expenditures/Other Financing Uses


Unrestricted Ending Balance Increase (Decrease)


Restricted Revenues/Other Financing Sources


Restricted Expenditures/Other Financing Uses


Restricted Ending Balance Increase (Decrease)


N/A  ____  (No budget revisions necessary)


District Superintendent
(Signature)


Chief Business Officer
(Signature)


Date


CERTIFICATION NO. 1: CERTIFICATION OF THE DISTRICT'S ABILITY TO MEET THE
COSTS OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT


The disclosure document must be signed by the district Superintendent and Chief Business Officer at the time of
public disclosure.


The budget revisions necessary to meet the costs of the agreement in each year of its term are as follows:


Chief Business Officer of Santa Cruz City Schools (District),


hereby certify that the District can meet the costs incurred under the Collective Bargaining Agreement


between the District and the Administrators and Management Association, Cabinet and Confidential meet and


confer groups, during the term of the agreement from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.


In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Section 3547.5, the Superintendent and


Budget Adjustment            
Increase (Decrease)


(24,449.00)$                         


164,643.00$                        


(189,092.00)$                       


Date


24,449.00$                          


24,449.00$                          


-$                                     


212/268







Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 9


District Superintendent (or Designee) Date
(Signature)


Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services (831) 429-3410 x48224
Contact Person Phone


President (or Clerk), Governing Board Date
(Signature)


review the district's compliance with requirements.


M.  CERTIFICATION NO. 2


After public disclosure of the major provisions contained in this summary, the Governing Board at its


The disclosure document must be signed by the district Superintendent or designee at the time of public
disclosure and by the President or Clerk of the Governing Board at the time of formal board action on the
proposed agreement.


The information provided in this document summarizes the financial implications of the proposed agreement and
is submitted to the Governing Board for public disclosure of the major provisions of the agreement (as provided
in the "Public Disclosure of Proposed Bargaining Agreement") in accordance with the requirements of AB 1200
and Government Code Section 3547.5.


meeting on March 9, 2022, took action to approve the proposed Agreement


with the Administrators and Management Association, Cabinet and Confidential meet and confer groups.


Special Note: The Santa Cruz County Office of Education may request additional information, as necessary, to


213/268







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees Sunshine Articles for 


Santa Cruz City Schools 2021-22 
 
DATE:    March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees 2021-22 contract proposals to Santa Cruz 
City Schools for sunshining. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees contract proposals are being submitted for 
sunshining.  This in accordance with the Employees Relations Act for public notice of contract 
proposals before official negotiations may begin.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
To be determined 
 
This work is in support of the following District Goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 
teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 


214/268







2021-22 Sunshine to the District 


Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees 
 


      Jeanie Brown               Jessica Serna                  Consuelo Juarez               Elizabeth Becerra             Italia Diaz 
         President                1st Vice President            2nd Vice President                  Treasurer                      Secretary 


 
 
 


2021-22 Sunshine Items 
From SCCCE to SCCS 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees 
February 16, 2022 


 
 
 


To:  Molly Parks, Asst. Supt., Human Resources 
From:  Paula Morin, Chief Negotiator 
 
 
 
Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees proposes to open the following articles for  
Negotiations with Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 
 
 
Article IX                  Wages 
 
Article VII               Vacations 
 
Article VI                 Hours and Overtime 
 
 
Continued from 2019-20 and 2020-21 
 
 
Article XIII                Evaluations 
 


215/268







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution #24-21-22 Adopting Staffing Flexibility Measures in 
Accordance with Governor’s Executive Order N-3-22 


 
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #24-21-22 Adopting Staffing Flexibility Measures in Accordance with 
Governor’s Executive Order N-3-22 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The temporary flexibilities authorized through this Resolution will support the district in 
maintaining in-person services for students despite staffing shortages caused by the Omicron-
driven rise in COVID-19 cases. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal # 1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


216/268







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.2. 
 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 


RESOLUTION # 24-21-22  
 


DETERMINATION OF K-12 DISTRICT NEEDS FOR 2022-2023 
 


WHEREAS, on January 11, 2022, the Governor issued Executive Order N-3-22, providing staffing 
flexibility measures to address staffing needs for in-person instruction through March 31, 2022; 
and 
 


WHEREAS, the flexibility measures authorized by the Executive Order include, but are not 
limited to, suspending requirements that substitute teachers have an application on file with 
the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing prior to the issuance of temporary 
certificates; extending substitute service in general education assignments to not more than 
120 days through March 31, 2022; suspending requirements that student teachers be under the 
direct supervision of a credentialed teacher; and providing incentives for CalSTRS retirees to 
return to classroom service; and 
 


WHEREAS, between the time period of November 1, 2021 and February 28, 2022, the 
instructional programs operated by Santa Cruz City Schools had 4,185 absences with the need 
to fill 1,490 teaching assignments for in-person instruction; and 
 


WHEREAS, due to extreme substitute shortages caused by the Omicron-driven rise in COVID-19 
cases, the instructional programs were unable to fill daily substitute assignments at an average 
of fourteen and a half percent (14.5%) per instructional day between November 1, 2021 and 
February 28, 2022. 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Santa Cruz City Schools finds that the staffing 
flexibility measures specified in Executive Order N-3-22 will greatly assist instructional programs 
to provide in person services to students despite the staffing shortages caused by the 
Omicron-driven rise in COVID-19 cases. 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Human Resources Department is directed to adopt and 
implement all staffing flexibility measures authorized by Executive Order N-3-22 through March 
31, 2022. 
 


PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 
held on March 9, 2022. 
 
AYES: _________   NOES: _________   ABSTENTIONS:_________   ABSENT: _________ 
 
 


  
Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 


217/268







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution #25-21-22: Certificated Reduction of Particular Kinds 


of Services 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #25-21-22, Certificated Reduction of K-12 Particular Kinds of Services. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 44949 and 44955, the Board of Education is advised to 
reduce or discontinue K-12 particular kinds of service for the 2022-2023 school year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reducing or discontinuing the services itemized in Exhibit A will help the district remain fiscally 
sound. 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 


218/268







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


RESOLUTION #25-21-22 
 


REDUCTION OF K-12 PARTICULAR KINDS OF SERVICE 
 
 


WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools District has determined that it 
shall be necessary to reduce or discontinue the particular kinds of services of the District as 
itemized in Exhibit “A” at the end of the current school year; and 
 
WHEREAS, it shall be necessary to terminate at the end of the 2021-2022 school year the 
employment of certain certificated employees of the District as a result of this reduction or 
discontinuance in particular kinds of service; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Superintendent or designee is directed to send 
appropriate notices to all employees whose services may be terminated by virtue of this action.  
Nothing herein shall be deemed to confer any status or rights upon temporary or categorically 
funded project certificated employees in addition to those specifically granted to them by 
statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 
held on March 9, 2022. 
 
AYES: _________   NOES: _________   ABSTENTIONS:_________   ABSENT: _________ 
 
 
 
  
Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 
 
 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 


219/268







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.3. 


RESOLUTION #25-21-22 
 


EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
TO: Governing Board 
 
FROM: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
DATE: March 9, 2022 
 
RE: Recommended Reduction in 2022-2023 Program Service 
 
 
The Superintendent recommends that the Governing Board adopt a resolution to reduce the 
programs and services in K-12 for 2022-2023 as follows: 
 
Service FTE  
Music .20 
Drama                                                              .20 
 
Total .40 
 


220/268







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution #27-21-22 Non-Reelection of Probationary Certificated 


Employees 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2021 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #27-21-22, Non-Reelection of Certain Probationary Certificated Employees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code 44929.21, on or before March 15th of a probationary certificated 
employee’s second complete consecutive school year of service, the Superintendent or 
designee must notify the employee of the Board’s decision to not re-elect the employee for the 
2022-2023 school year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


 
 
 


221/268







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


RESOLUTION #27-21-22 
 


NON-REELECTION OF CERTAIN PROBATIONARY CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES 
 


 
 
WHEREAS, the Superintendent has recommended giving notice to the probationary certificated 
employees listed below, pursuant to Education Code section 44929.21, subdivision (b), that the 
employee will not be re-elected for the 2022-2023 school year: 
 


1. Employee #1320  
2. Employee #3982  
3. Employee #4415  
4. Employee #4878  


  
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board believes that it is in the best interest of the District to not re-
elect the probationary certificated employees listed above, as recommended by the 
Superintendent; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Superintendent is directed, pursuant to Education Code 
section 44929.21 and all other applicable law, to send appropriate notices to the employees 
listed above, whose services shall be terminated by virtue of this action.  Nothing herein shall 
be deemed to confer any status or rights upon these certificated employees in addition to 
those specifically granted to the employees by statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools Governing Board 
held on March 9, 2022. 
 
AYES: _________   NOES: _________   ABSTENTIONS:_________   ABSENT: _________ 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education 


222/268







    


                                                                                                                    AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Board Policies: First and/or Final Reading for CSBA Revisions & 
Updates  


      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/deleted/new policies as submitted for first and/or final reading and 
adoption.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.  The Policy Guidesheet provides a 
basic overview of the policy changes.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


223/268







CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
December 2021 


Note:  Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 


Board Policy 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) which extends the term by two years for all charter 
schools whose term expires on or between January 1, 2022 and June 30, 2025 and requires, for renewals and 
denials, that the most recent years for which state data is available preceding the renewal or denial decision 
be used in determining whether specified criteria are met if the two consecutive years preceding the renewal 
or denial include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year. Policy also updated for clarity and consistency with 
law.  


Board Policy 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 131, 2021) which renumbers the license-exempt California State 
Preschool Program code sections, ensure consistency with the California Department of Education's 2021-
22 federal program monitoring instrument, clarify that districts may not offer or facilitate an informal 
resolution process to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed a student, add Item #3 to the 
section regarding "Non-UCP Complaints" that any complaint alleging that a student, while in an education 
program or activity as specified, was subjected to sexual harassment as defined in 34 CFR 106.30 be 
addressed through federal Title IX complaint procedures, and clarify in Item #5 that complaints alleging a 
physical safety concern that interferes with a free appropriate public education is a non-UCP complaint. 


Board Policy 5148 - Child Care and Development 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 131, 2021) which repealed the Child Care and Development 
Services Act from the Education Code and reenacted the laws in the Welfare and Institutions Code with 
responsibility for administering child care programs transferring to the California Department of Social 
Services (CDSS).  Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) pursuant to which a child's 
eligibility for transitional kindergarten may not impact family eligibility for a child care program and which 
requires, as a condition of funding, that a child care program that is physically closed by local or state public 
health order or guidance due to the COVID–19 pandemic, but funded to be operational, provide distance 
learning services as specified by CDSS. 


Board Policy 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) which (1) establishes the Expanded Learning 
Opportunities (ELO) Program, (2) allocates ELO funding to districts under a formula based on a district's 
percentage of unduplicated students and average daily attendance, (3) requires districts receiving funds to, 
for the 2021-22 school year, offer access to ELO programs to all unduplicated students in grades TK-6, 
provide access to such programs to at least 50 percent of enrolled unduplicated students and, commencing in 
the 2022-23 school year, offer access to all students in grades TK-6 inclusive and ensure that access is 
provided to any student whose parent/guardian requests their placement in an ELO program, and (4) requires 
After School Education and Safety, 21st Century Community Learning Center, and ELO programs that 
charge family fees to schedule fees on a sliding scale that considers family income and ability to pay and to 
waive the cost of such fees for a student who is eligible for free or reduced-price meals. 


224/268







Board Policy 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 131, 2021) which amended and renumbered the statutes governing 
the California State Preschool Program (CSPP) within the Education Code, and to reflect NEW LAW (AB 
130, 2021) which (1) revised the timespans for mandatory transitional kindergarten (TK) admittance 
requirements to be phased in starting in the 2022-23 school year to the 2025-26 school year, (2) created a 
grant program for the construction or modernization of new preschool classrooms pursuant to the California 
Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten, and Full-Day Kindergarten Facilities Grant Program, (3) requires, in 
combination with NEW STATE GUIDANCE, as a condition of funding, that a CSPP program that is 
physically closed by local or state public health order or guidance due to the COVID–19 pandemic, but 
funded to be operational, provide distance learning services as specified by the California Department of 
Education, (4) requires districts receiving grants through the California Prekindergarten Planning and 
Implementation Grant Program to develop a plan for how all children in the attendance area of the district 
will have access to full-day learning programs the year before kindergarten, and (5) prohibits TK eligibility 
from impacting family eligibility for a preschool or childcare program. Policy also updated to reflect that a 
CSPP program may be a part-day or full-day program and that a child under four years of age must be served 
in a CSPP facility licensed in accordance with Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations. Additionally, 
policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1363, 2021) which requires the quality indicators for CSPP 
programs to include activities and services that meet the needs of dual language learners for support in the 
development of their home language and English.     


Board Policy 6112 - School Day 
Policy updated to reflect clarification in the California Department of Education's Frequently Asked 
Questions about Independent Study that minimum school day requirements for regular school attendance 
apply to traditional independent study programs. 


Board Policy 6143 - Courses of Study 
Policy updated to (1) expand student characteristics for which districts may not provide any course separately 
or require or refuse participation, (2) include that the district's course of study may provide for a rigorous 
academic curriculum that integrates academic and career skills, includes applied learning across all 
disciplines, and prepares students for high school graduation and career entry, and (3) clarify that the a-g 
requirements for the University of California and California State University system is 15 yearlong or 30 
semesters. 


Board Policy 6158 - Independent Study 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 167, 2021) which relaxes certain independent study (IS) 
requirements with respect to any student who is unable to attend in-person instruction due to a quarantine or 
school closure during the 2021-22 school year and to incorporate California Department of Education 
program clarifications, including that a district is permitted to (1) require students who cannot participate in 
classroom-based instruction during the school year due to quarantine or school closure because of infection 
with or exposure to COVID-19 to participate in IS, (2) claim apportionment credit for such students' 
participation in IS for fewer than the minimum three consecutive days generally required for IS, and (3) 
obtain a signed written agreement from each participating student not later than 30 days after IS begins, 
rather than before a student may participate in IS.


Board Policy 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) which (1) gradually revises the timespans for 
mandatory transitional kindergarten (TK) admittance such that, by the 2025-26 school year, children who 
turn four by September 1 will be eligible for TK, (2) establishes the California Prekindergarten Planning and 
Implementation Grant Program as an early learning initiative with the goal of expanding access to classroom-
based prekindergarten programs at districts, including but not limited to TK programs, and which requires 
districts to develop a plan for how all children in the attendance area of the district will have access to full-
day learning programs the year before kindergarten, (3) establishes the California Preschool, Transitional 
Kindergarten, and Full-Day Kindergarten Facilities Grant Program to provide one-time grants to school 
districts to construct new school facilities or retrofit existing school facilities including for the purpose of 
providing TK classrooms, (4) prohibits TK eligibility  from impacting family eligibility for a preschool or 
childcare program, and (5) requires districts to maintain an average TK class enrollment of not more than 24 
students for each school site and which, commencing with the 2022–23 school year, requires districts to 
maintain an average of at least one adult for every 12 students for TK classrooms and, contingent upon an 
appropriation of funding, maintain an average of at least one adult for every 10 students commencing with 
the 2023-24 school year. Policy also updated to reflect requirements for programs that commingle preschool-
age and TK students.   


225/268







Board Bylaw 9150 - Student Board Members 
Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 824, 2021) which specifies circumstances under which a 
governing board may adjust the term of a student board member.  Bylaw also updated to enhance legal 
accuracy and clarity. 


Board Bylaw 9320 - Meetings and Notices 
Bylaw updated to clarify that it is discussion among themselves, via technology, of a majority of the 
governing board regarding an item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the board that can result in a 
violation of the Brown Act, and that agenda materials are required to be made available for public inspection 
at the time the materials are distributed to all or a majority of the board when agenda materials relating to an 
open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the board less than 72 hours before the meeting. Bylaw 
also updated to add a new section "Teleconferencing During a Proclaimed State of Emergency" which reflects 
NEW LAW (AB 361, 2021) that (1) authorizes boards, until January 1, 2024, to conduct board meetings by 
teleconference, as specified, without meeting certain requirements otherwise required of teleconference 
meetings when holding a board meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency when state or local officials 
have imposed or recommend measures to promote social distancing; to determine whether, as a result of an 
emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; or when it 
has been determined, as a result of an emergency, that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the 
health or safety of attendees, (2) includes that the district may, in its discretion, provide a physical location 
from which the public may attend or comment and, (3) provides that the board may continue to conduct 
meetings by teleconference during proclaimed states of emergency by a majority vote finding within 30 days 
after teleconferencing for the first time and every 30 days thereafter that either the state of emergency 
continues to directly impact the ability of the board to meet safely in person or that state or local officials 
continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing. 


226/268







Policy 0420.42: Charter School RenewalPolicy 0420.42: Charter School Renewal Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 10/01/2018


The Governing Board believes that the ongoing operation of a charter school should be dependent on the school's 
effectiveness in achieving its mission and goals for student learning and other student outcomes. Whenever a charter 
school submits a petition for renewal of its charter, the Board shall review the petition thoroughly and in a timely 
manner, consistent with the timelines set out in the Education Code. The Board shall consider renewal petitions only 
of charters originally authorized by the Board itself or by the State Board of Education (SBE) on appeal after initial 
denial by the Board.


The Board shall deny the renewal petition of any charter school operated as or by a for-profit corporation, a for-
profit educational management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization.  (Education Code 
47604)


When a charter school, concurrently with its renewal petition, proposes to expand operations to one or more 
additional sites or grade levels, the charter school shall request a material revision to its charter. The material revision 
may be made only with the approval of the Board and in accordance with the standards and criteria in Education 
Code 47605 for material revisions.  (Education Code 47607)


The Board recommends that a charter school submit its petition for renewal to the Board sufficiently early before 
the expiration of the term of the charter to allow the Board's deliberations and decision on the renewal petition to be 
completed with minimal disruption to the charter school's educational program in the renewal year.


The petition for renewal shall include a reasonably comprehensive description of how the charter school has met all 
new charter school requirements enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last renewed.
 (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4)


Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal


Renewals shall be governed by the same standards and criteria that apply to new charter petitions as set forth in 
Education Code 47605.  However, a charter renewal shall not be denied based on the fiscal impact of the charter 
school on the district or a finding that the charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire 
community in which the school is located, as described in Education Code 47605.  (Education Code 47607)


The signature requirement for charter authorization petitions is not applicable to petitions for renewal.  (Education 
Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4)


In determining whether to grant a charter renewal, the Board shall review both schoolwide performance and the 
performance of numerically significant student subgroups on the state and local indicators included in the California 
School Dashboard, giving greater weight to performance on measurements of academic performance. If the 
Dashboard indicators are not yet available for the most recently completed academic year before renewal, the Board 
shall consider verifiable data provided by the charter school related to the Dashboard indicators, such as data from 
the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, or any successor system, for the most recent 
academic year. The Board shall only consider data from sources adopted by SBE.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.2)


Following the Board's review, a renewal of the charter petition may be granted in accordance with a three-tiered 
system based on school performance, as follows:


1. Renewal of Five to Seven Years


a. A charter school that is not eligible for technical assistance pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 shall be 
granted renewal for a period of five to seven years when, for two consecutive years immediately 
preceding the renewal, or for two of the most recent years for which state data is available preceding the 
renewal if the two consecutive years immediately preceding the renewal decision include the 2019-20 or 
2020-21 school year, the charter school achieved either of the following:  (Education Code 47607)


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


227/268







1. Received the two highest performance levels schoolwide on all the state indicators included in the
Dashboard for which the charter school receives performance levels, provided the charter school
has schoolwide performance levels on at least two measurements of academic performance per
year in each of the two years


2. For all measurements of academic performance, received performance levels schoolwide that are
the same or higher than the state average and, for a majority of numerically significant student
subgroups performing statewide below the state average in each respective year, received
performance levels that are higher than the state average, provided that the charter school has
performance levels on at least two measurements of academic performance for at least two
subgroups


b. If the charter school satisfies the above criteria, it shall only be required to update the renewal petition
to include a reasonably comprehensive description of any new requirement of charter schools enacted
into law after the charter was originally granted or last renewed and, as necessary, to reflect the current
program offered by the charter school.  (Education Code 47607)


2. Renewal of Five Years


a. A renewal shall be granted for five years if clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated by verified data, 
shows either of the following:  (Education Code 47607.2)


1. Measurable increases in academic achievement, as defined by at least one year's progress for each 
year in school


2. Strong postsecondary outcomes, as defined by college enrollment, persistence, and completion 
rates equal to similar peers


b. For any such charter school, the Board may deny the renewal petition only upon making written factual 
findings that the charter school failed to meet or make sufficient progress toward meeting standards that 
provide a benefit to students at the school, that the closure of the charter school is in the best interest of 
students, and that the Board's decision provided greater weight to performance on measurements of 
academic performance.  (Education Code 47607.2)


3. Denial/Two-Year Renewal


a. The Board shall generally not renew a charter if, for two consecutive years immediately preceding the 
renewal decision, or for two of the most recent years for which state data is available immediately 
preceding the renewal if the two consecutive years immediately preceding the renewal decision include 
the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year, either of the following applies:  (Education Code 47607.2)


1. The charter school has received the two lowest performance levels schoolwide on all the state 
indicators included in the Dashboard for which it receives performance levels, provided the charter 
school has schoolwide performance levels on at least two measurements of academic performance 
per year in each of the two years


2. For all measurements of academic performance, the charter school has received performance levels 
schoolwide that are the same or lower than the state average and, for a majority of numerically 
significant student subgroups performing statewide below the state average in each respective 
year, received performance levels that are lower than the state average, provided that the charter 
school has performance levels on at least two measurements of academic performance for at least 
two subgroups


b. However, the Board may grant a two-year renewal to any such charter school if the Board makes written 
factual findings, setting forth specific facts to support the findings, that:  (Education Code 47607.2)


1. The charter school is taking meaningful steps to address the underlying cause(s) of low 
performance, and those steps are reflected, or will be reflected, in a written plan adopted by the


228/268







governing body of the charter school.


2. There is clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated by verified data, showing achievement of
the criteria specified in item #2a above


In addition to all the grounds stated above for denial of a charter renewal, the Board may deny renewal of a charter 
upon a finding that the school is demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set forth in the 
petition due to substantial fiscal or governance factors or a finding that the school is not serving all students who 
wish to attend. When denying a charter renewal for either of these reasons, the Board shall provide the charter 
school at least 30 days' notice of the alleged violation and a reasonable opportunity to cure the violation, including 
the submission of a proposed corrective action plan. The Board may deny the renewal for these reasons only upon a 
finding that either the corrective action proposed by the charter school has been unsuccessful or that the violations 
are sufficiently severe and pervasive as to render a corrective action plan unviable. Any finding that a school is not 
serving all students who wish to attend shall specifically identify the evidence supporting the finding.  (Education 
Code 47607)


A charter school that qualifies for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status shall not be subject to any of the 
above criteria. Instead, in determining whether to grant a charter renewal for such a charter school, the Board shall 
consider, in addition to the charter school's performance on the state and local indicators included in the Dashboard, 
the charter school's performance on alternative metrics applicable to the charter school based on the student 
population served. The Board shall meet with the charter school during the first year of the charter school's term to 
mutually agree to discuss alternative metrics to be considered and shall notify the charter school of the alternative 
metrics to be used within 30 days of this meeting. The Board may deny a charter renewal only upon making written 
findings, setting forth specific facts to support the findings, that the closure of the charter school is in the best 
interest of students.  (Education Code 47607)


Timelines for Board Action


Within 60 days of receiving the renewal petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing to review documentation 
submitted by the charter school, determine the level of support for the petition, and obtain public input. A petition is 
deemed received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the district office, along with a signed certification 
that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete.  (Education Code 47605)


The Board shall either grant or deny the charter renewal within 90 days of receiving the petition. The date may be 
extended by an additional 30 days if both the petitioner and the Board agree to the extension.  (Education Code 
47605)


At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the charter petition, the Board shall 
publish all staff recommendations and recommended findings regarding the petition.  During the public hearing, 
petitioners shall have equal time and opportunity to present evidence and testimony to respond to the staff 
recommendations and findings.  (Education Code 47605)


If the Board fails to make a written factual finding when required for denial of the petition pursuant to the section 
"Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal" above within the required time period, the absence of a written factual 
finding shall be deemed an approval of the renewal petition.


The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of Education, within 10 
calendar days of the Board's action, whenever a renewal of the charter is granted or denied.  (Education Code 
47604.32; 5 CCR 11962.1)


If the Board denies a renewal petition, the charter school may submit its application for renewal to the County Board 
of Education within 30 days of the Board's written factual findings supporting the denial.  (Education Code 47605, 
47607.5)


School Closure


If a charter is not renewed and the charter school ceases operation, the school closure procedures specified in the 
charter in accordance with Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 11962 shall be implemented.  (Education Code 
47604.32, 47605)


229/268







Policy 1312.3: Uniform Complaint ProceduresPolicy 1312.3: Uniform Complaint Procedures Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 05/01/2017 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 12/01/2020


The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board encourages the early resolution of 
complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts 
the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative 
regulation.


Complaints Subject to UCP


The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve complaints regarding the 
following programs and activities:


1. Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students  (Education Code 46015)


2. Adult education programs  (Education Code 8500-8538, 52334.7, 52500-52617)


3. After School Education and Safety programs  (Education Code 8482-8484.65)


4. Agricultural career technical education  (Education Code 52460-52462)


5. Career technical and technical education and career technical and technical training programs  (Education Code 
52300-52462)


6. Child care and development programs  (Education Code 8200-8488)


7. Compensatory education  (Education Code 54400)


8. Consolidated categorical aid programs  (Education Code 33315; 34 CFR 299.10-299.12)


9. Course periods without educational content  (Education Code 51228.1-51228.3)


10. Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying in district programs and activities, including in those 
programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial assistance, based on 
a person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, 
immigration status, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical 
or mental disability, medical condition, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or 
genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 
11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on the person's association with a person or group with one or more of 
these actual or perceived characteristics  (5 CCR 4610)


11. Educational and graduation requirements for students in foster care, homeless students, students from military 
families, and students formerly in a juvenile court school (Education Code 48645.7, 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 
51225.1, 51225.2)


12. Every Student Succeeds Act  (Education Code 52059.5; 20 USC 6301 et seq.)


13. Local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075)


14. Migrant education  (Education Code 54440-54445)


15. Physical education instructional minutes  (Education Code 51210, 51222, 51223)


16. Student fees  (Education Code 49010-49013)


17. Reasonable accommodations to a lactating student  (Education Code 222)


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


230/268







18. Regional occupational centers and programs  (Education Code 52300-52334.7)


19. School plans for student achievement as required for the consolidated application for specified federal and/or 
state categorical funding  (Education Code 64001)


20. School safety plans  (Education Code 32280-32289)


21. School site councils as required for the consolidated application for specified federal and/or state categorical 
funding  (Education Code 65000)


22. State preschool programs  (Education Code 8207-8225)


23. State preschool health and safety issues in license-exempt programs  (Education Code 8212)


24. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the complaint process or 
anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy


25. Any other state or federal educational program the Superintendent of Public Instruction or designee deems 
appropriate


The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of the allegations, offer
a process for resolving a complaint in a manner that is acceptable to all parties. An ADR process such as mediation
may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not
be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party
to the mediation would feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the use of
ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations.


The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the confidentiality of the
parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall
keep the identity of the complainant, and/or the subject of the complaint if different from the complainant,
confidential when appropriate and as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained.


When an allegation that is not subject to UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall refer the non-UCP
allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related
allegation(s) through the district's UCP.


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and knowledge of current
law and requirements related to UCP, including the steps and timelines specified in this policy and the accompanying
administrative regulation.


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions, including
steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633.


Non-UCP Complaints


The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be investigated and resolved by the
specified agency or through an alternative process:


1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of Social Services 
Protective Services Division or the appropriate law enforcement agency.  (5 CCR 4611)


2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for licensed facilities, 
be referred to Department of Social Services.  (5 CCR 4611)


3. Any complaint alleging that a student, while in an education program or activity in which the district exercises 
substantial control over the context and respondent, was subjected to sexual harassment as defined in 34 CFR 
106.30 shall be addressed through the federal Title IX complaint procedures adopted pursuant to 34 CFR 
106.44-106.45, as specified in AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures.


231/268







4. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated and resolved by the
district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment, including
the right to file the complaint with the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing.


5. Any complaint alleging a violation of a state or federal law or regulation related to special education, a
settlement agreement related to the provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE), failure or refusal
to implement a due process hearing order to which the district is subject, or a physical safety concern that
interferes with the district's provision of FAPE shall be submitted to the California Department of Education
(CDE) in accordance with AR 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education.  (5 CCR
3200-3205)


6. Any complaint alleging noncompliance of the district's food service program with laws regarding meal counting
and claiming, reimbursable meals, eligibility of children or adults, or use of cafeteria funds and allowable
expenses shall be filed with or referred to CDE in accordance with BP 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance.
(5 CCR 15580-15584)


7. Any allegation of discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability in the district's food
service program shall be filed with or referred to the U.S. Department of Agriculture in accordance with BP
3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance.  (5 CCR 15582)


8. Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities
conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or teacher vacancies and
misassignments shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint
Procedures.  (Education Code 35186)


232/268







Policy 5148: Child Care And DevelopmentPolicy 5148: Child Care And Development Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2009 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2021


The Governing Board desires to provide child care and development services which meet the developmental needs 
of children and offer a convenient child care alternative for parents/guardians in the community.


The Board shall enter into a contract with the California Department of Social Services (CDSS) for the provision of 
child care and development services by the district.


The Board shall approve for the district's child care and development program a written philosophical statement, 
goals, and objectives that reflect the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the families to be served and address the 
program components specified in 5 CCR 18272-18281 and the accompanying administrative regulation.  (5 CCR 
18271)


When a district child care program is physically closed by local or state public health order due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the district shall provide distance learning when required to do so as a condition of funding or when 
required by law.


Eligibility and Enrollment


Child care admissions policies and procedures shall be in writing and available to the public.  Such policies and 
procedures shall include criteria designating those children whose needs can be met by the child care center's 
program and services, the ages of children who will be accepted, program activities, any supplementary services 
provided, any field trip provisions, any transportation arrangements, food service provisions, and health examination 
requirements.  (5 CCR 18105; 22 CCR 101218)


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that subsidized child care is provided to eligible families to the extent 
that state and/or federal funding is available and in accordance with enrollment priorities specified in Welfare and 
Institutions Code 10271 and 5 CCR 18106.


To the extent that space is available after the enrollment of children who are eligible for subsidized services, priority 
for admissions shall be given to district students, children of district students, and children of district employees.


A child's eligibility for transitional kindergarten enrollment shall not impact family eligibility for a childcare or 
preschool program.  (Education Code 48000)


Staffing


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that individuals working in child care and development programs have 
the necessary qualifications and have satisfied all legal requirements.


Facilities


Upon recommendation of the Superintendent or designee, the Board may approve any of the following for the 
provision of child care and development services:


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


233/268







1. The use of existing district facilities that have capacity


2. Renovation or improvement of district facilities to make them suitable for such services


3. Purchase of relocatable child care facilities


4. Inclusion of child care facilities in any new construction


5. Agreement with a public agency or community organization for the use of community facilities


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that facilities used for child care services meet all applicable health and
safety standards.  (5 CCR 18020; 22 CCR 101238-101239.2)


Complaints


For a licensed child care center, any complaint alleging health and safety violations shall be referred to CDSS.  (5 CCR
4611)


Any other alleged violation of state or federal laws governing child care and development programs shall be
investigated and resolved using the district's procedures in BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.


Program Evaluation


The Superintendent or designee shall annually conduct an evaluation of the district's child care and development
services in accordance with state requirements.  The results of the evaluation shall be used to develop an action plan
which establishes program goals and objectives for the coming year and addresses any areas identified as needing
improvement.  (5 CCR 18279-18281)


234/268







Policy 5148.2: Before/After School Programs 
Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2006 | Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 03/01/2017 


Status: ADOPTED 


Board Policy Manual 
CSBA Policy Management Console 


 


 
The Governing Board desires to provide before-school and/or after-school enrichment programs that support the 
regular education program in a supervised environment. In order to increase academic achievement of participating 
students, the content of such programs shall be coordinated with the district's vision and goals for student learning, 
local control and accountability plan, curriculum, and academic standards. 


 
 


The district's program shall be planned through a collaborative process that includes parents/guardians, students, and 
representatives of participating schools, governmental agencies including city and county parks and recreation 
departments, local law enforcement, community organizations, and, if appropriate, the private sector. (Education 
Code 8422, 8482.5, 46120) 


 
To the extent feasible, the district shall give priority to establishing before-school and/or after-school programs in 
low-performing schools and/or programs that serve low-income and other at-risk students. 


 
Any After School Education and Safety Program (ASES), 21st Century Community Learning Center Program (21st 
CCLC), 21st Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens Program (ASSETs), or other program 
to be established pursuant to Education Code 8421, 8482.3 or 8484.75 shall be approved by the Board and the 
principal of each participating school. 


 
 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff who directly supervise students in the district's before- 
school and/or after-school program possess appropriate knowledge and experience. As needed, staff and volunteers 
shall receive ongoing training related to their job responsibilities. 


 
Each program shall include academic and enrichment elements in accordance with law and administrative regulation. 
In addition, each program may include support services that reinforce the educational component and promote 
student health and well-being. 
 
A family fee may be charged to participating families based on the actual cost of services. 


 
For ASES, 21st CCLC, and/or Expanded Learning Opportunities programs , no fee shall be charged for a student who is 
eligible for free or reduced-price meals, or a student who the district knows is a homeless youth or in foster care. In 
addition, family fees shall be calculated on a sliding scale that considers family income and ability to pay. 
(Education Code 8482.6, 46120) 


 
Eligible students who are 11 or 12 years of age shall be placed in a before-school or after-school program, if and when 
available, rather than subsidized child care and development services. During the time that the before-school or after- 
school program does not operate, such students may be provided the option of enrolling in child care and 
development services in accordance with the enrollment priorities established in AR 5148 - Child Care and 
Development. (Welfare and Institutions Code 10273) 


 


The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall monitor student participation rates and shall identify multiple 
measures that shall be used to evaluate program effectiveness. Such measures may include, but are not limited to, 
student outcome data; program self-assessments; feedback from staff, participating students, and parents/guardians; 
and observations of program activities. 


235/268







Every three years, the Superintendent or designee shall review the after-school program plan, including, but not 
limited to, program goals, program content, and outcome measures. Documentation of the program plan shall be 
maintained for a minimum of five years. 


 


236/268







Policy 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood EducationPolicy 5148.3: Preschool/Early Childhood Education Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/01/2012 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 12/01/2020


The Governing Board recognizes the value of high-quality preschool experiences to enhance children's social-
emotional development, knowledge, skills, and abilities.  The Board desires to provide a supervised, and cognitively 
rich environment designed to facilitate the transition to kindergarten for three- and four-year-old children.


The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the local child care and development planning council, the 
county office of education, other public agencies, organizations, and/or private preschool providers to assess the 
availability of preschool programs in the community and the extent to which the community's preschool needs are 
being met.  The Board encourages the development of a comprehensive districtwide and/or countywide plan to 
increase children's access to high-quality preschool programs.


The Superintendent or designee shall provide information about preschool options in the community to
parents/guardians upon request.


District Preschool Programs


When the Board determines that it is feasible, the district may contract with the California Department of Education 
(CDE) to provide preschool services in facilities at or near district schools, either directly or through a subcontract 
with a public or private provider.


District preschool programs shall comply with all health and safety laws and regulations, including, when applicable, 
licensure requirements pursuant to 22 CCR 101156.


The Board shall approve, for the district's preschool program, a written philosophical statement, goals, and objectives 
that reflect the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the families to be served and address the program 
components specified in 5 CCR 18272-18281 and the accompanying administrative regulation.  (5 CCR 18271)


The Board shall set priorities for establishing or expanding services as resources become available, giving 
consideration to the benefits of providing early education programs for at-risk children and/or children residing in the 
attendance areas of the lowest performing district schools.


Preschool classroom needs shall be addressed in the district's facilities master plan, including an assessment as to 
whether adequate and appropriate space exists on school sites. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall 
provide information to the Board regarding facilities financing options for preschool classrooms and/or facilities 
available through partnering organizations or agencies.


Because parents/guardians are essential partners in supporting the development of their children, the Superintendent 
or designee shall involve them in program planning.


A child's eligibility for TK enrollment shall not impact family eligibility for a preschool or child care program.
 (Education Code 8205, 48000)


The district's program shall be aligned with preschool learning foundations and curriculum frameworks developed by 
CDE which identify the knowledge, skills, and competencies that children typically attain as they complete their first or 
second year of preschool.  The program shall be designed to facilitate children's development in essential skills in


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


237/268







the areas of language and literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual and performing arts, science, 
history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional development.


The district's preschool program shall include activities and services that meet the needs of dual language learners for 
support in the development of their home language and English.  (Education Code 8203)


The district's preschool program shall provide appropriate services to support the needs of at-risk children.


To maximize the ability of children to succeed in the preschool program, the program shall support children's health 
through proper nutrition and physical activity and shall provide or make referrals to available health and social 
services as needed.


The district shall encourage volunteerism by families participating in the program and shall communicate frequently 
with parents/guardians of enrolled children regarding their child's progress.


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that administrators, teachers, and paraprofessionals in district preschool 
programs possess the appropriate permit(s) issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing, meet any additional 
qualifications established by the Board, and participate in professional development opportunities designed to 
continually enhance their knowledge and skills.


Preschool admissions policies and procedures shall be in writing and available to the public.  Such policies and 
procedures shall include criteria designating those children whose needs can be met by the program and services, the 
ages of children who will be accepted, program activities, any supplementary services provided, any field trip 
provisions, any transportation arrangements, food service provisions, and a health examination requirement.  (CCR 
18105; 22 CCR 101218)


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that subsidized preschool is provided to eligible families to the extent 
that state and/or federal funding is available and shall establish enrollment priorities in accordance with Education 
Code 8208, 8210, and 8211 and 5 CCR 18106.


The Superintendent or designee shall recommend strategies to link the district's preschool program with other 
available child care and development programs in the district or community in order to assist families whose child 
care needs extend beyond the length of time that the district's preschool program is offered.


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the plan to provide access to full-day learning programs the year 
before kindergarten addresses the needs of preschool children and their families as specified in BP 6170.1 -
Transitional Kindergarten.  (Education Code 8281.5)


When a district CSPP program is physically closed by local or state public health order due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the district shall provide distance learning to preschool children when required to do so as a condition of 
funding or when required by law.


The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement an annual plan of evaluation which conforms to state 
requirements.  (5 CCR 18279)


The district's uniform complaint procedures, with modifications as necessary, shall be used to investigate and resolve 
complaints alleging violation of applicable health or safety requirements for license-exempt programs operating 
under the California State Preschool Program. However, licensed programs shall refer complaints alleging health and 
safety violations to the California Department of Social Services.  (Education Code 8212; 5 CCR 4610, 4611, 
4690-4694)


238/268







The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding enrollment in district preschool
programs and the effectiveness of the programs in preparing preschoolers for transition into the elementary
education program.


239/268







Policy 6112: School DayPolicy 6112: School Day Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 09/01/1988 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 04/01/2013


The Governing Board shall fix the length of the school day in accordance with law.  (Education Code 46100)


At each school, the length of the school day shall be the same for all students, except as otherwise permitted by law. 
For any student with a disability, the length of the school day shall be as specified in the student's individualized 
education program or Section 504 plan.


The daily schedule for elementary schools shall include at least one period of recess of at least 20 minutes, during 
which students shall be provided supervised opportunities to engage in unstructured physical activity.


In establishing the daily instructional schedule for each secondary school, the Superintendent or designee shall give 
consideration to course requirements and curricular demands, availability of school facilities, and applicable legal 
requirements.


The Board encourages flexibility in scheduling so as to provide longer time blocks or class periods when appropriate 
and desirable to support student learning, provide more intensive study of core academic subjects or extended 
exploration of complex topics, and reduce transition time between classes.


Prior to implementing a block or alternative schedule that will allow secondary students to attend school for fewer 
school days than the total number of school days for which the school is in session, the Board shall consult in good 
faith, in an effort to reach agreement with the certificated and classified employees of the school, parents/guardians 
of the students who would be affected by the change, and the community at large.  Such consultation shall include at 
least one public hearing for which the Board shall give adequate notice to the employees and to the
parents/guardians of affected students.  (Education Code 46162)


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


240/268







Policy 6143: Courses Of StudyPolicy 6143: Courses Of Study Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2003 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 11/01/2011


The Governing Board recognizes that a well-aligned sequence of courses fosters academic growth and provides for 
the best possible use of instructional time. The district's course of study shall provide students with opportunities to 
attain the skills, knowledge, and abilities they need to be successful academically, professionally, and personally.


The Superintendent or designee shall establish processes for ensuring the articulation of courses across grade levels 
within the district. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall work with representatives of appropriate area 
districts and postsecondary institutions to ensure articulation of courses with other institutions to which district 
students may matriculate. The sequence of courses shall be designed to ensure that each course provides adequate 
preparation for the next course in the sequence, only utilizes prerequisites that are essential to success in a given 
program or course, avoids significant duplication of content, and allows for reinforcement and progression in the 
subject matter.


The district shall not provide any course separately or require or refuse participation by any student on the basis of 
the student's actual or perceived sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender expression, gender identity, ethnic group 
identification, immigration status, race, ancestry, national origin, religion, color, mental or physical disability, or any 
other characteristic listed in Education Code 200 and 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or the 
student's association with a person or group with one or more of such actual or perceived characteristics.  (Education 
Code 200, 220; Government Code 11135; Penal Code 422.55; 5 CCR 4940)


Elementary Grades


The Board shall adopt a course of study for elementary grades that sufficiently prepares students for the secondary 
course of study.


Secondary Grades


The district shall offer all otherwise qualified students in grades 7-12 a course of study that prepares them, upon 
graduation from high school, to meet the requirements and prerequisites for admission to California public colleges 
and universities and to attain entry-level employment skills in business or industry. The district's course of study may 
provide for a rigorous academic curriculum that integrates academic and career skills, includes applied learning across 
all disciplines, and prepares all students for high school graduation and career entry.  (Education Code 51228)


In addition, the course of study for students in grades 9-12 shall include instruction in skills and knowledge for adult 
life, career technical training, and a timely opportunity for all otherwise qualified students to enroll, within four years, 
in each course necessary to fulfill the requirements and prerequisites for admission to California public colleges and 
universities prior to graduation.  (Education Code 51224, 51228)


The Superintendent or designee shall develop a process by which courses that meet California college admission 
criteria (referred to as "a-g" course requirements) are submitted to the University of California for review and 
certification. The Superintendent or designee shall maintain an accurate list of all current high school courses that 
have been so certified, shall ensure that the list is provided annually to all students in grades 9-12 and their 
parents/guardians, and shall make updated lists readily available.  (Education Code 51229, 66204)


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


241/268







Policy 6158: Independent StudyPolicy 6158: Independent Study Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2005 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 07/20/2021


The Governing Board authorizes independent study as an optional alternative instructional strategy for students 
whose needs may be best met through study outside of the regular classroom setting. Independent study shall offer 
a means of individualizing the educational plan to serve students who desire a more challenging educational 
experience, whose health or other personal circumstances make classroom attendance difficult, who are unable to 
access course(s) due to scheduling problems, and/or who need to make up credits or fill gaps in their learning.  As 
necessary to meet student needs, independent study may be offered on a full-time or part-time basis and in 
conjunction with part- or full-time classroom study.


The Superintendent or designee may provide a variety of independent study opportunities, including, but not limited 
to, through a program or class within a comprehensive school, an alternative school or program of choice, a charter 
school, and an online course.


Except for students who, during the 2021-2022 school year, cannot participate in classroom-based instruction due to 
quarantine or school closure for exposure to or infection with COVID-19, student participation in independent study 
shall be voluntary.  (Education Code 51747, 51749.5, 51749.6)


Independent study for each student shall be under the general supervision of a district employee who possesses a 
valid certification document pursuant to Education Code 44865 or an emergency credential pursuant to Education 
Code 44300. Students' independent study shall be coordinated, evaluated, and documented, as prescribed by law 
and reflected in the accompanying administrative regulation.  (Education Code 51747.5)


With the exception of students who, during the 2021-2022 school year, cannot participate in classroom-based 
instruction due to a quarantine or school closure for exposure to or infection with COVID-19, the minimum period of 
time for any independent study option shall be three consecutive school days.  (Education Code 51747)


General Independent Study Requirements


For the 2021-22 school year, the district shall offer independent study, as specified in Education Code 51745, to 
meet the educational needs of students unless the district has obtained a waiver.  (Education Code 51745)


For the 2022-23 school year and thereafter, the Superintendent or designee may offer and approve independent 
study for an individual student upon determining that the student is prepared to meet the district's requirements for 
independent study and is likely to succeed in independent study as well as or better than the student would in the 
regular classroom setting.


The minimum instructional minutes for students participating in independent study shall be the same as required for 
their peers at the school who are receiving in-person instruction, except as otherwise permitted by law.  (Education 
Code 46100)


Because excessive leniency in the duration of independent study assignments may result in a student falling behind 
peers and increase the risk of dropping out of school, independent study assignments shall be completed no more 
than one week after assigned for all grade levels and types of program. When necessary based on the specific 
circumstances of the student's approved program, the Superintendent or designee may allow for a longer period of 
time between the date an assignment is made and when it is due. However, in no event shall the due date of an 
assignment be extended beyond the termination date of the agreement.


An evaluation shall be conducted to determine whether it is in a student's best interest to remain in independent 
study whenever the student fails to make satisfactory educational progress and/or misses three assignments. 
Satisfactory educational progress shall be determined based on all of the following indicators:  (Education Code 
51747)


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


242/268







1. The student's achievement and engagement in the independent study program, as indicated by the student's 
performance on applicable student-level measures of student achievement and engagement specified in 
Education Code 52060


2. The completion of assignments, assessments, or other indicators that evidence that the student is working on 
assignments


3. Learning of required concepts, as determined by the supervising teacher


4. Progress towards successful completion of the course of study or individual course, as determined by the 
supervising teacher


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students participating in independent study are provided with
content aligned to grade level standards at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially equivalent to in-
person instruction.  For high schools, this shall include access to all courses offered by the district for graduation and
approved by the University of California or the California State University as creditable under the A-G admissions
criteria.  (Education Code 51747)


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students participating in independent study for 15 school days or
more receive the following throughout the school year:  (Education Code 51747)


1. For students in grades transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 3, opportunities for daily
synchronous instruction


2. For students in grades 4-8, opportunities for both daily live interaction and at least weekly synchronous
instruction


3. For students in grades 9-12, opportunities for at least weekly synchronous instruction


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that procedures for tiered reengagement strategies are used for all 
students participating in an independent study program for 15 school days or more who:  (Education Code 51747)


1. Are not generating attendance for more than three school days or 60 percent of the instructional days in a 
school week, or 10 percent of required minimum instructional time over four continuous weeks of the district's 
approved instructional calendar


2. Are found to be not participatory pursuant to Section 51747.5 for more than the greater of three schooldays or 
60 percent of the scheduled days of synchronous instruction in a school month as applicable by grade span


3. Are in violation of their written agreement


Tiered reengagement strategies procedures used in district independent study programs shall include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, all of the following:  (Education Code 51747)


1. Verification of current contact information for each enrolled student


2. Notification to parents/guardians of lack of participation within one school day of the  recording of a non-
attendance day or lack of participation


3. A plan for outreach from the school to determine student needs, including connection with health and social 
services as necessary


4. A clear standard for requiring a student-parent-educator conference to review a student's written agreement 
and reconsider the independent study program's impact on the student's achievement and well-being


The Superintendent or designee shall develop a plan to transition students whose families wish to return to in-person
instruction from independent study expeditiously, and, in no case later, than five instructional days. This requirement
only applies to students participating in an independent study program for 15 school days or more.  (Education Code
51747)


243/268







The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a written master agreement exists for each participating student as 
prescribed by law.  (Education Code 51747, 51749.5)


The district shall provide written notice to the parents/guardians of all enrolled students of the option to enroll their 
child in in-person instruction or independent study during the 2021-22 school year.  This notice shall be posted on 
the district's web site, and shall include, at a minimum, information about the right to request a student-parent-
educator conference before enrollment, student rights regarding procedures for enrolling, disenrolling, and 
reenrolling in independent study, and the instructional time, including synchronous and asynchronous learning, that a 
student will have access to as part of independent study.  (Education Code 51747)


Upon the request of the parent/guardian of a student, and before signing a written agreement as described below in 
the section "Master Agreement," the district shall conduct a telephone, videoconference, or in-person student-parent-
educator conference or other meeting during which the student, parent/guardian, and, if requested, their advocate 
may ask questions about the educational options, including which curriculum offerings and nonacademic supports will 
be available to the student in independent study.  (Education Code 51747)


Master Agreement


A written agreement shall be developed and implemented for each student participating in independent study for 
three or more consecutive school days.  (Education Code 46300, 51747; 5 CCR 11703)


However, for the 2021-22 school year only, the district shall obtain a signed written agreement from each student 
participating in an independent study program for any length of time, no later than 30 days after the first day of 
instruction in the independent study program.


The agreement shall include general student data, including the student's name, address, grade level, birth date, 
school of enrollment, and program placement.


The independent study agreement for each participating student also shall include, but are not limited to, all of the 
following:  (Education Code 51747; 5 CCR 11700, 11702)


1. The frequency, time, place and manner for submitting the student's assignments, reporting the student's
academic progress, and communicating with a student's parent/guardian regarding the student's academic
progress


2. The objectives and methods of study for the student's work and the methods used to evaluate that work


3. The specific resources that will be made available to the student, including materials and personnel, and access
to Internet connectivity and devices adequate to participate in the educational program and complete assigned
work


4. A statement of the Board's policy detailing the maximum length of time allowed between an assignment and
its completion, the level of satisfactory educational progress, and the number of missed assignments which will
trigger an evaluation of whether the student should be allowed to continue in independent study


5. The duration of the independent study agreement, including the beginning and ending dates for the student's
participation in independent study under the agreement, with a maximum of one school year


6. A statement of the number of course credits or, for the elementary grades, other measures of academic
accomplishment appropriate to the agreement, to be earned by the student upon completion


7. A statement detailing the academic and other supports that will be provided to address the needs of students
who are not performing at grade level, or need support in other areas, such as English learners, students with
disabilities with an individualized education program or a Section 504 plan in order to be consistent with their
program or plan, students in foster care or experiencing homelessness, and students requiring mental health
supports.


244/268







8. A statement that independent study is an optional educational alternative in which no student may be required 
to participate
For the 2021-22 school year, this statement shall not be required for a student's participation in independent 
study if the student is unable to attend in-person instruction because of a quarantine or school closure 
mandated by a local or state health order or guidance due to the student's exposure to or infection with 
COVID-19.


9. In the case of a suspended or expelled student who is referred or assigned to any school, class, or program 
pursuant to Education Code 48915 or 48917, a statement that instruction may be provided through 
independent study only if the student is offered the alternative of classroom instruction


10. Before the commencement of independent study, the agreement shall be signed and dated by the student, the 
student's parent/guardian or caregiver if the student is under age 18 years, the certificated employee 
responsible for the general supervision of independent study, and all persons who have direct responsibility for 
providing assistance to the student.
However, for the 2021-22 school year, the district shall obtain a signed written agreement for independent 
study from the student, or the student's parent/guardian if the student is less than 18 years of age, the 
certificated employee who has been designated as having responsibility for the general supervision of 
independent study, and all persons who have direct responsibility for providing assistance to the student, no 
later than 30 days after the first day of instruction in the independent study program or October 15, whichever 
date comes later.


Written agreements may be signed using an electronic signature that complies with state and federal standards, as
determined by the California Department of Education (CDE).  (Education Code 51747)


The parent/guardian's signature on the agreement shall constitute permission for the student to receive instruction
through independent study.


Course-Based Independent Study


The district's course-based independent study program for students in grades K-12 shall be subject to the following
requirements:  (Education Code 51749.5)


1. A signed learning agreement shall be completed and on file for each participating student, pursuant to Education 
Code 51749.6


2. Courses shall be taught under the general supervision of certificated employees who hold the appropriate 
subject matter credential and are employed by the district or by another district, charter school, or county office 
of education with which the district has a memorandum of understanding to provide the instruction.


3. Courses shall be annually certified by Board resolution to be of the same rigor and educational quality and to 
provide intellectual challenge that is substantially equivalent to in-person, classroom-based instruction, and shall 
be aligned to all relevant local and state content standards. For high schools, this shall include access to all 
courses offered by the district for graduation and approved by the University of California or the California 
State University as creditable under the A-G admissions criteria. The certification shall, at a minimum, include 
the duration, number of equivalent daily instructional minutes for each school day that student is enrolled, 
number of equivalent total instructional minutes, and number of course credits for each course, consistent with 
that of equivalent classroom-based courses. The certification shall also include plans to provide opportunities 
throughout the school year, for students in transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1-3 to receive 
daily synchronous instruction, for students in grades 4-8, to receive both daily live interaction and at least 
weekly synchronous instruction, and for students in grades 9-12 to receive at least weekly synchronous 
instruction.


4. Students enrolled in independent study courses shall meet the applicable age requirements established pursuant 
to Education Code 46300.1, 46300.4, 47612, and 47612.1, and the applicable residency and enrollment 
requirements established pursuant to Education Code 46300.2, 47612, 48204, and 51747.3.


5. For each student participating in an independent study course, satisfactory educational progress shall be 
determined based on the student's achievement and engagement in the independent study program, as


245/268







indicated by their performance on applicable student-level measures of student achievement and student
engagement set forth in Education Code 52060, completion of assignments, assessments, or other indicators
that evidence that the student is working on assignments, learning of required concepts, as determined by the
supervising teacher, and progress toward successful completion of the course of study or individual course, as
determined by the supervising teacher.


If satisfactory educational progress in an independent study class is not being made, the teacher shall notify
the student and, if the student is under age 18 years, the student's parent/guardian. The teacher shall conduct
an evaluation to determine whether it is in the student's best interest to remain in the course or whether the
student should be referred to an alternative program, which may include, but is not limited to, a regular school
program. A written record of the evaluation findings shall be a mandatory interim student record maintained
for three years from the date of the evaluation. If the student transfers to another California public school, the
record shall be forwarded to that school.


Procedures for tiered reengagement strategies shall be used for all students who are not making satisfactory
educational progress in one or more courses or who are in violation of the written learning agreement, as
described in the section "Learning Agreement for Course-Based Independent Study" below. These procedures
shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, the verification of current contact information for each enrolled
student, notification to parents/guardians of lack of participation within one school day of the absence or lack
of participation, a plan for outreach from the school to determine student needs, including connection with
health and social services as necessary, and a clear standard for requiring a student-parent-educator
conference to review a student's written agreement and reconsider the independent study program's impact
on the student's achievement and well-being.


6. Examinations shall be administered by a proctor.


7. Statewide testing results shall be reported and assigned to the school at which the student is enrolled and shall
be included in the aggregate results of the district. Test results also shall be disaggregated for purposes of
comparisons with the test results of students enrolled in classroom-based courses.


8. A student shall not be required to enroll in courses included in the course-based independent study program.


9. The student-teacher ratio in the courses in this program shall meet the requirements of Education Code
51745.6.


10. For each student, the combined equivalent daily instructional minutes for courses in this program and all other
courses shall meet applicable minimum instructional day requirements, and the student shall be offered the
minimum annual total equivalent instructional minutes pursuant to Education Code 46200-46208.


11. Courses required for high school graduation or for admission to the University of California or California State
University shall not be offered exclusively through independent study.


12. A student participating in this program shall not be assessed a fee that is prohibited by Education Code 49011.


13. A student shall not be prohibited from participating in independent study solely on the basis that the student
does not have the materials, equipment, or access to Internet connectivity necessary to participate in the
course.


14. A student with disabilities, as defined in Education Code 56026, shall not participate in course-based
independent study, unless the student's individualized education program specifically provides for that
participation.


15. A temporarily disabled student shall not receive individual instruction pursuant to Education Code 48206.3
through course-based independent study.


16. The district shall maintain a plan to transition any student whose family wishes to return to in-person
instruction from course-based independent study expeditiously, and, in no case, later than five instructional
days.


Learning Agreement for Course-Based Independent Study


246/268







Before enrolling a student in a course within this program, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the student
and, if the student is under age 18 years, the student's parent/guardian with a written learning agreement that
includes all of the following:  (Education Code 51749.6)


1. A summary of the district's policies and procedures related to course-based independent study pursuant to 
Education Code 51749.5


2. The duration of the enrolled course(s) and the number of course credits for each enrolled course, consistent 
with the Board certifications made pursuant to item #3 of the Course-Based Independent Study section above


3. The duration of the learning agreement, which shall not exceed a school year or span multiple school years


4. The learning objectives and expectations for each course, including, but not limited to, a description of how 
satisfactory educational progress is measured and when a student evaluation is required to determine whether 
the student should remain in the course or be referred to an alternative program, which may include, but is not 
limited to, a regular school program


5. The specific resources that will be made available to the student, including materials and personnel, and access 
to Internet connectivity and devices adequate to participate in the educational program and complete assigned 
work


6. A statement detailing the academic and other supports that will be provided to address the needs of students 
who are not performing at grade level, or need support in other areas, such as English learners, students with 
disabilities with an individualized education program or a Section 504 plan in order to be consistent with their 
program or plan, students in foster care or experiencing homelessness, and students requiring mental health 
supports.


7. A statement that enrollment is an optional educational alternative in which no student may be required to 
participate.  In the case of a student who is suspended or expelled, or who is referred or assigned to any school, 
class, or program pursuant to Education Code 48915 or 48917, the agreement also shall include the statement 
that instruction may be provided to the student through course-based independent study only if the student is 
offered the alternative of classroom instruction.


8. The manner, time, frequency, and place for submitting a student's assignments, for reporting the student's 
academic progress, and for communicating with a student's parent/guardian regarding a student's academic 
progress.


9. The objectives and methods of study for the student's work, and the methods used to evaluate that work.


10. A statement of the adopted policies regarding the maximum length of time allowed between the assignment 
and the completion of a student's assigned work, the level of satisfactory educational progress, and the number 
of missed assignments allowed before an evaluation of whether the student should be allowed to continue in 
course-based independent study.


11. A statement of the number of course credits or, for the elementary grades, other measures of academic 
accomplishment appropriate to the learning agreement, to be earned by the student upon completion.


12. For 2022-23 school year and thereafter, before the commencement of an independent study course, the 
learning agreement shall be signed and dated by the student, and by the student's parent/guardian or caregiver 
if the student is less than 18 years of age, the certificated employee who has been designated as having 
responsibility for the general supervision of the independent study course, and all persons who have direct 
responsibility for providing assistance to the student.  For purposes of this paragraph "caregiver" means a 
person who has met the requirements of Family Code 6550-6552.
For the 2021-22 school year only, the district shall obtain a signed written agreement for independent study 
from the student, or the student's parent/guardian if the student is less than 18 years of age, the certificated 
employee who has been designated as having responsibility for the general supervision of the independent 
study course, and all persons who have direct responsibility for providing assistance to the pupil no later than 
30 days after the first day of instruction.
Written agreements may be signed using an electronic signature that complies with state and federal standards, 
as determined by the CDE.  (Education Code 51749.6)


247/268







A signed learning agreement from a parent/guardian of a student who is less than 18 years of age shall constitute the 
parent/guardian's permission for the student to receive instruction through course-based independent study.
 (Education Code 51749.6)


The Superintendent or designee shall retain a physical or electronic copy of the signed learning agreement for at 
least three years and as appropriate for auditing purposes.  (Education Code 51749.6)


Upon the request of a student's parent/guardian, and before signing a written agreement as described above, the 
district shall conduct a telephone, videoconference, or in-person student-parent-educator conference, or other 
meeting during which the student, parent/guardian, or their advocate may ask questions about the educational 
options, including which curriculum offerings and nonacademic supports will be available to the student in 
independent study.  (Education Code 51749.6)


Student-Parent-Educator Conferences


A student-parent-educator conference shall be held as appropriate including, but not limited to, as a reengagement 
strategy and/or, if requested by a parent/guardian, prior to enrollment or disenrollment from independent study.
 (Education Code 51745.5, 51747, 51749.5)


Records


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that records are maintained for audit purposes.


These records shall include, but not be limited to:  (Education Code 51748; 5 CCR 11703)


1. A copy of the Board policy, administrative regulation, and other procedures related to independent study


2. A listing of the students, by grade level, program, and school, who have participated in independent study,
along with the units of the curriculum attempted and completed by students in grades K-8 and the course
credits attempted by and awarded to students in grades 9-12 and adult education


3. A file of all agreements, with representative samples of each student's work products bearing the supervising
teacher's notations indicating that the teacher has personally evaluated the work or personally reviewed the
evaluations made by another certificated teacher


4. As appropriate to the program in which the students are participating, a daily or hourly attendance register
that is separate from classroom attendance records, maintained on a current basis as time values of student
work products judged by a certificated teacher, and reviewed by the supervising teacher if they are two
different persons


5. Appropriate documentation of compliance with the teacher-student ratios required by Education Code
51745.6 and 51749.5  (Education Code 51745.6 and 51749.5)


6. Appropriate documentation of compliance with the requirements pursuant to Education Code 51747.5 to
ensure the coordination, evaluation, and supervision of the independent study of each student by a district
employee who possesses a valid certification document pursuant to Education Code 44865 or an emergency
credential pursuant to Education Code 44300  (Education Code 51747.5)


The district shall document each student's participation in live interaction and synchronous instruction pursuant to 
Education Code 51747 on each school day, as applicable, in whole or in part, for which live interaction or 
synchronous instruction is provided as part of the independent study program. A student who does not participate in 
scheduled live interaction or synchronous instruction shall be documented as nonparticipatory for that school day.  
(Education Code 51747.5)


The Superintendent or designee shall also maintain a written or computer-based record such as a grade book or 
summary document of student engagement, for each class, of all grades, assignments, and assessments for each 
student for independent study assignments.  (Education Code 51747.5)


248/268







The signed, dated agreement, any supplemental agreement, assignment records, work samples, and attendance 
records may be maintained on file electronically.  (Education Code 51747)


249/268







Policy 6170.1: Transitional KindergartenPolicy 6170.1: Transitional Kindergarten Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 10/01/2015 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date:| Last Reviewed Date: 12/01/2020


The Governing Board desires to offer a high-quality transitional kindergarten (TK) program for eligible children who 
do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten.  The TK program shall assist students in developing the 
academic, social, and emotional skills needed to succeed in kindergarten and beyond.


The district's TK program shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program.  (Education Code 48000)


The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool providers, elementary 
teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in the development, implementation, and evaluation of the district's 
TK program.


Eligibility


The district's TK program shall admit children as follows:  (Education Code 48000):


1. For the 2021-22 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 through December 2


2. For the 2022-23 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and February 2


3. For the 2023-24 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and April 2


4. For the 2024-25 school year, children whose fifth birthday is between September 2 and June 2


5. For the 2025-26 school year, and in each school year thereafter, children who turn four by September 1


A child's eligibility for TK enrollment shall not impact family eligibility for a preschool or childcare program.
 (Education Code 48000).


Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of the TK program and of the age, residency, 
immunization, and any other enrollment requirements.  Enrollment in the TK program shall be voluntary.


Curriculum and Instruction


The district's TK program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and developmentally 
appropriate.  (Education Code 48000)


The program shall be aligned with the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum frameworks 
developed by the California Department of Education (CDE).  It shall be designed to facilitate students' development 
in essential knowledge and skills related to language and literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual 
and performing arts, science, history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional 
development.


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


250/268







The Board shall establish the length of the school day in the district's TK program, which shall be at least three hours 
but no more than four hours long except for TK students enrolled in expanded learning opportunity programs 
provided by the district pursuant to Education Code 46120.  If the district has adopted an extended-day kindergarten, 
the length of the school day for the TK program may be different than the length of the school day for the 
kindergarten program either at the same or different school sites.  The Superintendent or designee shall annually 
report to CDE as to whether the district's TK programs are offered full day, part day, or both.  (Education Code 8973, 
37202, 46111, 46115, 46117, 48003)


The Superintendent or designee shall develop a plan for how all children in the attendance area of the district will 
have access to full-day learning programs the year before kindergarten that meet the needs of parents/guardians, 
including through partnerships with the district's expanded learning offerings, the After School Education and Safety 
Program, the California State Preschool Program (CSPP), Head Start programs, and other community-based early 
learning and care programs.  The Superintendent or designee shall present such plan for consideration by the Board at 
a public meeting on or before June 30, 2022.  (Education Code 8281.5)


TK students may be placed in the same classrooms as kindergarten students when necessary, provided that the 
instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs.


TK students may be commingled in the same classroom with four-year-old students from a CSPP program as long as 
the commingled program meets all of the requirements of each program as well as the following requirements:
 (Education Code 8207, 48000):


1. The classroom does not include students enrolled in TK for a second year or students enrolled in a regular 
kindergarten


2. An early childhood environment rating scale, as specified in 5 CCR 18281, is completed for the classroom


3. All children enrolled for 10 or more hours per week are evaluated using the Desired Results Developmental 
Profile, as specified in 5 CCR 18272


4. The classroom is taught by a teacher that holds a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing in accordance with Education Code 44065 and 44256


5. The classroom is in compliance with the adult-child ratio specified in Education Code 8241


6. Contractors of the district report the services, revenues, and expenditures for children in the preschool 
program in accordance with 5 CCR 18068 except for contractors of the TK program


The district shall maintain an average TK class enrollment of not more than 24 students for each school site.
 (Education Code 48000)


Staffing


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in TK classes possess a teaching 
credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) that authorizes such instruction.


A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, shall, by August 1, 2023, have at least 24 
units in early childhood education and/or child development, comparable professional experience in a preschool 
setting, and/or a child development teacher permit issued by CTC.  (Education Code 48000)


The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that TK teachers are 
knowledgeable about the standards and effective instructional methods for teaching young children, including, but not 
limited to, developing competencies in serving inclusive classrooms and dual language learners.


251/268







The district shall, commencing with the 2022-23 school year, maintain an average of at least one adult for every 12 
students for TK classrooms and, contingent upon an appropriation of funding, maintain an average of at least one 
adult for every 10 students commencing with the 2023-24 school year.  (Education Code 48000)


Continuation to Kindergarten


Students who complete the TK program shall be eligible to continue in kindergarten the following school year. 
 Parents/guardians of such students shall not be required to submit a signed Kindergarten Continuance Form for 
kindergarten attendance.


However, whenever children who would otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are enrolled in TK, the 
Superintendent or designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance Form signed by the parent/guardian near the 
end of the TK year consenting to the child's enrollment in kindergarten the following year.


A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of TK and kindergarten.  (Education Code 46300)


Assessment


The Superintendent or designee may develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal assessments of TK 
students' development and progress.  The Superintendent or designee shall monitor and regularly report to the 
Board regarding program implementation, the progress of students in meeting related academic standards, and 
student preparedness for future education.


252/268







Bylaw 9150: Student Board MembersBylaw 9150: Student Board Members Status:Status: ADOPTED


Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 12/01/2019 | Last Revised Date:| Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021


In order to enhance communication and collaboration between the Governing Board and the student body and to 
teach students the importance of civic involvement, the Board supports the participation of high school students in 
district governance.


Student Board members may, at the Board's discretion, receive elective course credit for service as a student Board 
member based on the number of equivalent daily instructional minutes for the student Board member's services 
provided.  (Education Code 35012, 35120)


Student Board member(s) shall be entitled to be reimbursed for mileage to the same extent as other members of the 
Board, but shall not receive monetary compensation for attendance at Board meetings.  (Education Code 35012)


A student Board member shall not be liable for any acts of the Board.  (Education Code 35012)


Petition


High school students may submit a petition to the Board requesting the appointment of at least one student Board 
member.  (Education Code 35012)


To qualify for Board consideration, the petition for student representation shall contain the signatures of at least 500 
students or 10 percent of the number of students regularly enrolled in district high schools, whichever is less.
 (Education Code 35012)


Within 60 days of receiving a student petition, or at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting if no meeting is held 
within those 60 days, the Board shall order the inclusion of at least one student member on the Board.  (Education 
Code 35012)


Choosing Student Board Members


A student Board member shall be chosen by the high school principal through an application and interview 
process.  (Education Code 35012)


The term of student Board member(s) shall be one year, commencing on July 1. However, the Board may adjust the 
term of a student Board member only if a vacancy occurs or in order to give more students an opportunity to serve on 
the Board.  (Education Code 35012)


Role and Responsibilities of Student Board Members


Student Board members shall not be considered members of a legislative body for purposes of the Brown Act.
 (Education Code 35012)


A student Board member shall not be counted in determining the vote required to carry any measure before the 
Board or whether a quorum is in attendance at a Board meeting.


Student Board member(s) shall have the right to attend all Board meetings except closed sessions.  (Education Code 
35012)


All materials presented to Board members, except those related to closed sessions, shall be presented to student 
Board members at the same time they are presented to other Board members. Student Board member(s) shall also be 
invited to attend staff briefings or be provided with a separate staff briefing within the same timeframe as the


Board Policy Manual
CSBA Policy Management Console


253/268







briefing of other Board members. In addition, all materials given to Board members by the district between meetings, 
except for materials that pertain to closed session items, shall be distributed to student Board members.  (Education 
Code 35012)


Student Board member(s) shall be recognized at Board meetings as full member(s), shall be seated with other 
members of the Board, and shall be allowed to participate in questioning witnesses and discussing issues.  (Education 
Code 35012)


Student Board member(s) shall be allowed to cast preferential votes on all matters except those subject to closed 
session discussion.  Preferential voting means a formal expression of opinion that is recorded in the minutes and cast 
before the official vote of the Board. Preferential votes shall not affect the final numerical outcome of a vote.
 (Education Code 35012)


Student Board member(s) may make motions that may be acted upon by the Board, except on matters dealing with 
employer-employee relations pursuant to Government Code 3540-3549.3.  (Education Code 35012)


Student Board members shall be appointed to subcommittees of the Board in the same manner as other Board 
members, and shall be made aware of the time commitment required to participate in subcommittee meetings and 
work and of the right to decline an appointment. The availability of all subcommittee members, including the 
availability of student Board members, may be considered when scheduling subcommittee meetings.  (Education 
Code 35012)


Student Board members shall be invited to attend functions of the Board, such as forums, meetings with students 
and parents/guardians, and other general assemblies.  (Education Code 35012)


Student Board Member Training


The Superintendent or designee may, at district expense, provide learning opportunities to student Board members 
through trainings, workshops, and conferences, such as those offered by the California School Boards Association 
and other organizations, to enhance their knowledge, understanding, and performance of leadership skills and their 
Board responsibilities.


The Superintendent or designee may periodically provide information to student Board member candidates to give 
them an understanding of the position. Once chosen or appointed, incoming student Board members shall be 
provided an orientation designed to build knowledge of the district and an understanding of the responsibilities and 
expectations of the position.


Alternate Student Board Member


If the Board determines that the student Board member's duties are not being fulfilled, the Board may appoint 
another student to serve out the term of the student Board member. If an alternate student Board member is 
appointed, the Board shall suspend the prior student Board member's rights and privileges related to service on the 
Board.  (Education Code 35012)


Elimination of Student Board Member Position


Once established, the student Board member position shall continue to exist until the Board, by majority vote of all 
voting Board members, approves a motion to eliminate the position.  Such a motion shall be listed as a public agenda 
item for a Board meeting prior to the motion being voted upon.  (Education Code 35012)


254/268







Bylaw 9320: Meetings And Notices 
Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2008 | Last Revised Date: 12/14/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 12/01/2020 


Status: ADOPTED 


Board Policy Manual 
CSBA Policy Management Console 


 


Meetings of the Governing Board are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing district business. In accordance 
with state open meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board shall hold its meetings in public and shall conduct closed 
sessions during such meetings only as authorized by law. To encourage community involvement in the schools, Board 
meetings shall provide opportunities for questions and comments by members of the public. All meetings shall be 
conducted in accordance with law and the Board's bylaws, policies, and administrative regulations. 


 
A Board meeting exists whenever a majority of Board members gather at the same time and location, including 
teleconference location as permitted by Government Code 54953, to hear, discuss, deliberate, or take action upon any 
item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board or district. (Government Code 54952.2) 


 


A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of communications of any kind, 
directly or through intermediaries, including social media and other electronic communications, to discuss, deliberate, 
or take action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. (Government Code 54952.2) 


 


However, an employee or district official may engage in separate conversations or communications with Board 
members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item within the subject matter jurisdiction 
of the Board, as long as that employee or district official does not communicate the comments or position of any 
Board members to other Board members. (Government Code 54952.2) 


 


In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at Board meetings, the Superintendent or 
designee shall provide appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications upon request in accordance 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act. (Government Code 54953.2, 54954.1, 54954.2) 


Regular Meetings 
 


The Board shall hold 1-2 regular meeting(s) each month. Regular meetings shall be held at 6:30 p.m. and will be 
posted on the District website. An annual calendar of board meetings can be found at sccs.net. 


 
 


At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations freely accessible to 
members of the public and on the district's web site. (Government Code 54954.2) 


 


Whenever agenda materials relating to an open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the Board less than 72 
hours before the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the materials available for public inspection at a 
public office or location designated for that purpose at the time the materials are distributed to all or a majority of the 
Board. (Government Code 54957.5) 


Special Meetings 
 


Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or a majority of the Board members. 
However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation of the 
Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as described in Government Code 3511.1. 
(Government Code 54956) 


 


Written notice of special meetings shall be delivered personally or by any other means to all Board members and the 
local media who have requested such notice in writing. The notice also shall be posted on the district's web site. The 
notice shall be received at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting. The notice shall also be posted at least 24 
hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the public. The notice shall specify the time and location of 
the meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No other business shall be considered at this meeting. 
(Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956) 


255/268







Any Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the meeting by filing a 
written waiver of notice with the clerk or secretary of the Board or by being present at the meeting at the time it 
convenes. (Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956) 


 
Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the 
Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, before or during the item's consideration. 
(Government Code 54954.3) 


 
Emergency Meetings 


 


In the case of an emergency situation for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened 
disruption of public facilities, the Board may hold an emergency meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice 
and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956. The Board shall 
comply with all other requirements for special meetings during an emergency meeting. (Government Code 54956.5) 


 
An emergency situation means either of the following: (Government Code 54956.5) 


 
1. An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that severely 


impairs public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board 
 


2. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist act, or threatened 
terrorist activity that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the Board to provide one-hour 
notice before holding an emergency meeting may endanger the public health and/or safety as determined by a 
majority of the members of the Board 


Except in the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the emergency meeting 
by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that have requested notice of special meetings. 
All telephone numbers provided by the media in the most recent request for notification must be exhausted. If 
telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived and, as soon after the meeting 
as possible, the Board shall notify those media representatives of the meeting and shall describe the purpose of the 
meeting and any action taken by the Board. In the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall 
give such notice at or near the time notification is given to the other members of the Board about the meeting. 
(Government Code 54956.5) 


 
The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the Board president or designee notified or attempted to notify, a copy 
of the roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for at least 10 days in a public place as soon 
after the meeting as possible. (Government Code 54956.5) 


 
Adjourned/Continued Meetings 


 
The Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and location that shall be specified in 
the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the Board may adjourn such a meeting. If no Board members are 
present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting adjourned to a later time and place and shall give notice in 
the same manner required for special meetings. (Government Code 54955) 


 
Within 24 hours after the time of adjournment, a copy of the order or notice of adjournment/continuance shall be 
conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the meeting was held. (Government Code 54955) 


 
Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings 


 


The Board may occasionally convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in more detail or to receive 
information from staff or feedback from members of the public. 


 
The Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss Board roles and relationships. 


 
Public notice shall be given in accordance with law when a quorum of the Board is attending a study session, retreat, 
public forum, or discussion meeting. All such meetings shall comply with the Brown Act and shall be held in open 
session and within district boundaries. Action items shall not be included on the agenda for these meetings. 


256/268







Other Gatherings 
 


Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the Brown Act provided 
that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district business among themselves other than as part 
of the scheduled program: (Government Code 54952.2) 


1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of general 
interest to the public or to school board members 


 
2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the district to address a topic of 


local community concern 
 


3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district 


4. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency 


5. A purely social or ceremonial occasion 
 


6. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board, provided that the Board members who 
are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers 


Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person are not subject to the Brown 
Act. (Government Code 54952.2) 


 
Location of Meetings 


 
Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of ancestry or any 
characteristic listed in Government Code 11135. In addition, meetings shall not be held in a facility which is 
inaccessible to individuals with disabilities or where members of the public must make a payment or purchase in 
order to be admitted. (Government Code 54961) 


 
Meetings shall be held within district boundaries, except to do any of the following: (Government Code 54954) 


1. Comply with state or federal law or court order or attend a judicial or administrative proceeding to which the 
district is a party 


 
2. Inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the district, provided that the 


topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the property 
 


3. Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance, provided these meetings are held within one 
of the other agencies' boundaries, with all participating agencies giving the notice required by law 


 
4. Meet in the closest meeting facility if the district has no meeting facility within its boundaries or if its principal 


office is located outside the district 
 


5. Meet with elected or appointed state or federal officials when a local meeting would be impractical, solely to 
discuss legislative or regulatory issues affecting the district over which the state or federal officials have 
jurisdiction 


 
6. Meet in or near a facility owned by the district but located outside the district, provided the meeting agenda is 


limited to items directly related to that facility 
 


7. Visit the office of the district's legal counsel for a closed session on pending litigation, when doing so would 
reduce legal fees or costs 


 
8. Attend conferences on nonadversarial collective bargaining techniques 


 
9. Interview residents of another district regarding the Board's potential employment of an applicant for 


Superintendent of the district 
 


10. Interview a potential employee from another district 


257/268







Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in items #1-10 above, shall still be subject to the 
notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings when a quorum of the Board attends the 
meeting. 


 
If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the regular meeting place unsafe, meetings shall be held for 
the duration of the emergency at a location designated by the Board president or designee, who shall so inform all 
news media who have requested notice of special meetings by the most rapid available means of communication. 
(Government Code 54954) 


 
Teleconferencing 


 
A teleconference is a meeting of the Board in which Board members are in different locations, connected by 
electronic means through audio and/or video. (Government Code 54953) 


 
The Board may use teleconferences for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the Board's subject 
matter jurisdiction. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call. (Government Code 54953) 


 
During the teleconference, at least a quorum of the members of the Board shall participate from locations within 
district boundaries. (Government Code 54953) 


 
Agendas shall be posted at all teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations whenever they are 
posted elsewhere. Additional teleconference locations may be provided to the public. (Government Code 54953) 


 
 


All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public. All teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a 
manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing before the Board, 
including the right of the public to address the Board directly at each teleconference location. (Government Code 
54953) 


 
Teleconferencing During a Proclaimed State of Emergency 


 
 


The Board may conduct Board meetings by teleconference without posting agendas at all teleconference locations, 
identifying teleconference locations in meeting notices and agendas, allowing public access to each teleconference 
location, providing an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board directly at each teleconference 
location, and ensuring that at least a quorum of the Board participate from locations within district boundaries, 
during a proclaimed state of emergency pursuant to Government Code 8625-8629 in any of the following 
circumstances: (Government Code 54953) 


1. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing 


2. For the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as the result of the emergency meeting in person 
would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees 


 
3. When it has been determined, by majority vote as described in Item #2 above, that as a result of the 


emergency meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees 


To conduct a teleconference meeting for these purposes the following requirements shall be satisfied: (Government 
Code 54953) 


1. The notice and agenda shall be given and posted as otherwise required by the Brown Act 


2. The notice and agenda of the meeting shall specify the means by which members of the public may access the 
meeting and offer public comments, including via a call-in or internet-based service option 
Members of the public may be required to register to log in to a meeting when making public comments 
through an internet web site or other online platform that is operated by a third-party and not under the 
control of the Board. 


 
3. Members of the public shall be allowed to access the meeting, and the agenda shall provide an opportunity for 


members of the public to address the Board directly pursuant to Government Code 54954.3 


258/268







4. Members of the public shall not be required to submit public comments in advance of a Board meeting and 
shall be provided an opportunity to address the Board and offer comments in real time 


 
5. Public comment periods shall not be closed until the timed public comment period, if such is offered by the 


Board, has elapsed or, if not timed, until a reasonable amount of time per agenda item has been allowed 
 


6. If during a Board meeting a disruption occurs which prevents the district from broadcasting the meeting to 
members of the public or for members of the public to offer public comments, the Board shall take no further 
action on any agenda item until public access via the call-in or internet-based service option to the meeting is 
restored 


The district may, in its discretion, provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 
(Government Code 54953) 


 
The Board may continue to conduct meetings by teleconference, as specified above for teleconferencing during 
proclaimed states of emergency, by a majority vote finding within 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time, 
and every 30 days thereafter, that either: (Government Code 54953) 


1. The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the Board to meet safely in person 
2. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing 


 


259/268







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 28-21-22 Assembly Bill 361  
      
MEETING DATE:  March 9, 2022 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Contingent on improving COVID data, return to in-person Board meetings, providing a Zoom 
option for individuals who wish to attend remotely. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Consistent with Government code section 54953, on September 22, 2021, Santa Cruz City 
Schools Board of Education took action to continue virtual meetings, finding that meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  


At the March 9, 2022, meeting, the Board will discuss and consider adopting Resolution 28-21-
22, to make a finding after reconsidering the state of the pandemic, that the current 
circumstances meet the requirements of AB 361 and Government Code section 54953 for the 
Board to continue conducting meetings remotely. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


 


260/268







Assembly Bill 361
March 9, 2022


261/268







Assembly Bill 361
Effective September 16, 2021


If there is a proclaimed state of emergency, agencies can choose to 
continue virtual board meetings if:


● State or local officials have imposed or recommended social 
distancing


Or


● Meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety or attendees due to the emergency


262/268







Previous Executive Order


Executive Order N-29-20:


● Allows, but does not require electronic meetings


● Requires opportunity for public to observe and address
electronically


● Expired September 30, 2021


263/268







● Location(s) must be open and accessible to the public


● Agenda must identify all locations and be posted in all locations


● Public comment must be allowed at all locations


Teleconference under the Brown Act:


264/268







● Allows, but does not require, electronic meetings for local 
agencies


● Similar, but modified, requires from Executive Order N 29-20


● Agencies must reevaluate every 30 days if electronic meetings 
are appropriate 


● Effective until 2024


AB 361 modifications:


265/268







Recommendation:


● Contingent upon improving COVID data, return to in-person 
Board meetings with a Zoom option for individuals who would 
prefer to attend remotely.


266/268







SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 


RESOLUTION NO. 28-21-22 AUTHORIZING USE OF REMOTE  


TELECONFERENCING PROVISIONS (AB 361) 


 


WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education (“Board of 


Education”) is committed to open and transparent government, and full compliance with the 


Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”); and  


 


WHEREAS, the Brown Act generally requires that a public agency take certain actions in order 


to use teleconferencing to attend a public meeting virtually; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education recognizes that a local emergency persists due to the 


worldwide COVID-19 pandemic; and 


 


WHEREAS, the California Legislature has recognized the ongoing state of emergency due to 


the COVID-19 pandemic and has responded by creating an additional means for public meetings 


to be held via teleconference (inclusive of internet-based virtual meetings); and 


 


WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, the California legislature passed Assembly Bill (“AB”) 


361, which amends Government Code, section 54953 and permits a local agency to use 


teleconferencing to conduct its meetings in any of the following circumstances: (A) the 


legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or local 


officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; (B) the 


legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of 


determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would 


present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; or (C) the legislative body holds a 


meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has determined, by majority vote, pursuant 


to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present 


imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 


 


WHEREAS, in order for the Board of Education to use teleconferencing as allowed by AB 361 


after October 1, 2021, it must first adopt findings in a resolution, allowing the Board of 


Education to conduct teleconferenced meetings for a period of thirty (30) says; and 


 


WHEREAS, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a state of emergency for the State of California 


due to the COVID-19 pandemic in his order entitled “Proclamation of a State of Emergency,” 


signed March 4, 2020; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education hereby finds that the state and local emergencies have 


caused and will continue to cause imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education is conducting its meetings through the use of telephonic 


and internet-based services so that members of the public may observe and participate in 


meetings and offer public comment.  


 


267/268







NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the recitals set forth above are true and correct 


and fully incorporated into this Resolution by reference.   


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Education has determined that given the 


state of emergency, holding in-person meetings would present imminent risks to the health or 


safety of attendees.  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the actions taken by the Board of Education through this 


resolution apply to any and all District committees which are otherwise governed by the Brown 


Act.  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Education authorizes the County Superintendent 


of Schools or their designee(s) to take all actions necessary to conduct Board of Education 


meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and all other applicable 


provisions of the Brown Act, using teleconferencing for a period of March 9, 2022 through April 


9, 2022, thirty (30) days from the adoption of this Resolution after which the Board of Education 


will reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency. 


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Board of Education on this 9th day of 


March 2022, by the following vote: 


 


AYES          _____ 


 


NOES         _____ 


 


ABSENT     _____ 


 


ABSTAIN    _____    
 


 


268/268





		Agenda 03.09.22

		Meeting January 12, 2022

		Meeting January 19, 2022

		8.1.2.1. POs Bids & Quotes cover

		8.1.2.1. PO BOARD REPORT FOR 030922 MEETING

		8.1.2.2. Vendor Warrants Register Cover

		8.1.2.2. Warrant Register

		8.1.2.3. Bond Projects Notice of Completion Cover

		8.1.2.3. Bond Notice of Completion Anaya Construction  Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing (Internal)

		Personnel Actions--Certificated

		Personnel Actions--Classified

		8.1.4.1. Board Meeting Schedule 2022-23 Cover

		8.1.4.1. Board Meeting Schedule 2022-23

		8.2.1.1. NPA-ACES Cover

		8.2.1.1. 2021-2022 Master Contract SCCS-ACES

		8.2.2.1. LaserFiche Board Cover

		8.2.2.1. LaserFiche RM 2022-23

		8.2.2.2. American Fidelity Board Cover

		8.2.2.2. American Fidelity Contract

		8.2.2.3. Developer Fee Justification Study cover

		8.2.2.3. Santa Cruz City Schools Developer Fee Contract 2022

		8.3.1. CDW-G Quote Westlake Elementary School Interactive Touch Panel Cover

		8.3.1. CDW-G Quote Westlake Elementary School Interactive Touch Panels

		8.3.2. K & D Landscaping, Inc. Proposal Branciforte Small Schools Irrigation Cover

		8.3.2. K & D Landscaping, Inc. Proposal Branciforte Small Schools Irrigation

		8.3.3. Mobile Modular Quote Temporary Transportation Housing Cover

		8.3.3. Mobile Modular Quote Temporary Transportation Housing

		8.3.4. Procore Proposal Project Management Software Cover

		8.3.4. Procore Proposal Project Management Software

		8.3.5. PSR Electric Proposal Temporary Transportation Housing Power Cover

		8.3.5. PSR Electric Proposal Temporary Transportation Housing Power

		8.3.6. Tesla Inc. Quote Harbor High School Switchgear Solar Tie-In Cover

		8.3.6. Tesla Inc. Quote Harbor High School Switchgear Solar Tie-In

		8.5.1.1. Cover A-G Completion Improvement Grant 3.9.22

		8.5.1.1. A-G Completion Improvement Grant Staff Report 03.09.22

		8.5.1.2. ECF Chromebooks Board Cover

		8.5.1.2. ECF Chromebooks Quote

		8.5.1.3. LCAP Update - School Climate & Culture Report 03.09.22

		8.5.1.3. Multi-Tiered Systems of Support LCAP Update--School Climate and Culture March 9, 2022

		8.5.2.1. Wellness Board Cover 21-22

		8.5.2.1. Wellness 2022 Presentation

		8.5.2.2.  Bond Budget Update cover

		8.5.2.2. Measure A & B Board Update THRU 02.28.2022

		8.5.2.3. Public Disclosure Meet and Confer 2021-22 cover

		8.5.2.3. 2021-22 SCCS-AMA-Cabinet-Confidential AB1200 03.9.22

		8.5.3.1. Cover - Sunshine SCCCE to SCCS 2021-22

		8.5.3.1. SCCCE 2021-22 Sunshine Letter

		New Business_ Resolution 24-21-22_ Staffing Flexibility Measures

		New Business_ Resolution 25-21-22_ Certificated Reduction of Particular Kinds of Service

		New Business_ Resolution 27-21-22_ NonReelect of Probationary Certificated Employees

		8.5.4.1. Cvr Board Policy Updates First or Final Reading

		Policy Guidesheet

		BP 0420.42 Charter School Renewal

		BP 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

		BP 5148 Child Care and Development

		BP 5148.2 Before After School Programs

		BP 5148.3 Preschool Early Childhood Education

		BP 6112 School Day

		BP 6143 Course of Study

		BP 6158 Independent Study

		BP 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten

		BP 9150 Student Board Members

		BP 9320 Meetings and Notices

		8.5.4.2. Resolution 28-21-22 Cover

		8.5.4.2. Assembly Bill 361 Presentation

		8.5.4.2. Resolution 28-21-22




